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FISCAL YEAR ENDED

Dollars in millions,
except per share amounts

March 30, 2007

March 31,2006 April |, 2005

(as restated)

(as restated)

Revenues $14,857 $14,639 $14,080
Income before taxes* 607 803 680
Income from continuing operations™ 389 471 444
Earnings per share from 2.16 2.51 2.31
continuing operations (dilutedy*
Total assets 13,731 13,022 12,603
Stockholders’ equity 5,886 6,505 6,314
Book value per share 33.96 3474 33.02
Number of employees 79,000 79,000 79,000

* Operating results above include special items. A discussion of “Special Items” is included in the

Form 10K of this annual report.

Computer Sciences Corporation's fiscal year ends the Friday closest to March 31.
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To Our Sharcholders:

Fiscal 2007 was another year of solid performance by CSC. We achieved revenues
from continuing operations of $14.9 billion and had record free cash flow. We sel

a new record for total announced business awards of $16.9 billion.

We contmue to strengthen our position as a leader in the information technology
services industry, with solid performance globally across vertical industries and with

a technically advanced work force of approximately 79,000 dedicated employees.

We took aggressive actions throughout the year to address issues of operational efficiency and to
ensure that CSC is positioned to provide improved returns. Overall, our balance sheet is solid, with
year-end cash and equivalents in excess of $1 billion, debt to total capitalization at 20.4%, and

net operating cash less investing cash generation of over $700 million.

At the beginning of the fiscal year, we initiated an aggressive restructuring program to address
excess capacity in certain geographies, especially in Europe. The restructuring program is nearing
completion, and we can report that it has been successful in addressing some critical concerns
for CSC. The costs associated with the restructuring will be offset by a more appropriate alignment
of resources with opportunities, better positioning us to compete in critical markets.

On June 29, 2006 we announced a share repurchase program that will involve an overall investment
of up to $2 billion. At the time of the announcement, this was equivalent to approximately 19%
of the company’s outstanding shares. The repurchase program is progressing as planned, even as
CSC continues to pursue attractive operating investments.

We are optimistic about the company's prospects and excited by the opportunities we see for
continued growth. New technologies, market opportunities and customer demands are reshaping
the information technology services industry, and we are confident that CSC will remain a leading
performer in this space.

The business results from the year support this conclusion. While there continue to be challenges
in Europe, we followed the initial award of the landmark NHS contract with a major geographic
expansion which, if all options are exercised, is valued at $3.73 billion over the nine years of the
contract. This expansion is a clear demonstration of the success CSC has achieved in the first phase
of the project, and we are excited by the opportunity to apply our deep technology resources
to one of the most far-reaching and complex technology projects currently underway anywhere.




Other contract signings in Europe indicate continued prospects for growth in the region, including
an important program with UKvisas that builds on CSC's world-class capabilities in transformational
programs in the public sector. Additionally, the UK's leading hospitality company, Whitbread,
awarded CSC a contract extension and expansion continuing to 2012,

Elsewhere in our commercial markets, our Financial Services Group continued to deliver world-

class industry expertise and intellectual property to customers in the banking, insurance and capital
markets. As an example of our global reach in this market, we signed an agreement to provide

IT support services to DnB Nor, Norway’s largest financial services group.

Demonstrating the wide variety of industries and customers we support, CSC also announced
contract awards from Newmont Mining, a natural resources firm with global operations. A new
agreement with BlueScope Steel Ltd. extends the scope of our existing work with the international
flat steel solutions company, part of record signings by our Australian operations.

Our United States federal government business also delivered powerful performance and significant
new contract signings. CSC is a leading provider of information and technology expertise to
the U.S. federal government, and new announced business awards included the U.S. Air Force
Expeditionary Combat Support System (ECSS), and the U.S. Army Information Technology
Enterprise Solutions-2 Services (ITES-2S) contract. Our deep expertise in the areas of homeland
security and information security places us in an advantageous position for the pursuit of
additional growth. The ECSS award further strengthens our HGMS in the Defense Logistics
marketplace. There also are growth opportunities in state governments for federally mandated
and supported programs, such as our successful project with the New York State Medicaid
Management Information System, for which we received an important new contract extension.

Identity management and credentialing is a market segment of strategic importance to our federal
customers. We strengthened our ability to provide solutions in this industry with the December
acquisition of Datatrac Information Services. The acquisition also expands the company’s customer
contact solution offerings to clients across the broad U.S. federal market.

At the beginning of Fiscal 2008, we announced an internal realignment of CSC Federal Sector
organization to better position us to pursue these and other growth opportunities. Renamed

the North American Public Sector, this organization continues to represent the best of CSC
technology and business solutions, supporting nearly every major agency and department of
the U.S. government, and now including operations in Canada, as well.

We also announced the expansion of our World Sourcing model by establishing a new delivery
center in Prague, Czech Republic. CSC's World Sourcing model provides clients with the regional
resources that best meet their specific needs while offering consistent, 24/7 follow-the-sun support
in compliance with global standards and best practices. The center’s opening will provide increased
capacity to deliver results that address our clients’ most pressing business needs.




On May 21, 2007 we announced that Mike Laphen, CSC'’s president and chief operating officer,
had been elected to succeed me as CEQO effective May 22, 2007, and as Chairman effective
July 30, 2007. Mike joined CSC in 1977, and has held a succession of significant management
positions, demonstrating leadership and vision while making outstanding contributions to the
company throughout. Mike has also been a driving force in the development and launch of the
new strategic initiatives described below, and he is the right person to lead CSC into a new era
of growth. It is particularly rewarding to be able to continue the CSC tradition of finding our
next generation of leadership from within.

We recognize that, in order to deliver the growth commensurate with CSC'’s potential, we must
continue to evolve CSC to respond to market dynamics and changing customer needs, as well as
the emergence of new technologies. Throughout our history, CSC has demonstrated impressive
flexibility, and despite continual changes in the information technology services marketplace, the
company has thrived. While the results we report in Fiscal 2007 are satisfactory, we are confident
in the company’s potential to achieve more impressive growth, and we are determined to deliver
the full potential of CSC to our shareholders.

In recognition of the need to expedite growth, we have launched “Project Accelerate,” a
set of ambitious strategic initiatives designed to position CSC to deliver improved growth and
a higher-margin mix of business across the company.

Project Accelerate comprises five primary initiatives:

Reposition Global Outsourcing

While our commitment to our current customers and to the large-scale outsourcing market
remains as firm as ever, we must respond to the emergence of a mid-sized outsourcing market.
Our strategy will position CSC to compete effectively for mid-sized deals, both domestically
and internationally, while preserving our leadership role in the large global outsourcing market.

Business Solutions & Services

CSC will make significant investments to add to our global expertise in key vertical markets, and

to add world-class intellectual property to allow us to provide superior business solutions to our
customers. As with the repositioning of global outsourcing, we will sharpen our focus on vertical
markets that represent the most significant growth opportunities for business solutions, including
the public sector, financial services, healthcare services and manufacturing/aerospace, as well as

chemical/energy/natural resources, and technology and consumer markets. This initiative will

drive significant change within our organization as we move aggressively to take a leadership role
in the markets that represent the most fertile areas for growth.

Geographic Operations
As stated earlier, we have moved decisively to improve our competitive position in Europe, and
we will continue to focus on driving profitability and growth there and throughout the world.
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In addition, we will seek opportunities to extend the CSC World Sourcing model to include other
centers of low-cost, resource-rich technology support around the globe. We will seek to build a
presence in areas that include not only Eastern Europe, as with our Prague center, but also China
and Latin America, in order to better serve our global customers.

Optimize India’s Potential

In order to maximize the growth potential in India, we have launched India Direct, which includes
an independent sales channel to compete directly with the Indian technology service providers.
This effort recognizes a major growth opportunity to capitalize upon our sizeable and growing

India presence, and to extend into new markets,

In April 2007, we announced an agreement to acquire Covansys, a U.5.-based information
technology services provider with more than 70% of its more than 8,400 employees in India,
bringing CSC's India work force to nearly 14,000 people. When completed, the acquisition of
Covansys will be an excellent addition to CSC, and is expected to bolster our global systems
integration and outsourcing capabilities.

Continue to Focus on Public Sector

Already a key part of the CSC's business, our North American Public Sector organization has
sizable growth potential, and our future plan has ambitious goals. While maintaining and extending
our Tier 1 status, we also will selectively target key opportunities in state and local governments
where federally funded work matches our services portfolio.

We are convinced that the changes we are making as part of Project Accelerate will reinvigorate
our growth. We will be better aligned with industries and geographies that offer growth and, as
a result, CSC will become stronger and more effective.

We will become a more proactive, aggressive competitor, and our employees can expect
increased opportunities to enhance careers and drive change. We are proud of the quality
and capabilities of our people, who daily demonstrate CSC's hallmark dedication to customer
satisfaction. Together, across cultures and time zones, in many languages, they collaborate
effectively to deliver the innovative business-focused technology solutions that yield the results
we are proud to present in this report.

Ultimately, our goal remains to better serve our customers, and to remain clearly focused on and
dedicated to delivering business value, while driving increased value to our shareholders.

Sincerely,

Van B. Honeycuttm’yj\

Chairman
June 15, 2007




REVENUES

REVENUES BY MARKET SECTOR (s in billions)

% of Total
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2007 2006 2007 2006
FISCAL 2007 [ US. Commercial $39 $ 40 26%  28%
M) Europe 4.1 42 28 28
B Other International 1.5 1.4 10 9
Global Commercial 95 9.6 64 65
[] Department of Defense 36 33 24 23
[] Civil Agencies 1.8 1.7 12 12
FISCAL 2006 North American PUbIlC Sector 5.4 50 36 35
$149 $14.6 100% 100%
REVENUES BY BUSINESS SERVICE" (3 in bitlions)
% of Total
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2007 2006 2007 2006
FISCAL 2007 .
Outsourcing
[ North American Public Sector $ 5 $ .5 3% 3%
[] Global Commercial 6.4 6.6 44 45
Total Qutsourcing 6.9 7.1 47 48
IT & Professional Services
Il North American Public Sector 48 4.6 32 32
FISCAL 2006 [[] Global Commercial 3.1 29 21 20
Total IT & Professional Services 7.5 7.5 53 52
$149 $146 100% 100%

* Based on CSC estimates



REVENUES BY GEOGRAPHY (3 in billions)

% of Total*
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2007 2006 2007 2006
FISCAL 2007 [] United States $91 $90 62%  62%
(] United Kingdom 20 20 I3 13
ll Germany 0.4 0.5 3 3
(] Remaining European 1.8 1.7 12 12
Countries
B Australia 08 0.7
[ Asia 0.5 0.4 3 3
[T Other International 03 0.3 I I
FISCAL 2006
$149 %146 100%  100%
*Total may not add to [00% due to rounding.
REVENUES BY VERTICAL MARKET™* (3 in billions)
% of Total
Fiscal  Fiscal Fiscal  Fiscal
2007 2006 2007 2006
FISCAL 2007 [ North American Public Sector $ 54  § 5.1 36% 35%
DoD 3.6 34 24 23
Civil 1.8 1.7 12 12
[ Financial Services 23 2.2 16 IS
Bl Discrete Manufacturing/ 27 27 17 18
Aerospace & Defense
] Telecom 0.7 0.7 S 5
[l Chemical & Energy 0.6 0.6 4 4
FISCAL 2006 (] Healthcare 0.8 07 6 5
[ Other 24 2.6 16 18
$149 %146 100%  100%

** Based on CSC estimates
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4, Nominating/Corporate Governance

Date in parentheses indicates year
director was first elected to the Board

Michael W. Laphen
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Harvey N. Bernstein
Vice President
Global Legal Cornpliance

Donald G. DeBuck
Vice President and Controller

Hayward D. Fisk
Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Thomas R. Irvin
Vice President and
Treasurer

Michael E. Keane
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Paul T. Tucker
Vice President
Corporate Development




UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF TH
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended March 30, 2007
OR

7 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF T
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File No.: 1-4850

C58 COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

{Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Nevada 95-2043126
{State of incorporation or organization) (LR.S. Employer ldentification No.)
2104 East Grand Avenue
El Segundo, California 90245
(Address of principal executive offices) (zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (310) 615-0311

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class: Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $1.00 par value per share New York Stock Exchange
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known scasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes No [

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant 1o Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months. and {2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained. to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer Accelerated [] Non-accelerated filer [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes [] No

As of September 29, 2006 the aggregate market value of stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approxi-
mately $8,422,000,000.

There were 173,993,039 shares of the Registrant’s common stock outstanding as of May 25, 2007.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after March 30, 2007, are incorporated by reference into
Part 1 hereof.




Explanatory Note

As previously announced and disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 30, 2007. Computer
Sciences Corporation (CSC or the Company) has restated its consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,
2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders™ equity and cash flows for fiscal years
ended March 31, 2006 and Apri! 1, 2005 in this Form 10-K as discussed in Note 2. “Restatement of
Consolidated Financial Statements™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. These restatements
relate to the 1) completion of the Company’s investigation of its stock option granting practices. 2) the
correction of errors relating to the accounting for income taxes, and 3) recognition of revenue for the sale of
licenses for a software product. This Form 10-K also reflects the restatement of “Selected Consolidated
Financial Data” in Item 6 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006, April 1,20035, April 2, 2004 and March 28,
2003. In addition, the quarterly financial data in Iiem 8 has been restated.

The Company has not amended and does not plan 10 amend previously filed Annual Reports on Form
10-K or Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for any period affected by this restatement.

Revenue Recognition

The Company determined that it did not correctly apply the provisions of Statement of Position 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition’™ with respect to the sale of licenses for a software product. As a result, the
Company overstated revenue and unbilled receivables and understated deferred revenue related to this
product in fiscal years prior to 2005. In fiscal vears 2006 and 2005 this error resulted in an understatement of
revenue. The Company has restated revenue for fiscal 2006 and 2005 and as a result revenue increased $23.4
and $21.4 for these vears, respectively. The cumulative effect of this error on earnings retained for use in
business was a decrease of $51.1 at April 3, 2004.

Income Taxes

The Company identified errors related to income taxes in prior periods. The most significant of these
errors related to income tax accounting for amortization of tax bases of assets contributed to a consolidated
affiliate. The impact of the correction of this error was an increase in income tax expense of $53.7 and $11.8
for fiscal 2006 and 2005. The cumulative effect of the correction of this error on earnings retained for use in
business was a decrease of $91.4 at April 3, 2004,

In addition, the Company identified errors in the accounting for U.S. income tax liabilitics related to
foreign operations. The impact of the correction of this error was an increase in income tax expense of $6.6
and $5.4 for fiscal 2006 and 2005. The cumulative effect of this error on carnings retained for use in business
was a decrease $15.2 a1t April 3. 2004,

The Company also identified individually immaterial income tax accounting errors that have been
corrected. These errors related principally to state income taxes, provision for a gain, the valuation of state
net operating losses and deferred tax liabilities related to state taxes. The combined impact of these errors on
income tax expense was an increase of $28.4 and $1.4 for fiscal 2006 and 2005 respectively. The cumulative
effect of the correction of these errors on earnings retained for use in business was a decrease of $3.6 at April
3, 2004.

Additionally. the Company identified certain errors in the preparation of U.S. federal tax returns. These
included an error which understated the deduction of certain general and administrative costs in its U.S.
federal income tax returns for fiscal 2002 through fiscal 2005 and resulted in the overstatement of income tax
expense by $7.4 for fiscal 2005 and an understatement of income tax expense by §2.1 for fiscal 2006, The
cumulative effect of the correction of these errors on carnings retained for use in business was an increase of
$17.3 at April 3, 2004.

As a result of the errors noted above the Company incurred interest and penalties. For fiscal 2006 and
2005 the Company has recorded adjustments related to additional interest expense of $16.7 and $2.6.
respectively, for the income tax errors. The cumulative effect on earnings retained for use in business was a
decrease of $4.8 at April 3, 2004. The Company also recorded penaltics related to the income tax errors of
$4.0 and $44.3 for fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The cumulative effect of the penalties for periods prior to
fiscal 2005 on earnings retained for use in business was a decrease of $7.4 ar April 3. 2004.

The total effect of all the income 1ax adjustments noted above was (o increase income tax expense $90.8
($84.2 net of impact of interest expense) and $11.2 ($10.2 net of the impact of interest expense) for fiscal 2006
and fiscal 2005. The cumulative effect of these errors on earnings retained for use in business was a decrease
of $105.1 at April 3, 2004.




Stock Options

As announced in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 28, 2007, the Company has completed
its internal investigation of its stock option grant practices. As previously announced, in response to
investigations of CSC’s option grant practices by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the United
States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New York, the Company’s Board of Directors on July 29,
2006, established a special committee, comprised of the two most recently elected independent directors (the
Special Committee), to manage and supervise the internal investigation, and to report the results of its
investigation to the independent members of the Board of Directors. Upon receipt of the results of the
investigation, the independent directors made conclusions required to address the issues raised by the
investigation.

Together with its independent counsel and forensic accountants, the Special Committee conducted an
extensive review of stock option grants made by the Company between March 1, 1996, and July 31, 2006 (the
Relevant Period), which covered 13,564 grants made on 520 dates. The Special Commmittee cooperated with
the SEC and the U.S. Attorney throughout this process.

The Company’s independent directors concluded that the evidence obtained by the Special Committee’s
investigation, as well as by their own interviews of certain current and former employees, did not establish
any intentional wrongdoing by current or former employees or directors, and the independent directors
continue to have confidence in the integrity of management.

Based on the report of the Special Committee, the independent directors determined that 9,234 stock
option grants should be modified, principally due to delays in authorization and approval and the absence of
definitive documentation, including;

* 540 stock option grants made on five dates between May 9, 1996, and June 13, 2002, which should
have been accounted for as repricings of prior stock option grants, 527 of which require variable
accounting until April 1, 2006, when the Company adopted Statement of Financiai Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”’;

+ 3,906 other stock option grants made on 108 dates between April 9, 1996, and April 3, 2006, for which
the measurement date should be changed to a later date on which the closing stock price was higher,
requiring additional compensation expense; and

» 4,788 other stock option grants made on 71 dates between April 1, 1996, and July 10, 2006, for which
the measurement date should be changed to a later date on which the closing stock price was lower,
requiring no additional compensation e¢xpense.

The incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense, before taxes, from March 1, 1996, through
June 30, 2006, related to stock options was approximately $70 million, including approximately $30 million
attributable to the repricings requiring variable accounting. This $70 million (approximately $60 million after
taxes) has been atlocated among the last 11 fiscal years and first three quarters of fiscal 2007 as follows:

Pre-Tax Expense

Fiscal Year Ended lin millions)
March 29, 1996 ... .. e e e e $ 00
March 28, 1997 ..o $ 04
APTl 3, 1998 L $ 18
APl 2, 1099 e e $32
March 31, 2000 . ... i e $ 87
March 30, 2000 ... e e e $28
March 29, 2002 ... .o e e $16.8
March 28, 2003 . ... .ot $(6.5)
April 2, 2004 L e e $14.1
APHl L, 2005 L o $ 85
March 31, 2000 . ...o e i e e e e e $20.6

Fiscal Quarter Ended
JUNE 30, 2006 - oo e et $(0.2)




The Company also determined that the tax benefits associated with the exercise of certain stock options
in foreign jurisdictions had been incorrectly credited against the foreign tax provision, rather than additional
paid-in capital. The Company further determined that it had applied the effective rate, rather than the U.S.
statutory rate, in recognizing the tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options in the U.S.
Correction of these two tax errors resulted in an incremental cumulative tax provision of approximately $14
million, which is included in the previously stated $60 million incremental cumulative after-tax compensation
expense through June 30, 2006.

Unless otherwise indicated. all references hereafter in this explanatory note to years are to calendar
vears.

Background
During the Relevant Period, CSC granted stock options to two categorics of employees:

» the Chief Executive Officer, Chicf Operating Officer. each of their respective direct reports and each
other employee who is an “officer” for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (collectively,
Senior Executives): and

» ali other employees (collectively. Other Employees).

Option grants to Senior Executives were approved by the Compensation Committee or the Board of
Directors. Approvals {or option grants to Other Employees were delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
or. after July 1999, in the case of option grants of 5,000 shares or less. to the Corporate Vice President.
Human Resources. The Company did not grant stock options to its independent directors.

Option grants during the Relevant Period can be grouped into three general categories:

* Annual Cycle Options.” which were granted as part of the annual compensation review process
each year;

¢ “Discounted Options.” which, on and prior 10 May 12. 2004, were granted on the Annual Cycle
Option grant date in lieu of a cash bonus, and which typically had an exercise price per share equal to
25% of the closing market price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date; and

¢ Other Options.” which primarily include options granted to new hires (including to employees
acquired through acquisitions and outsourcings) and for promotions and special recognition.

Of the 13,564 option grants made by the Company during the Relevant Period, (i} 9.134 were for Annual
Cvcle Options, (ii} 262 were for Discounted Options and (iii) 4.168 were for Other Options. The option
grants in each calegory were reviewed to determine the first date upon which the identity of the optionee, the
number of shares subject to the option grant and the option exercise price were determined with finality (the
measurement date). The following describes the option grants for which the independent directors deter-
mined that the measurement date should be a date other than the grant date.

Annual Cycle Options

Annual Cycle Options Granted to Senior Executives.

The independent directors concluded that there was evidence that the Annual Cycle Options granted to
Senior Executives in 1996, 1999 and 2002 may each have had two measurement dates: (i} the first occurring
on the date of an initial action to select the optionees. the number of option shares and the grant date closing
stock price (o be used for the exercise price. and (ii} the second occurring on the date of a subsequent action,
within 10 days, to select a later grant date closing stock price to be used for the exercisc price. Therefore, the
Company determined that the aggregate 54 Annual Cycle Option grants 1o Senior Executives on May 9,
1996. May 10. 1999 and June 13, 2002, should be accounted for as a repricing of options for which a
measurement date had previously been established on May 6, 1996. May 3. 199Y. and June 3, 2002.
respectively. Generally accepted accounting principles in effect at the time require a change from fixed to
variable accounting for the 1999 and 2002 repricings, bul not for the 1996 repricing. The incremental
cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes from March 1. 1996, through June 30. 2006, related
to accounting for these Annual Cycle Option grants to Senior Executives as repricings was approximately

$10 million.




Annual Cycle Options Granted to Other Employees.

In cach of the years from 1996 through 2005, there were changes, after the grant date, in the list of
Annual Cycle Options to be granted to Other Employees. Therefore, the measurement date for all of the
7,562 Annual Cycle Options (excluding the 260 French grants discussed below) granted to Other Employees
in those years was changed to be the first date upon which the list was determined with finality. Of these
grants, 3,891 had a lower closing stock price on the new measurement dates than on the related grant dates,
which did not result in any additional compensation expense. The remaining 3,671 grants did, however,
except as set forth below, result in additional compensation expense amortized over the vesting period.

The new measurement date for the 2001 Annual Cycle Options granted to Other Employees resulted in
a repricing requiring variable accounting. On October 29, 2001, the Company commenced an exchange offer
(the 2001 Exchange Offer) pursuant to which employees could elect to cancel unexercised options with an
exercise price per share of $70 or more in exchange for new options. The 2001 Exchange Offer was
specifically designed so that no employee eligible to participate was granted any options during the period
beginning six months before the commencement of the 2001 Exchange Offer and ending six months after the
option cancellation date. Although the grant date of the Annual Cycle Options granted to Other Employees
in 2001 precedes the 2001 Exchange Offer commencement date by more than six months, the new
measurement date of these Annual Cycle Options does not. Consequently, certain of these options were
treated as a repricing of options held by the same optionee which were cancelled in the 2001 Exchange Offer.
The remaining 2001 Annual Cycle Options which were not treated as a repricing also resulted in additional
compensation expense, since the new measurement date had a higher closing stock price than the grant date.
The incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes through June 30, 2006, related to
changing the measurement date of the 2001 Annual Cycle Options granted to Other Employees, and
accounting for such options as a repricing was approximately $21 million, including approximately $19
million attributable to variable accounting,

By 2006, the Company had revised the annual grant process, and the measurement date of the Annual
Cycle Options granted to Other Employees on May 22, 2006, is the same as the grant date.

The foregoing description excludes all Annual Cycle Options granted to Other Employees subject to
French taxes (French Options). The Company has a French sub-plan pursuant to which it grants French
Options addressing French tax consequences. One of the requirements for these options is that they not be
granted during a “closed period,” as defined under French tax law. Until recently, the Company understood
that the closed period included, among other periods, the 10-trading day period before and after the
Company made a material announcement. Since the Company did not determine the grant date of French
Options until it had confirmed that no material announcement was made during the following 10 trading
days, the measurement date for all of the 260 French Option grants made during the Relevant Period has
been changed. The Company currently believes that the closed period does not include the 10-day period
after a material announcement (other than an earnings release or the filing of a Form 10-K or Form 10-Q).

The incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes from March 1, 1996, through
June 30, 2006, related to Annual Cycle Option grants to Other Employees, including the $21 million relating
to the 2001 Annual Cycle Options discussed above, constitutes approximately $47 million of the total $70
million incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes.

Discounted Options and Restricted Stock

The Company has identified 105 Discounted Options granted on four dates between May 3, 2000, and
May 12, 2004, in which the identity of the optionee or the number of shares underlying the option was not
determined with finality until after the grant date. The incremental cumulative non-cash compensation
expense before taxes from May 3, 2000, through December 29, 2006, related to changing the measurement
dates for these Discounted Options grants was approximately $1 million,

In 2005 and 2006, the Company granted restricted stock and restricted stock units, respectively, in lieu of
a cash bonus. Sixteen of the restricted stock awards in 2005 were not determined with finality until after the
grant date, and the Company recorded an incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before
taxes from March 1, 1996, through December 29, 2006, related to accounting for the change in the
measurement dates for these restricted stock awards of less than $50,000. This amount has been included in
the aggregate incremental compensation expense amounts related to stock options.




The Company has also determined it had incorrectly reversed accruals for certain management bonuses
which had been exchanged for discounted options and awards. The previously stated allocation of the $68
million incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes from March 1, 1996, through
December 29, 2006, related to stock options includes the resulting increase or decrease in compensation
expense for each period affected. The cumulative impact of the bonus accrual adjustments through June 30,
2006, was approximately $4 million.

By 2006, the Company had revised the process for granting and accounting for equity in lieu of a cash
bonus, and the measurement date of the restricted stock units awarded on May 22, 2006, in lieu of a cash
bonus is the same as the grant date.

Other Options

During the Relevant Period, the Company issued 4,168 Other Option grants to new hires and for
promotions, special recognition and other reasons. Of these, the Company identified 931 which were granted
to new hires who joined the Company through an acquisition, or through an outsourcing by their former
employer, in which the measurement date should be a date other than the grant date. Although the
acquisition or outsourcing agreement generally set forth the aggregate number of option shares to be granted
to the new employees, the specific allocation among employees was often not finalized until after the grant
date.

The Company has also identified 320 additional Other Option grants in which the measurement date
should be a date other than the grant date, and two Other Option grants which should have been accounted
for as repricings requiring variable accounting. These Other Option grants were primarily made to new hires
or for promoticns or special recognition.

By 2006, the Company had revised the processes for granting Other Options, and the measurement date
of all Other Options granted after April 3, 2006, other than those granted to French employees, is the same as
the grant date. The incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes from March 1,
1996, through June 30, 2006, related to Other Option grants was approximately $8 million.

Changes in Option Grant Procedure

Other than options granted to French employees, the Company has not identified any stock option
grants made after April 3, 2006, that were accounted for incorrectly. In order to provide greater predictability
and transparency in the Company’s equity granting process, however, the Board of Directors adopted an
Equity Grant Policy on February 23, 2007. The Policy Statement provides that:

+ all terms of each equity grant must be approved on or prior to the grant date:

+ all stock options must have an exercise price equal to or greater than the closing market price on the
grant date;

¢ there will be a fixed, monthly grant date for all equity grants other than those issued to new hires who
become CSC employees through a merger. acquisition or outsourcing;

» all recipients of equity grants must be notified of such grants as soon as possible after approval, and
the Company must use reasonable efforts to notify such recipients on or prior to the grant date:

» there is an approval matrix for all equity grants;

» the Compensation Committee must approve an annual equity grant budget that cannot be exceeded
without its prior approval; and

s the Company’s management must make a report to the Compensation Committee, within two weeks
after the end of each quarter, of all equity grants issued during the quarter.

The Company has restated previously filed financial statements in this Form 10-K. Adjustments to net
income amounted to $15.2 million and §7.3 million, respectively, for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006
and April 1, 2005.




The incremental impact from recognizing stock-based compensation expense resulting from the investi-
gation of past stock option grants is as follows (dollars in millions):

Pre-Tax  After Tax

Fiscal Year Expense  Expense
L I A $ 4 $ 3
2 2 1.8 1.4
100 e e e 32 1.6
2000 . e e 8.7 11.6
2000 e e e e e i 2.8 6.0
2002 e e e e e 16.8 11.8
1 R I (6.5) {4.0)
T 141 _89
Total 1997 - 2004 IMPact .. .o.viviniiin it aariaiaeanas 413 376
2000 L et e 8.5 7.3
200B . . e i _206 _15.2
0+ $70.4 $60.1

) Additionally, the Company has restated the pro forma expense under Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123 in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form
10-K to reflect the impact of these adjustments for the years ended March 31, 2006 and April 1, 2005.
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PART 1
Item 1. Business
INTRODUCTION AND HISTORY

General

Computer Sciences Corporation {CSC or the Company) is one of the world leaders in the information
technology (1/T) and professional services industry. Since it was founded in 1959, the Company has helped
clients use I/T more efficiently in order to improve their operations and profitability, achieve business results
and focus on core compelencies.

CSC offers a broad array of services to clients in the Global Commercial and government markets and
specializes in the application of complex I/T to achieve its customers’ strategic objectives. Its service offerings
include information technology and business process outsourcing. and 1/T and professional services.

Outsourcing involves operating all or a portion of a customer’s technology infrastructure, including
systems analysis, applications development, network operations, desktop computing and data center man-
agement. CSC also provides business process outsourcing, managing key functions for clients, such as
procurement and supply chain, call centers and customer relationship management, credit services, claims
processing and logistics.

I/T and professional services include systems integration, consulting and other professional services.
Systems integration encompasses designing, developing, implementing and integrating complete information
systems. Consulting and professional services includes advising clients on the strategic acquisition and
utilization of I/T and on business strategy, security. modeling, simulation, engineering, operations, change
management and business process reengineering.

The Company also licenses sophisticated software systems for the financial services markets and
provides a broad array of end-to-end e-business solutions that mect the needs of large commercial and
government clients. The Company focuses on delivering results by combining business innovation skills with
seasoned delivery expertise to provide flexible and scalable solutions. To do so, CSC draws on its vast
experience in designing, building and maintaining large, complex, mission-critical systems and applies this
knowledge to today’s business challenges.

CSC does not have exclusive agreements with hardware or software providers and believes this vendor
neutrality enables it to better identify and manage solutions specifically tailored to each client’s needs.

Major Markets

CSC provides its services to clients in Global Commercial industries and to the U5, federal and foreign
government. Segment and geographic information is included in Note 16 to the notes to consolidated
financial stalements for the year ended March 30, 2007.

In the Global Commercial market sector. CSC's service offerings are delivered to clients in a wide array
of industries including acrospace/defense, automotive, chemical and resources, consumer goods, financial
services, healthcare. manufacturing, retail/distribution, telecommunications, and technology. The Company’s
Global Commercial market sector also includes U.S. local and foreign government clients.

The Company has provided I/T services to the U.S. federal government since 1961. is a leading federal
contractor and is one of its top I/T service providers. CSC serves a broad federal customer base. including
most civil departments and branches of the military. as well as the Department of Homeland Security. The
Company provides a broad spectrum of services to the U.S. federal government, ranging from traditional
systems integration and outsourcing to complex project management and technical services. Key offerings
include enterprise modernization, telecommunications and networking, managed services, base and range
operations, and training and simulation.

Geographically, CSC has major operations throughout North America, Europe and the Asia-Pacific
region, including India.



During the last three fiscal years, the Company’s revenue mix by major markets was as follows:

2007 2006 2005
U.S. Commercial ... 26% 28% 27%
BUurope . ... e 28 28 31
Other International ..................co i, _10 _9 _9
Global Commercial ......... ... ... ..o L. 64 65 67
U.S. Federal Government ..., 36 35 33
Total Revenues ........covviriiiiiiiiieiiiaiaainnns 100% 100% 100%

Fiscal 2007 Overview

During fiscal 2007, CSC announced awards valued at approximately $16.9 billion, including $9.2 biilion
of Global Commercial awards and $7.7 billion with the U.S. federal government. These multi-year awards
represent the estimated value of the Company’s portion at contract signing. They cannot be considered firm
orders, however, due to their variable attributes, including demand-driven usage, modifications in scope of
work due to changing customer requirements, the annual funding constraints and indefinite delivery/
indefinite quantity characteristics of major portions of the Company’s U.S. federal activities.

During April 2006, the Company implemented a restructuring program which is expected to positively
impact future cash flow and earnings, enhancing shareholder value. The program is designed to streamline
CSC’s global operations and increase the use of lower cost resources, and involves workforce reductions
during fiscal 2007 and 2008 to address excess capacity in certain geographies. Restructuring charges consist
predominantly of severance and related employee payments resulting from termination. As a result, during
fiscal 2007, the company incurred pre-tax restructuring charges of $333.4 million.

During fiscal 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of Datatrac Information Services, Inc., a
privately held U.S. government services and solutions provider headquartered in Richardson, Texas for an
initial purchase price of $123.8 million. The acquisition expands the Company’s I/T Solutions services within
the North American Public Sector, and strengthens CSC’s ability to compete for work within the U.S.
Department of Homeland Security and other government agencies. For further discussion, please see Note 4
to the notes to consolidated financial statements.

Global Commercial Market Highlights

Within the Global Commercial market, there were several significant awards to CSC during fiscal 2007.
Many of the Company’s awards were extensions and/or expansions of existing relationships, a clear indica-
tion of customer satisfaction.

CSC’s largest commercial award during fiscal 2007 was the 9 year, $3.7 billion contract with the United
Kingdom’s National Health Service. Under this agreement CSC assumes the role of primary contractor from
Accenture Ltd. for two additional regions for the implementation of a record keeping system for the National
Health Service.

CSC signed a $330 million, 7 year agreement with TDC, the largest telecommunications company in
Denmark. Under the seven year contract, CSC will provide the full scope of I/T infrastructure services
including desktop, helpdesk, data center and local area networking services.

CSC entered into a $378 million, 8 year agreement with Blue Scope Steel, Ltd, a leading international
flat steel solutions company. CSC will be responsible for managing and delivering a diverse set of I/T services
ranging from consulting, applications development and support, disaster recovery, systems integration and
end-user services on a variety of technology platforms.

2




CSC signed a $275 million, 7 year contract with UK visas, a joint UK Home Office and Foreign and
Commonwealth Office directorate which operates as the overseas arm of the United Kingdom’s integrated
border management. CSC will establish Visa Application Centers in three regions covering 15 countries in
the Europe, Americas and North African regions.

CSC entered into a $180 million, 7 year I/T services agreement with Newmont Mining Corporation, one
of the world's largest gold mining companies. Under the agreement, CSC will manage operations for all of
Newmont's global shared services operations and regional gold mining facilities, including locations in
Denver, Nevada, Ghana, Peru and Australia. CSC will also be responsible for Newmont’s enterprise-wide
infrastructure, which includes help desk. desktop. network, and telecommunications, and security services. as
well as server support and applications maintenance.

North American Public Sector Highlights

The North American Public Sector (formerly the U.S. Federal Sector) had several significant awards
during fiscal 2007 from the U.S. federal government.

The Company’s largest U.S. federal government award during the fiscal year was the $2.0 billion, 3 to 6
year contract with the U.S. Army. The Company is one of 11 firms that have been awarded an Information
Technology Enterprise Solutions-2 Services contract by the U.S. Army Contracting Agency on behalf of the
Army’s Program Executive Office for Enterprise Information Systems. Under the agreement. CSC will
provide a comprehensive range of I/T services to support the Army’s enterprise infrastructure worldwide.

CSC signed an $800 million, 4 year contract with the U.S. Agency for International Development. CSCis
one of 5 firms that have becn awarded a Principal Resource for Information Management Enterprise-wide
blanket purchase agrecment by U.S. Agency for International Development. CSC will provide a comprehen-
sive range of I/T support services in support of USAID’s mission to provide economic development and
humanitarian assistance around the world.

CSC entered into a $378 million, 6.5 year agreement with the U.S. Air Force. Under the agreement CSC
will provide technical and business transformation services for the U.S. Air Force Expeditionary Combat
Support System. The Company will also be the prime systems integrator and provide logistics business
process redesign and commercial off-the-shelf enterprise resource planning services.

CSC also signed a $151 million, 5 year contract with the Department of Defense’s Missile Defense
Agency. The Company will provide scientific, engineering and technical assistance for the U.S. Ballistic
Missile Defense System.

COMPETITION

The I/T and professional services markets in which CSC competes are not dominated by a single
company or a small number of companies. A substantial number of companies offer services that overlap and
are competitive with those offered by the Company. Some of these are large industrial firms, including
computer manufacturers and major acrospace firms that may have greater financial resources than CSC and.
in some cases. may have greater capacily (o perform services similar to those provided by the Company. The
increased importance of offshore labor centers has brought a number of foreign-based firms into competition
with CSC.

CSC's ability to obtain business is dependent upon its ability to offer better strategic concepts and
technical solutions, better value, a quicker response, more flexibility or a combination of these factors. In the
opinion of the Company’s management, CSC is positioned to compete effectively in the Global Commercial
and U.S. federal government markets based on its technology and systems expertise and large project
management skills. It is also management’s opinion that CSC’s competitive position is enhanced by the full
spectrum of I/T and professional services it provides, from consulting to software and systems design,
implementation and integration, to information technology and business process outsourcing to technical
services, delivered to a broad commercial and government customer base.

3



EMPLOYEES

The Company has offices worldwide, and as of March 30, 2007 employed approximately 79,000 persons.
The services provided by CSC require proficiency in many fields, such as computer sciences, programming,
mathematics, physics, engineering, astronomy, geology, operations, research, economics, statistics and busi-
ness administration.

U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION REPORTS

All of the Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current
Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports, filed with or furnished to the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on or after January 19, 1995 are available free of charge through the
Company’s Internet website, www.csc.com, as soon as reasonably practical after the Company has electroni-
cally filed such material with, or furnished it to, the SEC.

FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

All statements and assumptions contained in this Annual Report and in the documents attached or
incorporated by reference that do not directly and exclusively relate to historical facts constitute “forward-
looking statements™ within the meaning of the Safe Harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. These statements represent current expectations and beliefs of CSC, and no assurance
can be given that the results described in such statements will be achieved.

Forward-looking information contained in these statements include, among other things, statements
with respect to CSC’s financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, business strategies, operating
efficiencies or synergies, compelitive positions, growth opportunities, plans and objectives of management,
and other matters. Such statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, uncertainties and other
factors, many of which are outside of CSC’s control, which could cause actual results to differ materially from
the results described in such statements. These factors include without limitation those listed below under
Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Forward-locking statements in this Annual Report speak only as of the date of this Annual Report, and
forward-looking statements in documents attached or incorporated by reference speak only as to the date of
those documents. CSC does not undertake any obligation to update or release any revisions to any forward-
looking statement or to report any events or circumstances after the date of this Annual Report or to reflect
the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law.




Item 1A. Risk Factors

Past performance may not be a reliable indicator of future financial performance. Future performance
and historical trends may be adversely affected by the following factors, as well as other variables, and should
not be relied upon to project future period results.

1. Our business may be adversely impacted as a result of changes in demand, both globally and in
individual market segments, for information technology outsourcing, business process outsourcing
and consulting and systems integration services.

Economic and political uncertainty adversely impact our customers’ demand for our services. A
general economic downturn may adversely impact our customers’ demand for consulting and
systems integration services, Our federal government segment generated approximately 36.1% of
our revenue for fiscal 2007. While the pipeline for government projects continues to be robust. the
budget deficit, the cost of rebuilding infrastructure as a result of natural disasters and the cost of
reconstruction in Iraq may reduce the federal government’s demand for information technology
projects, adversely impacting our federal government segment and our business.

2. Our ability to continue to develop and expand our service offerings to address emerging business
demands and technological trends will impact our future growth. If we are not successful in
meeting these business challenges our results of operations and cash flows will be materially and
adversely affected.

Our ability to implement solutions for our customers incorporating new developments and
improvements in technology which translate into productivity improvements for our customers and
1o develop service offerings that meet the current and prospective customers’ needs are critical to
our success. The markets we serve are highly competitive. Our competitors may develop solutions
or services which make our offerings obsolete, Qur ability to develop and implement up to date
solutions utilizing new technologies which meet evolving customer needs in consulting and systems
integration and technology outsourcing markets will impact our future revenue growth and
earnings.

3. Qur primary markets, technology outsourcing and consulting and systems integration, are highly
competitive markets. If we are unable to compete in these highly competitive markets our results of
operations will be materially and adversely affected.

Our competitors include large, technically competent and well capitalized companies. As a result,
the markets which we serve are highly competitive. This competition may place downward pressure
on operating margins in our industry, particularly for technology outsourcing contract extensions or
renewals, As a result we may not be able to maintain our current operating margins for technology
outsourcing contracts, extended or renewed in the future.

Any reductions in margins will require that we elfectively manage our cost structure, If we fail to
effectively manage our cost structure during periods with declining margins our results of operations
will be adversely affected.

4. Our ability to consummate and integrate acquisitions may materially and adversely affect our
profitability if we fail (0 achieve anticipated revenue improvements and cost reductions.

Our ability (o successfully integrate the operations we acquire and leverage these operations to
generate revenue and earnings growth will significantly impact future revenue and earnings.
Integrating acquired operations is a significant challenge and there is no assurance that the
Company will be able to manage the integrations successfully. Failure to successfully integrate
acquired operations may adversely affect our cost structure thereby reducing our margins and
return on investment.




5.

Our customers may experience financial difficulties and we may not be able to collect our
receivables, materially and adversely affecting our profitability.

Over the course of a long-term contract our customers’ financial fortunes may change affecting their
ability to pay their obligations and our ability to collect our fees for services rendered. Additionally,
we may perform work for the federal government, for which we must file requests for equitable
adjustment or claims with the proper agency to seek recovery in whole or in part for out-of-scope
work directed or caused by the customers in support of their critical missions. While we may resort
to other methods to pursue our claims or collect our receivables these methods are expensive and
time consuming and success is not guaranteed. Failure to collect our receivables or prevail on our
claims would have an adverse affect on our profitability.

. If we are unable to accurately estimate the cost of services and the timeline for completion of

contracts the profitability of our contracts may be materially and adversely affected.

Our commercial and federal government contracts are typically awarded on a competitive basis.
Our bids are based upon, among other items, the cost to provide the services. To generate an
acceptable return on our investment in these contracts we must be able to accurately estimate our
costs to provide the services required by the contract and to be able to complete the contracts in a
timely manner. If we fail to accurately estimate our costs or the time required to complete a contract
the profitability of our contracts may be materially and adversely affected.

We are defendants in pending litigation which may have a material and adverse impact on our
profitability.

As noted in Item 3, Legal Proceedings, of this Form 10-K we are currently party to a number of
disputes which involve or may involve litigation. We are not able to predict the ultimate outcome of
these disputes or the actual impact of these matters on our profitability. If we agree to settle these
matters or judgments secured against us we will incur charges which may have a material and
adverse impact on our liguidity and earnings.

We are engaged in providing services under contracts with the U.S. Government. These contracts
are subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and, from time to time, agencies of the
U.S. Government investigate whether our operations are being conducted in accordance with these
requirements. U.S. Government investigations of us, whether related to the Company’s federal
government contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in administrative, civil or criminal
liabilities, including repayments, fines or penalties being imposed upon us, or could lead to
suspension or debarment from future U.S. Government contracting.

Qur ability to provide our customers with competitive services is dependent on our ability to attract
and retain qualified personnel.

Our ability to grow and provide our customers with competitive services is partially dependent on
our ability to attract and retain highly motivated people with the skills to serve our customers. As we
noted above, the markets we serve are highly competitive and competition for skilled employees in
the technology outsourcing and consulting and systems integration markets is intense for both on-
shore and off-shore locales.




9.

10.

11

12,

Our international operations are exposed to risks, including fluctuations in exchange rates, which
may be bevond our control.

For fiscal 2007 we earned approximately 38% of revenues in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.
As a result we are exposed Lo various risks associated with operating in multiple countries including
exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. While this risk is partially mitigated by largely
matching costs with revenues in a given currency, our exposure to fluctuations in other currencies
against the U.S. dollar increases as revenue in currencies other than the U.S. dollar increase and as
more of the services we provide shifted to lower cost regions of the world. We project that the
percentage of our revenue denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar will continue to
represent a significant portion of our revenue. Also. we project that some of our ability to match
revenue and expenses in a given currency will decrease as more work is performed at offshore
locations.

We operate in 55 countries and our operations in these countries are subject to the local legal and
political environments. Our operations are subject to among other things, employment. taxation,
statutory reporting, trade restrictions and other regulations. In spite of our best efforts we may not
be in compliance with all regulations around the world and may be subject to penalties and or fines
as a result. These penalties or fines may materially and adversely impact our profitability.

Our ability to compete in certain markets we serve is dependent on our ability to continue to
expand our capacity in certain offshore locations. However, as our presence in these locations
increases we are exposed to risks inherent to these locations which may adversely impact our
revenue and profitability.

A significant portion of our application outsourcing and software development activities have been
shifted to India and we plan to continue to expand our presence there. As such, we are exposed 10
the risks inherent to operating in India including 1) a highly competitive labor market for skilled
workers which may result in significant increases in labor costs as well as shortages of qualified
workers in the future, 2) the tax holiday granted by certain tax jurisdictions in India to the
Company, which currently extend through 2010, may not be extended or may be revoked resulting
in an increase in income tax expense, 3) the possibility that the U.S. federal government or the
European Union may enact legislation which may provide significant disincentives to customers to
offshore certain of their operations which would reduce the demand for the services we provide in
India and may adversely impact our cost structure and profitability.

In the course of providing services to customers we may inadvertently infringe on the intellectual
property rights of others and be exposed to claims for damages.

The solutions we provide o our customers may inadvertently infringe on the intellectual property
rights of third parties resulting in claims for damages against us or our customers. Our contracts
generally indemnify our clients from claims for intellectual property infringement for the services
and equipment we provide under our contracts. The expense and time of defending against these
claims may have a material and adverse impact on our profitability. Additionally, the publicity we
may receive as a result of infringing intellectual property rights may damage our reputation and
adversely impact our ability to develop new business.

Generally our contracts contain provisions under which a customer may terminate the contract
prior to completion. Early contract terminations may materially and adversely affect our revenues
and profitability.

Our contracts contain provisions by which customers may terminate the contract prior to comple-
tion of the term of the contract. These contracts generally allow the customer to terminate the
contract for convenience upon providing written notice. In these cases we seek, either by defined
contract schedules or through negotiations. recovery of our investments in the contracts. There is no
assurance we will be able to fully recover our investments.
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13.

4.

I5.

16.

We may not be able to replace the revenue and earnings from these contracts in the short-term. In
the long-term our reputation may be harmed by the publicity generated from contract terminations.

We may be exposed to negative publicity and other potential risks if we are unable to maintain
effective internal controls.

We are required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 to provide a report from management to our
shareholders on our internal controls over financial reporting including an assessment of the
effectiveness of these controls to provide reasonable assurance a material misstatement did not
occur in our financial statements. The failure of our controls to provide reasonable assurance that a
material misstatement does not exist or to detect a material misstatement may cause us to be unable
to meet our filing requirements and the resulting negative publicity may adversely affect our
business, and our stock price may be materially and adversely affected.

We have identified a material weakness related to accounting for income taxes and concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of March 30, 2007. Inability to
maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect our financial
results, the market price of our common stock or our operations.

The Company has identified a material weakness refated to accounting for income taxes and, as a
result, has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting as of March 30, 2007 was not
effective. Remediation of this material weakness may be costly and time consuming. Inability to
maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could adversely affect our financial
results, the market price of our common stock or our operations.

COur largest customer, the U.S. federal government, accounts for a significant portion of our revenue
and earnings. Inherent in the government contracting process are various risks which may materi-
ally and adversely affect our business and prafitability.

A significant portion of our revenue, approximately 36.1%., is derived from contracts with the U.S.
federal government. As a result our exposure to the risks inherent in the government contracting
process is material. These risks include government audits of billable contract costs and reimburs-
able expenses, project funding and requests for equitable adjustment, compliance with government
reporting requirements as well as the consequences if improper or illegal activities are discovered.

If any of these should occur our reputation may be adversely impacted and our relationship with the
government agencies we work with damaged resulting in a material and adverse affect on our
profitability.

Our ability to raise additional capital for future needs will impact our ability to compete in the
markets we serve.

We may require additional capital to purchase assets, complete strategic acquisitions, repurchase
shares on the open market or for general liquidity needs. Declines in our credit rating or limits on
our ability to sell additional shares may adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital or
materially increase our cost of capital. Our inability to raise additional capital at a reasonable cost
may adversely impact our revenue growth and the price of our stock,

17. Asaresult of the delaved filing of our Form 10-Q for the quarter ending December 29, 2006, we are

currently ineligible to use Form §-3 to register securities with the SEC in capital-raising transac-
tions, which may adversely affect our cost of future capital,

As a result of the delayed filing of our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 29, 2006, we are
ineligible to use Form S-3 to register securities for sale by us or for resale by other security holders,
in capital raising transactions, until we have timely filed all periodic reports under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 for at least 12 calendar months following March 5, 2007, the date our Form
10-Q for the quarter ended December 29, 2006 was filed. In the meantime, for capital raising
transactions we would need to use Form S$-1 to register securities with the SEC, or issue such
securities in a private placement, which could increase the costs of raising capital during this period.
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I8.

19.

Our future profitability may be marerially and adversely affected if we fail to execute according to
plan the restructuring announced by the Company on April 4, 2006.

The Company announced a restructuring plan in April 2006, to be carried out during fiscai 2007 and
2008. The restructuring will result in an estimated pre-tax charge of $440 million and have resulted
in cost savings of $180 million and an estimated $340 million during fiscal 2007 and 2008, respec-
tively. The majority of the restructuring activities involve employees in central and southern Europe
with certain aspects of the restructuring subject to negotiation with employee works councils.
Additionally, certain restructured activities will be centralized or transitioned to other locales
requiring the transfer of knowledge. If we fail to execute our restructuring plan and achieve the cost
savings we have estimated our margins and profitability will be materially and adversely affected.

Our performance on contracts on which we have partnered with third parties may be adversely
affected if the third parties fail to deliver on their commitments.

Qur contracts are increasingly complex and require that we partner with parties including software
and hardware vendors to provide the complex solutions required by our customers. Our ability to
deliver the solution and provide the services required by our customers is dependent on the ability
of our partners to meet their delivery schedules. If our partners fail to deliver their services or
products on time our ability to complete the contract may be adversely affected which may have a
material and adverse impact on our revenue and profitability.

If we are the primary contractor and our partners fail to perform as agreed we may be liable to our
customers for penalties or lest profits. These penalties or payments for lost profits may have a
material and adverse affect on our profitability.



Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

Approximate
Owned properties as of March 30, 2007 Square Footage General Usage
Blythewood, South Carolina ....................ccoiiiiinas. 456,000 Computer and General Office
Falls Church, Virginia ... e 401,000 General Office
Copenhagen, Denmark ....... ... ... o 368,000 Computer and General Office
Aldershot, United Kingdom ................oo i iiiiiient. 268,000 General Office
El Segundo, California .............oviiiiiiiiiiiiiia 206,000 General Office
AUSHN, TEXaS o oottt it ie st r et s 203,000 General Office
Newark, Delaware .. ... ... e e 176,000 Computer and General Office
Taastrup, Denmark ... 147,000 Computer and General Office
Norwich, CoOnnectiCul .. ...ttt eaaeeeaeeanns 144,000 Computer and General Office
Daleville, Alabama ...... ..ottt e innrran e 137,000 General Office
Petaling Jaya, Malaysia .............. ... ... ...l 136,000 Computer and General Office
Berkeley Heights, New Jersey...............oooiiiiiiiinn s 119,000 Computer and General Office
Meriden, Connecticut ... .ovutrriiiii it ie s raarerterranns 118,000 Computer and General Office
Aaurus, Denmark .. ... e e e 101,000 General Office
Moorestown, New JErsey . ... iiniiiiiiiiiiiinen.. 99,000 General Office
Chesterfield, United Kingdom ..................ooooaes 80,000 Computer and General Office
Maidstone, United Kingdom .............oooviiiiiiiiiniien.. 79,000 Computer and General Office
Hong Kong, China . ........ .. i i e, 74,000 General Office
Jacksonville, TIHNOIS . .. ... v e e i v e e 60,000 General Office
SIngapore .. ... ... 46,000 General Office
Turnbridge, United Kingdom ...t 43,000 General Office
Sterling, Virginia......o.ooveiiiiii it e 41,000 General Office
Various other U.S. and foreign locations .................. ... ... 83,000 General Office
Leased properties as of March 30, 2007
Washington, D.C.area ... e 2,679,000 Computer and General Office
3¢ T- 819,000 Computer and General Office
India. ... e 726,000 Computer and General Office
Australia & other Pacific Rim locations .. ....................... 672,000 General Office
GeIMANY ..ottt e 632,000 General Office
England ... ... . e 588,000 Computer and General Office:
L] 11T TS A 584,000 General Office
NEW JEISBY o vttt it i e 401,000 General Office
03 4T 1T - 381,000 General Office
|15 ¢V T ) o S 374,000 General Office
L0511 (o) 1 1 - AU 350,000 General Office
Florida . .o e e e e 311,000 General Office
NEW YOTK oottt i ittt e e e 295,000 General Office
COMNECHCUL ...ttt ittt et ettt aeran e 287,000 General Office
L8 1143 5T 285,000 General Office
Dl aWaIE . vttt e e e 262,000 General Office
|25 721 1ot = S 232,000 General Office
] 3 P 226,000 General Office
SwWeden ... e e e 214,000 General Office
AlADama .o e e e 211,000 General Office
MasSat SIS « ittt et et et e e 203,000 General Office
Various other U.S. and foreign locations . ....................... 2,528,000 Computer and General Office

Upon expiration of its leases, the Company does not anticipate any difficulty in obtaining renewals or
alternative space. Lease expiration dates range from fiscal 2008 through 2018,
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

CSC is engaged in providing services under contracts with the U.S. Government. The contracts are
subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and, from time to time, agencies of the U.S.
Government investigate whether the Company’s operations are being conducted in accordance with these
requirements. U.S. Government investigations of the Company. whether related to the Company's federal
government contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in administrative, civil or criminal
liabilities, including repayments, fines or penalties being imposed upon the Company, or could lead to
suspension or debarment from future U.S. Government contracting. The Company believes it has adequately
reserved for any losses which may be experienced from these investigations.

In the course of business, discrepancies or claims may arise as to the use or reliability of various software
products provided by the Company for its customers. During 2005, the Company was named, along with
other vendors to the insurance industry and dozens of insurance companies in Hensley, et al. vs. Computer
Sciences Corporation, et al.. filed as a putative nationwide class action in state court in Miller County,
Arkansas shortly before President Bush signed the Class Action Fairness Act into law. The plaintiffs allege
the defendants conspired to wrongfully use software products licensed by the Company and the other
software vendors to reduce the amount paid to the licensees’ insureds for bodily injury claims. Plaintiffs also
allege wrongful concealment of the manner in which these software programs evaluate claims and wrongful
concealment of information about alleged inherent errors and flaws in the software. Plaintiffs seck injunctive
and monetary relief of less than $75.000 for each class member, as well as attorney’s fees and costs. The
Company is vigorously defending itself against the allegations.

Litigation is inherently uncertain and it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of the matters
discussed above. Considering the early stage of the Hensley case, the complicated issues presented by that
matter, and the fact that no class has been certified, it is not possible at this time to make meaningful
estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from this matter. It is possible that the Company’s
business, financial condition. results of operations. or cash flows could be affected by the resolution of this
malter. Whether any losses, damages or remedies ultimately resulting from this proceeding could reasonably
have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows will
depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and amount of such losses or damages, if
any, and the structure and type of any such remedies. Depending on the ultimate resolution of these matters,
some may be material to the Company’s operating results for a particular period if an unfavorable outcome
results, atthough such a material unfavorable result is not presently expected, and all other litigation, in the
aggregale, is not expected to result in a material adverse impact to the consolidated financial statements,

As reflected by Form 8-K filings made by Sears Holdings Corporation (SHC) on May 13, 2005 (following
merger with K-Mart Holding Corporation), and by the Company on May 16, 2005, SHC's subsidiary, Sears.
Roebuck and Co. (Sears), and the Company are in dispute over amounts due and owing and applicable
termination fees following Sears’ termination of its Master Services Agreement (Agreement) with the
Company on May 11, 2005. The dispute which also involves billings for continued services and counterclaim
allegations by Sears of contract breaches is expected to be resotved pursuant to negotiations or legal and
arbitration proceedings. As of March 3(}, 2007, the Company’s investment in net assets associated with the
Agreement was approximately 380 million. These net assets include accounts receivable, prepaid expenses,
outsourcing contract costs, software, and property, plant and equipment. The Company will vigorously
pursue recovery for its associated assets and commitments. While the Company expects full recovery of its
investments associated with this Agreement, if unsuccessful, the Company may experience a charge, which
could be material. associated with the impairment of these assets.
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The Company has converted 16 submitted Requests for Equitable Adjustment (REAs) to interest
bearing claims under the Contract Disputes Act (CDA) totaling in excess of $1 billion on two U.S. Federal
contracts. Included in current assets on the Company’s balance sheet is approximately $820 million of
unbilled accounts receivable and deferred costs related to the contracts. CSC has requested payment for
certain related out-of-scope work directed or caused by the customers in support of their critical missions.
The contractual modification process for scope changes has lagged behind the need for CSC to provide
critical on-going operational support. The Company does not record any profit clement when it defers costs
associated with such REAs/claims. The Company believes it has a legal basis for pursuing recovery of these
REAs/claims and that collection is probable with interest on the claims accruing but not being recognized.
Settlement of the amounts depends on individual circumstances, negotiations with the parties and prosecu-
tion of the claims; we are unable to predict the timing of resolution of these claims.

Several shareholders of the Company have filed purported derivative actions against both the Company,
as nominal defendant, as well as certain of CSC’s executive officers and directors. These actions generally
allege that certain of the individual defendants breached their fiduciary duty to the Company by purportedly
“backdating” stock options granted to CSC executives, improperly recording and accounting for allegedly
backdated stock options, producing and disseminating disclosures that improperly recorded and accounted
for the allegedly backdated options, engaging in acts of corporate waste, and committing violations of insider
trading laws. They allege that certain of the defendants were unjustly enriched and seek to require them to
disgorge their profits. The Company and certain directors and other individuals have also been sued in a class
action proceeding alleging violations of the ERISA statute related to claims of alleged backdating of stock
options.

In addition to the matters noted above, the Company is currently party to a number of disputes which
involve or may involve litigation. The Company consults with legal counsel on those issues related to
litigation and seeks input from other experts and advisors with respect to other matters in the ordinary course
of business. Whether any losses, damages or remedies ultimately resulting from such other matters could
reasonably have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operation, or cash
flows will depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and amount of such losses or
damages (if any} and the structure and type of any such remedies. For these reasons, it is not possible to make
reliable estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from these other matters at this time.
Company management does not, however, presently expect any of such other matters to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Year First
Elected as  Term as an Family
Name Age  An Officer Officer Position Held With the Registrant Relationship
Michael W. Laphen®* ... 56 2001 Indefinite  President and Chicef Executive Officer None
Michael E. Keane ....... 31 2006 Indefinite  Vice President and Chief Financial None
Officer
Hayward D. Fisk ........ 64 1989 Indefinite  Vice President, General Counsel and None
Secretary
Harvey N. Bernstein .. .. 60 1988 Indefinite  Vice President, Global Legal Compliance None
& Assistant Secretary
Donald G. DeBuck .. ... 49 2001 Indefinite  Vice President and Controller None
Thomas R. Irvin ........ 58 2004 Indefinite  Vice President and Treasurer None
Paul T. Tucker.......... 59 1997 Indefinite  Vice President, Corporate Development None

* Director of the Company

Business Experience of Officers

Michael W. Laphen joined the Company in 1977 and was clected President and Chief Executive Officer
effective May 22. 2007. He was named a director of the Company in February 2007. He previously served as
President and Chief Operating Officer. He was Vice President from August 2001 to April 2003. He was
President of the European Group from August 2000 to March 2003. Previous positions within the Company
include President of the Federal Sector—Civil Group (1998-20000), and President of Systems
Group—Integrated Systems Division (1992-1998).

Michael E. Keane joined the Company in 2005 as Vice President—Finance and was elected Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer in 2006. Former positions include Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of UNOVA, Inc. (1997-2005). and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Western Atlas Inc (1996-1997).

Hayward D. Fisk joined the Company in 1989 as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Prior
to joining the Company, he was associated for 21 years with Sprint Corporation {formerly United Telecom-
munications. Inc.), in various legal and executive officer positions, most recently as Vice President and
Associate General Counsel.

Harvey N. Bernstein joined the Company as Assistant General Counsel in 1983. He became Vice
President, Global Legal Compliance and Assistant Secretary in 2003 after being clected a Vice President in
1988 and thereafter serving as Deputy General Counsel and Assistant Secretary, Prior to joining the
Company, he specialized in government procurement law at the firm of Fried, Frank. Harris, Shriver &
Jacobson in Washington. D.C.

Donald G. DeBuck joined the Company in 1979 and was elected Vice President and Controller in
August 2001. Previous positions within the Company include Assistant Controller (1998-2001) and Vice
President of Finance and Administration. Communications Industry Services (1996-1998).

Thomas R. Irvin joined the Company as Assistant Treasurer in 1987 and was elected Vice President and
Treasurer in November 2004. Prior to joining the Company. he held various financial and engineering
positions with Ni-Cal Development Corporation, Raytheon and Dravo Corporation.

Paul T. Tucker joined the Company in 1996 as a Corporate Development execulive, and in August 1997
was elected Vice President of Corporate Development. From 1990 to 1995 he was President and Chiefl
Executive Officer of Knight-Ridder Financial. an electronic real-time financial market information company.
Previously, he founded and served as President and Chief Technologist of HAL Communications Corp.. a
communications hardware and software company and was an Associate Professor and Senior Research
Engineer at the University of lllinois.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

(a) Holders

Common stock of Computer Sciences Corporation is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol “CSC.”

As of May 25, 2007 the number of registered shareholders of Computer Sciences Corporation’s common
stock was 8,441. The table shows the high and low intra-day prices of the Company’s common stock as
reported on the composite tape of the New York Stock Exchange for each quarter during the last two
calendar years and through May 25, 2007.

2007 2006 2005
Calendar Quarter High Low High Low _High Low
1o e 5625 5038 59.09 4801 5651 4403
2T e e 59.13* 51.55* 60.39 48.26 48.87 4231
BT e 53.80 4623 4760 4349
A e 5413 4748 5990 4425

* Through May 25, 2007

It has been the Company’s policy to invest earnings in the growth of the Company rather than distribute
earnings as dividends. This policy, under which dividends have not been paid since fiscal 1969, is expected to
continue, but is subject to review by the Board of Directors. Under the Company’s most restrictive covenant
requirement, $4,250.6 million of retained earnings was available for cash dividends at March 30, 2007.

(b} Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information on a monthly basis for the fourth quarter ended March 30,
2007 with respect to the Company’s purchases of equity securities.

Maximum
Total Number Number of
of Shares Shares that
Purchased as May Yet Be

Total Part of Publicly Purchased

Number of Average Announced Under the

Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or

Period Purchased™ Per Share Programs Program
December 29, 2006 to January 26,2007 .......... 2,991,766
January 27, 2007 to February 23,2007............ 170 54.69 2,991,766
February 24, 2007 to March 30,2007 ............. 2,991,766

(1} The Company accepted 170 shares of its common stock in the fourth quarter ended March 30, 2007 from
employees in lieu of cash due to the Company in connection with the exercise of stock options. Such
shares of common stock are stated at cost and held as treasury shares to be used for general corporate
purposes.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on CSC stock during the last five fiscal years
with the cumulative total return on the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the Goldman Sachs
Technology Services Index.

CSC Total Shareholder Return
{Period Ended March 38, 2007)

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

FY2002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007]

—®—C5C ---A---5&P 500 — - X — - Golkdman Sachs Technoiogy Services Index

Indexed Return (2002 = 100)
Return 2003 Return 2004 Return 2005 Return 2006 Return 2007 CAGR

CSC Common Stock ........ -35.86% 24.44% 11.42% 22.30% -6.16% 0.41%
S&PS00 Index .............. -24.76% 35.12% 6.69% 11.73% 11.83% 6.27%
Goldman Sachs Technology

Services Index ............ -44.16% 36.27% 3.06% 21.75% 7.42% 0.51%

Assumes $100 invested on April 1, 2002 in Computer Sciences Corporation Common Stock, the S&P
500 Index, and the Goldman Sachs Technology Services Index. Indexed amounts and return percentages
assume a March 31 fiscal year end.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

Five Year Review

. March 30, March 31, April 1, Ayri] 2, March 28,
In millions except per-share amounts 2007 2006 2005 004 2003
As Restated™P®  As Restated”  As Restated®  As Restated™®
Total Assets..................... $13,730.5 $13,021.7 $12,603.2 $11,752.8 $10,356.7
Debt:
Long-term.................. 1,412.2 1,376.8 1,303.0 2,306.4 2,204.7
Short-term ................. 51.9 56.6 78.4 52.9 2499
Current maturities .......... 41.8 28.7 7.3 7.2 24.7
Total...........c.co.t. 1,505.9 1,462.1 1,388.7 2,366.5 24793
Stockholders’ equity............. 5,885.5 6,505.4 6,314.2 5,367.6 4,469.7
Working capital ................. 1,446.8 1,923.6 1,670.6 1,894.7 1,406.2
Property and equipment:
ALCOSt ..ot 5,612.9 5,367.9 5,520.3 4,988.9 4,131.2
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization ......... 3,073.8 3,047.8 3,154.9 28189 2,152.6
Property and equipment,
1 L) 2,539.1 2,320.1 23654 2,170.0 1,978.6
Current assets to current
liabilities. ..................... 1.3 1.4:1 1.4:1 1.6:1 1.5:1
Debt to total capitalization ...... 204% 18.4% 18.0% 30.6% 35.7%
Book value per share............ $ 3396 $ 3474 $ 33.02 $ 2857 $ 2393
Stock price range (high)......... 60.39 59.90 58.00 47.00 50.10
(low).......... 46.23 42.31 38.07 26.52 2430

() See the “Explanatory Note” immediately preceding Part I, Item 1 and Note 2, “Restatement of
Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

@  The Selected Financial Data for March 31, 2006, April 1, 2005, April 2, 2004 and March 28, 2003 have
been restated to reflect adjustments related to stock-based compensation expense and the associated tax
impact, the correction of errors relating to the accounting for income taxes and the recognition of
revenue for the sale of licenses for a software product, as further described in the “Explanatory Note”
immediately preceding Part I, [tem 1 of this Form 10-K.
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Total Assets........................

Debt:

Long-term.....................
Short-term ....................

Stockholders’ equity................
Working capital ....................

Property and equipment:

ALCOSL ...

Accumulated depreciation and

amortization ................

Property and equipment, net ...
Current assets to current liabilities . ...
Debt to total capitalization .........
Book value per share...............
Stock (high) ........... ...l
Stock (Jow) ...l

Total Assets. . .....................

Debt:

Long-term....................
Short-term ...................

Stockholders’ equity...............
Working capital ............... ...

Property and equipment:

ALCOST i

Accumulated depreciation and

amortization ...............

Property and equipment, net ..
Current assets to current liabilities . . ..
Debt to total capitalization ........
Book value per share..............
Stock (high) ...
Stock {(fow) ...l

Five-Year Review (Continued)

March 31, 2006

Adjustments
Revenue Stock Income
As Reported Recognition  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
. $130296  $(344)  $253 0§ 12 $13.021.7
. 1,376.8 1,376.8
. 56.6 56.6
.. 28.7 28.7
.. 1,462.1 1.462.1
. 6,771.9 (24.0) 253 (267.2) $(0.6)  6,505.4
. 2.164.8 (3.3) (2373) (0.6) 19236
.. 5,367.9 5,367.9
o 30478 30478
- 2,320.1 2,320.1
1.5:1 (0.1l 1.4:1
. 17.8% 0.1 (0.1) 0.6 18.4%

. 36.16 (0.13) 0.14 (1.43) 34.74
.. 59.90 59.90
.. 4231 42.31

April 1, 2005

Adjustments

Revenue Stock Income
As Reported  Recognition  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
- $12,633.9 $(55.4) $206 $ 41 $12,603.2
cen 1,303.0 1,303.0
e 78.4 78.4
e 7.3 7.3
cen 1,388.7 1,388.7
. 6,494.7 (38.2) 206 (162.3) $(0.6) 63142
. 18119 (2.0) (1387) (0.6) 16706
e 5,520.3 5,520.3
. 3,154.9 3,154.9
. 2,365.4 23654
1.5:1 (0.1)1 1.4:1
.. 17.6% 0.1 (0.1) 0.4 18.0%

.. 33.97 (0.20) 0.11 (0.86) 33.02
e 58.00 58.00
- 38.07 38.07
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Five-Year Review (Continued)

Total Assets.......cooviiriinireninn.

Debt:
Long-term.......................
Short-term ......................
Current maturities ...............

Stockholders’ equity..................
Working capital ......................
Property and equipment:
Atcost ...,
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization ..................

Property and equipment, net .. ...
Current assets to current liabilities . ...
Debt to total capitalization ...........
Book value pershare.................
Stock (high) .......... ...l
Stock (low) ..ot

Total Assets.......ovvienrreenannnn..

Debt:
Long-term.......................
Short-termx ...............cout.
Current maturities ...............

Stockholders’ equity..................
Working capital ......................
Property and equipment:
Atcost ..o i
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization ..................

Property and equipment, net .. ...
Current assets to current liabilities . ...
Debt to total capitalization ...........
Book value pershare.................
Stock (high) ...
Stock (low) ...,

April 2, 2004
Adjustments
Revenue Stock Income
As Reported  Recognition  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
$11,8040  $(743) $200 $ 3.1 $11,752.8
2,306.4 2,306.4
529 52.9
7.2 12
2,366.5 2,366.5
5,503.7 (51.1) 200  (105.0) 5,367.6
1,974.1 34 (82.8) 1,894.7
4,988.9 4,988.9 |
2,818.9 __ _28189 1
2,170.0 2,170.0 |
1.6:1 1.6:1
30.1% 0.2 (0.1) 0.4 30.6%
29.30 027N 0.11 {0.57) 28.57 !
47.00 47.00 |
26.52 26.52
March 28, 2003
Adjustments
Revenue Stock Income
As Reported  Recognifion  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
$10,433.2 $(924) $135 $ 24 $10,356.7
2,204.7 2,204.7
249.9 249.9 |
2.7 Y |
2,479.3 2,479.3
4,606.4 (63.5) 13.5 (86.7) 4,469.7
14753 1.9 (71.0) 1,406.2
4,131.2 4,131.2 ‘
|
2,152.6 _ 2,152.6 ‘
1,978.6 1,978.6
1.5:1 151
35.0% 03 (0.1) 05 35.7%
24.66 (0.34) 0.07 (0.46) 23.93
50.10 50.10
24.30 24.30
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Five-Year Review (Continued)

Fiscal Year
In millions except per-share amounts 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
As Restated""? Ay Restated'"® As Restated®  As Restated'?!

Revenues .........ocooveen. .. $14.856.6 $14.639.0 $14,080.0 $13,468.5 $11,167.6
Costs of services (excludes

depreciation and

amortization} ............... 11.817.8 11,724.0 11.320.1 10.834.2 8.931.7
Selling, general and

administrative .............. 916.4 862.5 856.7 804.6 696.2
Depreciation and amortization 1.073.6 1.091.8 1,051.0 966.0 799.7
Interest,net.............. ..., 125.7 80.1 143.3 1623 136.1
Special items.................. 316.1 77.3 28.6 227 1.3
Total costs and expenses....... 14,249.6 13,835.7 13,399.7 12,789.8 10.565.0
Income before taxes........... 607.0 803.3 680.3 678.7 602.6
Taxes on income .............. 218.2 332.2 236.0 2184 185.9
Income from continuing

Operations .................. $ 3888 $§ 4711 § 4443 $ 4603 § 4167
Basic earnings per common

share, continuing operations § 221 $§ 254 § 234 $ 246 242
Diluted earnings per common

share, continuing operations $§ 216 $ 251 - $ 231 $ 24 $ 241
Average common shares

outstanding .. ............... 176.263 185.693 189.575 187.273 172.317
Average common shares

outstanding assuming

dilution..................... 179.733 187.984 191.936 188.648 173.147

Notes:

Fiscal 2007 special items represent charges related to the restructuring and a true-up of an impairment
charge related to the termination of the Nortel Networks contract offset by a gain from the redemption of
Dyncorp International preferred stock.

Fiscal 2006 special items represent charges related to the termination, per an agreement made with
Nortel Networks, of the Company’s services for certain information technology outsourcing activities, see
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. Fiscal 2005 special items represent charges related to the
carly retirement of debt. Fiscal 2004 and 2003 special items relate to exit and disposal activities.

No dividends were paid by CSC during the five vears presented.

The consolidated financial statements included in [tem 8 of this Annual Report present income from
discontinued operations, the gain on sale of discontinued operations. and the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle.

(1) See the “Explanatory Note” immediately preceding Part I, ltem | and Note 2, “Restatement of
Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

) The Selected Financial Data for fiscal years 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 have been restated to reflect
adjustments related to stock-based compensation expense and the associated tax impact, the correction
of errors relating to the accounting for income taxes and the recognition of revenue for the sale of
licenses for a software preduct, as further described in the “Explanatory Note"” immediately preceding
Part I. Item | of the Form 10-K. The following table presents the effects of these adjustments made to the
Company’s previously reported Selected Financial Data for these periods:

19



Five-Year Review (Continued)

Fiscal Year 2006

Adjustments
Revenue Stock Income

In millions except per-share amounts As Reported  Recognition  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
Revenues ..........c.oevveinnia... $14,615.6 $23.4 $14,639.0
Costs of services (excludes

depreciation and amortization) .. ... 11,719.8 $ 43 $(0.1) 11,7240
Selling, general and administrative . . .. 8422 163 $ 40 862.5
Depreciation and amortization ....... 1,091.8 1,091.8
Interest, met..........ovivvvinnnenn.. 63.4 16.7 80.1
Specialitems......................... 77.3 77.3
Total costs and expenses.............. 13,7945 20.6 207 (0.1) 13,8357
Income from continuing operations

before taxes ...l 821.1 23.4 (20.6) 207y 01 803.3
Taxesonincome ..................... 244.1 9.3 {(5.4) 842 332.2
Income from continuing operations . .. 5770 14.1 {(152) (104.9) 0.1 471.1
Basic ..., § 311 $0.08 $(0.08) 3 (0.57) $ 254
Diluted .............oo i $ 307 $0.08 $(0.08) $§ (0.56) § 251
Average common shares outstanding. . 185.693 185.693
Average common shares outstanding

assuming dilution .......... ... ..., 187.695 0.289 187.984

Fiscal Year 2005
Adjustments
Revenue Stock Income

In millions except per-share amounts As Reported  Recognition  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
Revenues ..............cooivninnnn. $14,058.6 $21.4 $14,080.0
Costs of services (excludes

depreciation and amortization) ..... 11,315.1 $ 39 $1.1 11,320.1
Selling, general and administrative . ... 807.8 45 § 444 856.7
Depreciation and amortization ....... 1,051.0 1,051.0
Interest,net..................c.coo.... 140.7 2.6 143.3
Specialitems......................... 28.6 28.6
Total costs and expenses.............. 13,343.2 8.4 47.0 1.1 13,399.7
Income from continuing operations

before taxes .............coiveinns. 715.4 21.4 (8.4) 47.0y (1.1) 680.3
Taxesonincome ..................... 219.0 8.5 {1.1) 10.1 (.5) 236.0
Income from continuing operations . .. 496.4 12.9 (7.3) (57.1) (.6) 4443
Basic ............ i $§ 262 $0.07 $(0.04) $ (0.31) $ 234
Diluted ..., $§ 259 $0.07 $(0.04) $ (031 § 231
Average common shares outstanding. . 189.575 189.575
Average common shares outstanding

assuming dilution ........... ... .. 191.799 0.137 191.936
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Five-Year Review (Continued)

Fiscal Year 2004

Adjustments
Revenne Stock Income

In millions except per-share amounts As Reported  Recognition  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
Revenues ..................ccoovan.. $13,447.9 $20.6 $13,468.5
Costs of services (excludes

depreciation and amortization) ..... 10,828.2 $ 60 10,834.2
Selling, general and administrative . ... 793.7 81 § 28 804.6
Depreciation and amortization ....... 966.0 966.0
Interest,net.....cvviivivvinnnnnnnn. 160.6 1.7 162.3
Special items........................ 22.7 227
Total costs and expenses.............. 12,771.2 14.1 4.5 12,789.8
Income from continuing operations

before taxes .....oovviiiiiiiiiiin, 676.7 20.6 (14.1) (4.5) 678.7
Taxes onincome ..................... 200.5 8.1 (5.2) 140 $1.0 2184
Income from continuing operations . . 476.2 12.5 (8.9) (18.5) (1.0) 460.3
Basic ..ot $ 254 $0.07 $(0.05) § (010) $ 246
Diluted .........oooiiiiiiia $ 252 $0.07 $(0.05) $ (0.10) $ 244
Average common shares outstanding. . 187.273 187.273
Average common shares outstanding

assuming dilution .................. 188.704 (0.056) 188.648

Fiscal Year 2003
Adjustments
Revenue Stock Income

In millions except per-share amounts As Reported  Recognition  Options Taxes Other  As Restated
Revenues ............cooevivennennnn. $11.162.3 $ 53 $11,167.6
Costs of services (excludes

depreciation and amortization) .. ... 8,934.9 $ (3.2) 8931.7
Selling, general and administrative . ... 699.5 (3.3) 696.2
Depreciation and amortization ....... 799.7 799.7
Interest,met.......oonvveneninenennn.. 134.3 $ 18 136.1
Special items......................... 1.3 1.3
Total costs and expenses.............. 10,569.7 {6.3) 1.8 10,565.0
Income from continuing operations

beforetaxes ....................... 592.6 53 6.5 (1.8) 602.6
Taxesonincome ..................... 164.1 2.1 2.5 17.2 1859
Income from continuing operations . .. 428.5 3.2 4.0 (19.0) 416.7
Basic ..........coocii $§ 249 $0.02 $(0.02) § (0.07) § 242
Diluted ........ ... ... § 248 $0.02 $(0.02) $ (0.07) $§ 241
Average common shares outstanding. . 172.317 172.317
Average common shares outstanding

assuming dilution .................. 173.119 0.028 173.147
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Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Qperations

Note: The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tions has been revised for the effects of the restatement discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

GENERAL

The following discussion and analysis provides information management believes is relevant to an
assessment and understanding of the consolidated results of operations and financial condition of Computer
Sciences Corporation (CSC or the Company). The discussion should be read in conjunction with the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended March 30, 2007. There are
three primary objectives of this discussion:

1) to provide a narrative explanation of the consolidated financial statements, as presented through the eyes
of management;

2) to enhance the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and footnotes, providing context
within which the consolidated financial statements should be analyzed; and

3) to provide information to assist the reader in ascertaining the predictive value of the reported financial
results.

To achieve these objectives, the discussion is presented in the following sections:

Overview—includes a brief description of the business and how it earns revenue and generates cash, as
well as a discussion of the key business drivers, economic and industry factors, fiscal 2007 highlights and fiscal
2008 commentary.

Results of Operations—discusses year-over-year changes to operating results for fiscal 2005 to 2007,
describing the factors affecting revenue on a consolidated and reporting segment basis, including new
contracts, acquisitions and currency impacts, and also by describing the factors affecting changes in the major
cost and expense categories.

Financial Condition—discusses causes of changes in cash flows and describes the Company’s liquidity
position and available capital resources.

Critical Accounting Estimates—discusses accounting policies that require critical judgments and
estimates.

OVERVIEW

The Company’s primary service offerings are outsourcing and I/T and professional services. Outsourcing
activities include operating all or a portion of a customer’s technology infrastructure and applications, and
business process outsourcing. I/T and professional services include systems integration, consulting and other
professional services and software systems sales and related services. CSC provides these services to
customers in the Global Commercial and North American Public Sector markets. On a geographic basis,
CSC provides services to Global Commercial customers in the United States, Europe and other international
locations. Operations in Australia, Asia and Canada generate substantially all revenue within Other
International.

Economic and Industry Factors

Global Commercial markets are affected by various economic and industry factors. The economic
environment in the regions CSC serves will impact customers’ decisions for discretionary spending on U/T
projects. CSC is in a highly competitive industry which exerts downward pressure on pricing and requires
companies to continually seek ways to differentiate themselves through several factors, including service
offerings and flexibility. Management monitors industry factors including relative market shares, growth
rates, billing rates, staff utilization rates and margins as well as macroeconomic indicators such as interest
rates, inflation rates and foreign currency rates.

The North American Public Sector market is also highly competitive and has unique characteristics. All
Ui.S. governmenti contracts and subcontracts may be modified, curtailed or terminated at the convenience of
the government if program requirements or budgetary constraints change. In the event that a contract is
terminated for convenience, the Company generally is reimbursed for its allowable costs through the date of
termination and is paid a proportionate amount of the stipulated profit or fee attributable to the work
performed. Shifting priorities of the U.S. government can also impact the future of projects. The Company
recognized the U.S. government’s increased priorities on defense and homeland security programs and has
focused business development efforts in these areas. Management monitors government priorities and
industry factors through numerous industry and government pubiications and forecasts, legislative activity,
budgeting and appropriation processes and by participating in industry professional associations.
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Business Drivers

Revenue is generated by providing services on a variety of contract vehicles lasting from less than six
months to 10 years or more. Factors affecting revenue include:

= the Company’s ability to successfully bid on and win new centract awards,
+ the ability to satisfy existing customers and obtain add-on business and win contract re-competes,
* the ability to compete on price, services offered, technical ability, experience and flexibility,

s the ability to successfully identify and integrate acquisitions and leverage them to generate new
revenues,

* the ability to successfully identify and divest non-core operations which may impact revenue in the
short-term but provide resources to pursue longer-term growth and value creation opportunities, and

¢ currency fluctuations related to international operations.
Earnings are driven by the above revenue factors, in addition to the following:

= the ability to control costs, particularly labor costs, subcontractor expenses and overhead costs
including healthcare, pension and general and administrative costs,

* the ability to anticipate headcount needs to avoid staff shortages or excesses,
* the ability to accurately estimate various factors incorporated in contract bids and proposals, and
 the ability to develop offshore capabilities and migrate compatible service offerings offshore.

Cash flows are impacted by the above earnings factors, in addition to other factors including the
following:

¢ timely management of receivables and payables,

e investment opportunities available, particularly related to business acquisitions and dispositions and
large outsourcing contracts, and

* the ability to efficiently manage capital including debt and equity instruments.

Key Performance Indicators

The Company manages and assesses the performance of its business through various means, with the
primary financial measures including new contract wins, revenue growth, margins, cash flow and return on
investment.

New contract wins—In addition to being a primary driver of future revenue, focusing on new contract
wins also provides management an assessment of the Company’s ability to compete. The total level of wins
tends to fluctuate from year to year depending on the timing of new and recompeted contracts as well as
numerous external factors. CSC employs stringent financial and operational reviews and discipline in the new
contract process to evaluate risks and generate appropriate margins and returns from new contracts.

Revenue growth—Year-over-year revenues tend to vary less than new contract wins, and reflect
performance on both new and existing contracts. With a wide array of services offered, the Company is able
to pursue additional work from existing customers. In addition, incremental increases in revenue will not
necessarily result in linear increases in costs, particularly overhead and other indirect costs, thus potentially
improving profit margins. Foreign currency fluctuations also impact revenue growth.

Margins—Margins reflect the Company’s performance on contracts and ability to control costs. While
the ratios of various cost elements as a percentage of revenue can shift as a result of acquisitions or
dispositions of business with different cost profiles, a focus on maintaining and improving overall margins
leads to improved efficiencies and profitability. Although the majority of the Company’s costs are denomi-
nated in the same currency as revenues, increased use of offshore support also exposes CSC to additional
margin fluctuations.

Cash flow—Over time the primary drivers of the Company’s cash flow are earnings provided by the
Company’s operations and the use of capital to generate those earnings. Also contributing to short term cash
flow results are movements in current asset and liability balances. The Company also regularly reviews the
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) cash flow measurements of operating, investing
and financing cash flows, as well as non-GAAP free cash flow.
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Return on investment (ROI)—ROI is an effective indicator combining a focus on margins with efficient
and productive net asset utilization. A combination of strong margins (measuring how efficiently profit is
generated from revenue) and investment base turnover (measuring how effectively revenue is generated
from investors’ capital}) is required to generate sufficient returns on capitai. Strong working capital manage-
ment also serves to minimize investment capital and increase returns.

Readers should be cautioned that Days Sales Qutstanding (DSO), free cash flow and ROI are not
GAAP measures, and the Company’s definition of such measures may differ from other companies.
Therefore, such measures may not be comparable to those of other companies. CSC thinks these non-GAAP
financial measures provide useful information to investors regarding the Company’s financial condition and
resulls of operations as they provide another measure of the Company’s performance and ability to service
its debt. CSC calculates DSO as follows: Total receivables at quarter-end divided by revenue-per-day.
Revenue-per-day equals total revenues for the quarter divided by the number of days in the fiscal quarter.
Free cash flow is equal to the sum of 1) operating cash flows, 2) investing cash flows, excluding business
acquisitions and dispositions, purchase or sale of available for sale securities and 3) capital lease payments.
RO is calculated by multiplying profit margin times investment base turnover. The profit margin used is
profit before interest and special items and after tax divided by revenues. Investment base turnover equals
revenues divided by average debt and equity.

Fiscal 2007 Highlights

Significant events during fiscal 2007 include:

» Revenues rose 1.5%, though declined 0.3% on a constant currency basis.

» The Company recorded a special pretax restructuring charge of $333.4 million ($272.4 after tax or
$1.52 per share) and a special pretax gain of $18.3 million ($11.2 million after tax or 6 cents per
share).

® Legal and other costs associated with the stock option investigation, including costs incurred to
obtain debt covenant waivers and employee income taxes related to the stock option investigation
were $22.3 million ($15.7 million after tax or 9 cents per share).

* Income from continuing operations, including the restructuring charge, was $388.8 million compared
to $471.1 million for the prior year a decline of 17.5%.

¢ Continuing earnings per share, after special charges, were down 14%. The fiscal 2007 special charge
of $1.46 per share, as compared to the prior year special charge of 26 cents per share, adversely
impacted earnings per share from continuing operations compared to prior year by 40.3%.

s Announced contract awards of $16.9 billion with new North American Public Sector awards of $7.7
billion, and new Global Commercial awards totaling $9.2 billion, an increase of 40% in announced
awards from the prior year.

* The Company entered into two accelerated share repurchase transactions during the year. In the first
quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company acquired and retired 9.3 million shares of outstanding common
shares for $500 million and during the second quarter the Company acquired and retired an
additional 7.1 million shares for $500 million.

¢ Free cash flow of $671.5 million increased $208.6 million from $462.9 million in fiscal 2006, including
$207.2 million disbursed for restructuring activities, as well as approximately $190 million deferred
income recognition and delayed payments on capital expenditures the magnitude of which are not
representative of the Company’s ongoing cash flow trends.(")

(1) The following is a reconciliation of free cash flow to the most directly comparable Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) financial measure:

Fiscal Year Ended

(in millions) March 30, 2007 March 31, 2006  April 1, 2005
Free cash oW ..ottt e i et st e e $ 6715 $ 4629 $ 493.9
Net cash used in investing activities ....... ... it rvarennennnns 8727 1,124.0 5954
Proceeds from redemption of preferredstock................ ... ... ... 126.5

Acquisition, net of cash acquired. . ....... ... ... i i (134.3) (44.1) (20.5)
Business diSPOSIHIONS . ..t vviiiiuiie e aiian e it 2.8 5 819.1
Capital 1ease PaYMENLS . .. .. ovvutr vt ananre s anaarnaaaaanserras 394 8.0 6.7
Sale of available-for-sale securities ............ ... ... .. i iiiiiiiaons 46.9
Net cash provided by operating activities. ...............ooc v $1,578.6 $1,551.3 $1,941.5




Capital lease payments and proceeds from the sale of property and equipment (included in investing
activities) are included in the calculation of free cash flow. Prior periods have been adjusted to
conform with this presentation.

e DSO was 94 days at year-end versus 87 days at the end of the prior year.

* Debt-to-total capitalization ratio was 20.4% at year-end, an increase of 2.0% points from the prior
year ratio.

* ROI from continuing operations was 9.6% for the year a 2.1% point improvement from prior year.
The Company’s significant wins during fiscal 2007 included the following:

Global Commercial:

¢ United Kingdom National Health Service ($3.7 billion),

* Blue Scope Steel ($378 million),

e TDC ($330 miltion), and

¢ UKvisas ($275 million).

North American Public Sector:

» U.S. Army Program Executive Office for Enterprise Information Systems ($2.0 billion),

e U.S. Agency for International Development ($800 million),

e U.S. Air Force Expeditionary Combat Support System ($378 million),

* New York Department of Health ($276 million), and

L]

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services ($243 million).

These multi-year awards represent the estimated value of the Company’s portion at contract signing.
They cannot be considered firm orders, however, due to their variable attributes, including demand-driven
usage, modifications in scope of work due to changing customer requirements, annual funding constraints
and indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity characteristics of major portions of the Company’s North Ameri-
can Public Sector activities.

The limited revenue growth, a decline on a constant currency basis, in the Global Commercial sector and
the decrease in awards during the first half of fiscal 2007 reflect, in part, the impact on the Company’s ability
to secure new awards as a result of the Company’s evaluation of strategic initiatives during the first part of the
fiscal 2007 as well as the general trend in the industry towards smaller scope and/or shorter term cutsourcing
contracts. The majority of new awards for the Global Commercial sector, with the exception of the National
Heath Service award, were awarded during the last half of the fiscal year. The North American Public Sector
continued to win a share of U.S. federal government contracts as its total contract awards for fiscal 2007
increased by 30% from the previous fiscal year with contract awards from the Department of Defense
continuing to lead the way. Currency shifts during fiscal 2007 favorably impacted revenue and largely offset
declines in constant currency revenue in Europe.

The Company’s growth in prior years has created a broad, long-term global revenue base across
numerous customers, industries, geographic regions and service offerings with approximately 79% of CSC’s
revenues derived from long-term contracts including Global Commercial outsourcing and U.S. federal
government engagements. This revenue base provides the Company with a relatively stable base of revenue
during periods when contract awards may slow or the market for certain services softens.
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A reduction in working capital was the result of an increase in payables and deferred income which was
partially offset by increases in receivables and prepaid expenses as well as an increase in cash paid for taxes
and cash paid for restructuring activities. The net effect was a modest increase in cash flow from operations
for fiscal 2007. The increase in deferred income, approximately $340 million, is not expected to recur at a
similar amount during fiscal 2008, Cash out-flow for investing activities declined from prior year as a result of
lower levels of investment in outsourcing contracts and equipment. Contributing to the decline, the Company
exited fiscal 2007 with capital expenditures unpaid and reflected in accounts payable of approximately $110
million in excess of usual levels of such activity. These purchases will be reported as fiscal 2008 outflows.
Outflows for financing activities reflect the Company’s acquisition and retirement of 16.4 million shares of
outstanding common stock during fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2008 Commentary

As a leading federal contractor and one of the top I/T service providers to the U.S. federal government,
CSC’s North American Public Sector is well-positioned to benefit from continued demand for I/T services in
this market. The U.S. federal povernment is one of the world’s largest UT services consumers, and its
spending is expected to continue to increase during the upcoming year in order to improve technologies in
the areas of defense, homeland security and civil agency modernization. While the ultimate distribution of
U.S. federal funds and project assignments can vary, the Company expects its broad I/T and outsourcing
capabilities to be viewed favorably by the U.S. federal government.

Global Commercial market awards during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 were the highest quarterly
total during the past two fiscal years. This reversed the trend of the four quarters preceding the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2007 which were adversely impacted by the market’s response to the Company’s consideration of
strategic alternatives. A key success for the Company was the award of two additional regions for the
implementation of a record keeping system for the United Kingdom’s National Health Service. The awards
for commercial engagements during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 rebounded, and the pipeline of future
prospects is showing some growth. The Company has been and will continue to be selective in new business
pursuit opportunities given the focus on margin expansion and increasing return on investment. With respect
to discretionary spending and project work, Central and Southern Europe continue to show areas of soft
demand, and demand in North America for consulting and systems integration did not show significant
improvement, while price pressures continue. While the future demand for outsourcing services is not known
with certainty, the long-term nature of major outsourcing engagements allows CSC to benefit from a certain
level of continuity. Growth during fiscal 2008 in Global Commercial revenue from new business awarded
during fiscal 2007 is expected to be tempered by the continued demand for offshore services and the resulting
pressure on prices. During fiscal 2007, the Company’s Global Commercial segment’s revenue was favorably
impacted by currency fluctuations in Europe and Other International regions. The Company cannot forecast
with certainty future movement in currency exchange rates or its impact on operating results.

Other trends the Company expects for fiscal 2008 are as follows:

= Revenue for the North American Public Sector for fiscal 2008 will benefit from its $9.2 billion of
announced awards. This represents a $2.2 billion increase in awards during fiscal 2007. The North
American Public Sector is expected to continue to grow at or above the revenue growth rate for fiscal
2007. The Company expects Global Commercial revenue growth to be tempered by the previous
softness in new contract awards during the later part of fiscal 2006 and first half of fiscal 2007. In
addition, adjustments of billing rates to industry benchmarks for certain significant outsourcing
contracts awarded during fiscal 2005 and 2006, as these contracts mature, may also temper revenue
growth for the Global Commercial segment. The demand for offshore services is expected to
continue to increase as customers seek to lower costs and will present opportunity as well as temper
revenue growth in Europe as well as the U.S. Commercial market.

s The Company has identified and expects to pursue $29.4 billion of federal opportunities that will be
awarded in fiscal 2008, plus an additional $17.3 billion during fiscal 2009. The Company expects to
win a share of these awards.
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Cash flow from operations for fiscal 2008 is expected to decrease slightly from the $1,578.6 million for
fiscal 2007. Fiscal 2008 operating cash flow is expected to be adversely impacted by a decline in
deferred income.

Cash outflow from investing activities is expected to increase from fiscal 2007 levels primarily as a
result of investment in computers and related equipment in the U.S. Commercial and North
American Public Sector and for capital assets acquired in fiscal 2007 but paid for during fiscal 2008.

The Company’s overall short-term financial objectives include:

1.

7.

Successfully launch the new contracts won during fiscal 2007.

. Manage ongoing engagements to maximize revenue and margins.

2
3.
4
5

Successfully close and integrate the acquisition of Covansys Corporation.

. Effectively manage working capital and capital investment.

. Maintain appropriate investment base turnover rates and operating margins, with particular empha-

sis on the new business, in order to improve return on investment.

Pursue the current pipeline of commercial and North American Public Sector opportunities and win a
proportionate share.

Continue execution of the restructuring plan begun in fiscal 2007.

The Company has recently defined and begun implementing a comprehensive growth strategy. This
strategy is based upon a detailed assessment of the market place as well as input from current and potential
customers. To implement the strategy, the Company launched Project Accelerate, which is comprised of five
(5) key growth initiatives.

The five growth initiatives and the benefits the Company believes Project Accelerate offers to its key
stakeholders are:

Focus on enhancing industry-specific offerings and value proposition to clients. The Company is
investing significantly to offer differentiated business solutions that combine technology, intellectual
property, and industry expertise to improve its clients’ business results. The Company is focused on
developing high value, technology-enabled business solutions, consulting services, and business
process outsourcing offerings for the following key verticals: Financial Services; Healthcare; Manu-
facturing, including Aerospace & Defense; Public Sector; Chemical, Energy & National Resources;
and Technology/Consumer.

Focus on aggressively growing and leveraging its India capabilities. The Company has launched an
India Direct Sales channel to address customers’ needs for pure offshore services and to compete
directly against low cost, offshore IT providers. The Company has been making and will continue to
make investments to build out its India delivery capabilities for remote infrastructure management,
application services, and business process offerings. Its pursuit and pending acquisition of Covansys
Corporation signifies the Company’s commitment to expanding offshore selling and delivery capabil-
ities in India. When this acquisition closes, the Company will have more than 14,000 employees in
India, and India will be its second largest country of employment.

Focus on further expanding its global footprint. The Company currently operates in more than 55
countries and serves some of the world’s largest global companies. It delivers to the world from
around the world. Consequently, the Company is continuing its commitment to world sourcing as an
important value component of its global delivery model. It will continue to offer clients the mix of
on-shore, near-shore and offshore services most appropriate to their needs. The Company is
particularly focused on expanding capabilities in Asia, Latin America, and Eastern Europe, in
addition to India.

Focus on commercial outsourcing and further strengthen the Company’s ability to deliver the
services its clients require consistently and seamlessly across their global enterprise. Also, the
Company is investing to win a higher share of mid-size deals — those having total contract values
between $50 and $350 million by launching a dedicated sales team and enhancing delivery capabili-
ties to address this large and growing market segment.
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¢ Focus on the North American Public Sector market. The Company will build on an established
market position by enhancing its offerings to core markets and investing in selected higher growth
sub-segments such as identity management and credentialing, health services, and logistics and
transportation. Additionally, the Company will look to expand the work it does for the public sector
in Canada and to build upon its success with the U.S. federal government in the pursuit of selected
state and local growth opportunities.

These five initiatives will be supported by a disciplined acquisition strategy. This acquisition approach is

focused on vertical markets and core delivery capabilities, directed towards higher growth and margin
businesses and strictly aligned with the priorities of Project Accelerate.

This strategy is global in scope and focused on proactively addressing the needs of the Company’s
markets and clients. The Company believes Project Accelerate has attractive benefits for all its key
stakeholders,

— For clieats, the strategy will help us continue to evolve to meet their needs and drive improved

business value to them.

— For employees, the strategy is designed to provide exciting professional growth opportunities

globally.

— For shareholders, the strategy will help us provide a more clear vision and roadmap going forward,

which will target revenue growth and the cash flows and ROI required to enhance overall share-

holder returns. This strategy is designed to balance our portfolio across public sector, business
solutions, and outsourcing services offerings over time.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

Revenues for the Global Commercial and North American Public Sector segments (see Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements) for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 are as follows:

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Percent Percent
Amount Change Amount Changt_’: Amount

As Restated As Restated

US. Commercial ................... $ 38729 (4.3)% $ 4,047.7 5.1% § 3,851.1

Europe.........coovvvviiiia., 4,146.3 (N 4,176.8 (3.4) 4,325.7

Other International ................. 1,487.1 9.3 1,360.5 10.9 1,227.3

Global Commercial sector............... 9,506.3 (.8) 9,585.0 1.9 9.404.1

North American Public sector ........... 5,350.3 59 5,054.0 8.1 4,675.9
Corporate..............cociviiiannnn.,

Total. .o e s $14,856.6 1.5 $14,639.0 4.0 $14,080.0

The major factors affecting the percent change in revenues are presented as follows:

Api)roximate
mpact
of Currency  Net Internal
Fiscal 2007 vs. Fiscal 2006 Fluctuations Growth Total
U.S. Commercial ..........ciiiiiiii it 43)% (@)%
BUrOpe . . o e 52% (5.9) (7
Other International ..., i3 6.0 9.3
Global Commercial Sector. ......cvvvvriiiiiiiii e eaie s 2.7 (3.5) (.8)
North American Publicsector ......... . iiiiviiieiieninens 59 5.9
COTPOTAtE. ot e e e
TOtal. o e e 1.8 (-3) 1.5
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Approximate

Impact
of Currency Net Internal
Fiscal 2006 vs. Fiscal 2005 Fluctaations Growth Total
U.S. Commercial .....ooriiiin i ianaeans 51% 5.1%
T o o - A O R (3.5)% 1 (3.4)
Other International ... i e 2.5 8.4 10.9
Global Commercial SeCtor .. ... ooty (1.3) 32 1.9
North American Publicsector ... ns 8.1 8.1
COTPOTALE . . .ottt
TOtal . . e e (8) 48 4.0

Fiscal 2007 revenue growth from Department of Defense coniracts in the North American Public Sector
and growth in Other Inlernational operations helped offset the impact of 1) terminated commercial contracts
with Nortel Networks and Sears, 2) the impact of a decline in commercial awards during fiscal 2006 and early
2007 in U.S. Commercial and Europe operations and 3) reduced scope on an intelligence agency program.
The decline in Global Commercial revenue for fiscal 2007 of 0.8% (a decline of 3.5% in constant currency)
was the result of terminated engagements in U.S. Commercial operations and reductions in scope on a
number of contracts in Europe offset by growth in our Australian and Asia operations. Other International
operations benefited from growth on existing business as a result of successful recompete efforts on contracts
in Australia and additional project work on contracts in Asia. The North American Public Sector revenue
growth benefited from growth on existing programs, contracts awarded during fiscal 2007 and from the
acquisition, in the third quarter, of an identity management and credentialing business. These positive factors
offset the effects of programs with reduced scopes as noted above.

Fiscal 2006 revenue growth from significant new commercial engagements and Federal programs offset
the impact of 1) terminated commercial contracts with Nortel Networks and JPMorgan Chase, 2) revised
billing rates for extended contracts, 3) reduced scope on certain Federal programs and 4) wind down of the
development phase on a significant government project. Global Commercial growth for fiscal 2006 of 1.9%
(3.2% in constant currency} was led by U.S. Commercial operations where new outsourcing engagements,
growth on existing outsourcing engagements and growth in the U.S. consulting and systems integration
business offset terminated engagements and lower billing rates on extended engagements. Other Interna-
tional operations benefited from growth on existing business. Europe operations, in constant currency, were
unchanged from the prior year. The U.S. Federal sector revenue growth benefited from contracts awarded
during fiscal 2006 and 2005 and from growth on existing programs offsetting the effects of programs with
reduced scopes as noted above.

Global Commercial

Revenue from Global Commercial declined in fiscal 2007 compared to the prior year with revenue 0.8%
below prior year and on a constant currency basis 3.5% below prior year. Declines in new contract awards
during fiscal 2006 and the early 2007, the termination of certain U.S. Commercial contracts, declines in
revenue from mature contracts in Europe and continued soft demand for consulting and systems integration
offerings were partially offset by growth in Australia and Asia.

U.S. Commercial revenues decreased $175 million for fiscal 2007, or 4.3%. The decline was primarily the
result of the termination of the Sears, Roebuck & Co. and Nortel Networks contracts, which combined
contributed an additional $205 million of revenue in the prior year. These declines were partially offset by
revenue growth on existing outsourcing contracts. Revenue in the consulting and systems integration
business was unchanged from the prior year as the increase in demand for these services in the prior year did
not carry forward into fiscal 2007. No significant new contracts contributed to growth in U.S. Commercial
business for fiscal 2007.

During fiscal 2007 Europe revenues decreased $31 million or 0.7% and on a constant currency basis
decreased $246 million or 5.9% from the prior year. Growth from outsourcing and I/T and professional
services engagements with U.K. National Health Service and Public Sector Scandinavia combined for 58
million in revenue growth and favorable currency effects, which contributed $214 million, were offset by
revenue declines as a result of reductions in the scope of work for certain outsourcing engagements of $155
million in Northern Europe, the termination of the Nortel Networks contract. a decline in software license
sales and continued softness in demand for the Company’s consulting and systems integration services in
Germany and ltaly.
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Other International revenues increased $127 million or 9.3%, 6.0% in constant currency, during fiscal
2007. Australian operations contributed $84 million of revenue growth attributable to a professional staffing
business, a major outsourcing contract and success in winning a number of recompete contracts during fiscal
2007. This growth was offset somewhat by the expiration of a government contract. Asia contributed $59
million in revenue growth attributable to additional work on various outsourcing engagements. This growth
was offset somewhat by a decline in revenue from Canada operations, primarily as a result of the termination
of the Nortel Networks contract.

During fiscal 2006 revenue from Global Commercial grew 1.9% or 3.2% in constant currency. New
major engagements contributed approximately $483 million to Global Commercial’s revenue growth for
fiscal 2006. These engagements, although primarily for outsourcing services, include other I/'T and profes-
sional services as well. Revenue from existing engagements declined for fiscal 2006 as growth in U.S.
consulting and systems integration services and in Other International was offset by lower billing rates on a
contract extension, reduced volume on certain contracts, the termination and wind-down of certain contracts
such as Nortel Networks, Sears, and JPMorgan Chase and a decline in software license sales.

U.S. Commercial revenues increased $197 million for fiscal 2006, or 5.1%. The growth was primarily
from outsourcing contracts awarded during fiscal 2005 and growth in the consulting and systems integration
business. New contracts contributing to the growth were Sun, Ascension Health, Textron and Aon which
when combined, contributed $279 million to revenue growth for fiscal 2006. This revenue growth and the
contribution from U.S. consuiting and systems integration were partially offset by reduced volumes and
billing rates on certain significant outsourcing contracts and the termination of significant outsourcing
contracts with Nortel Networks and JPMorgan Chase. The Company’s contract with Sears, Roebuck & Co.
for outsourcing services, which was terminated during fiscal 2006, provided $131 million of revenue during
fiscal 2006.

Other International revenues increased $133 million or 10.9%, 8.4% in constant currency, during fiscal
2006. Australian operations contributed $62 million of revenue growth attributable to a professional staffing
business and a major outsourcing contract, offset somewhat by the termination of an outsourcing contract.
Asia contributed $50 million in revenue growth attributable to various outsourcing engagements.

During fiscal 2006 Europe revenues decreased $149 million or 3.4% though were essentially unchanged
on a constant currency basis. Growth from new outsourcing and I/'T and professional services engagements
with U.K. National Health Service, Zurich Financial Services and Renault of $184 million was offset by
unfavorable currency movements of approximately $152 million, reduced scope of work on certain outsourc-
ing engagements, reduced billing rates on a contract extension, a decline in software license sales and
continued softness in demand for the Company’s consulting and systems iniegration services in Germany and
Italy.

North American Public Sector

The Company’s North American Public sector revenues were derived from the following sources:

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Percent Percent
Dollars in millions Amount Change Amount Change Amount
Department of Defense ..................... $3.593.8 6.7% $3,3689 15.8% $2909.8
Civil agencies .........cooiiiii i, 1,600.1 36 15443  (4.3) 1,6129
Other{l) . e i56.4 11.1 140.8 (8.1) 153.2
Total North American Public Sector ......... $5,350.3 59  $5054.0 8.1 $4,675.9

(1) Other revenues consist of foreign, state and local government work as well as commercial contracts
performed by the North American Public sector segment.
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North American Public Sector revenue growth for fiscal 2007 was 5.9% with revenue up $296 million to
$5,350.3 million. The revenue growth was the result of new business awarded during fiscal 2007 and 2006,
increases on existing Department of Defense contracts and the acquisition in the third quarter of an identity
management and credentialing business. This growth was partially offset by reductions in funding for one
other significant program as funds were redirected to other Department of Defense programs. The North
American Public Sector continued to win significant new business during fiscal 2007 with announced new
U.S. federal contract awards of $9.2 billion versus $7.1 billion for fiscal 2006 and $7.0 billion for fiscal 2005.

Department of Defense revenue increased $225 million or 6.7% to $3,593.8 million for fiscal 2007.
Growth was the result of increased demand for equipment procurement and installation services for the U.S.
Army, a program to provide engineering support services to the U.S. Army’s Aviation and Missile Com-
mand, an increase in scope for a program to provide mission support services, a new program to provide
engineering logistics and business operations services to the U.S. Army, management services for certain
intelligence services, a program to provide flight simulation services to the U.S. Army and the acquisition of
an identity management and credentialing business in the third quarter. These new programs, tasking and
acquisition provided approximately $292 million in revenue growth for fiscal 2007. This growth was partially
offset by funding shortfalls on an intelligence services program as funds were redirected to other programs
and revenue declined $70 million on this program.

Civil agencies revenue increased $56 million or 3.6% versus fiscal 2006, as a result of increased activity
on a contract with the Federal Aviation Administration, and I/T engineering and management services
contract with the EPA as well as growth in consulting services provided to various agencies.

Work performed by the North American Public Sector for state and local governments as well as
commercial clients was $156 million for fiscal 2007, an increase of $16 miilion from the prior year. This
increase was the result of achievement of milestones on a project with a foreign government to provide
information technology services. This increase was partially offset by a reduction in revenue on a contract
with the New York Department of Health where the contract evolved from system development to run and
maintain and system enhancement work. :

For fiscal 2006 North American Public Sector revenue growth was 8.1% with revenue up $378 million to
$5,054 million. The revenue growth was driven by new business awarded during fiscal 2006 and 2005 and
increases on existing Department of Defense contracts. This growth was partially offset by the completion of
the development phase on a state contract and reduced scope on a small number of significant programs. The
North American Public Sector continued to win significant new business during fiscal 2006 with announced
new U.S. federal contract awards of $7.1 billion versus $7.0 billion for fiscal 2005 and $5.0 billion for fiscal
2004.

Department of Defense revenue increased $459 million or 15.8% to $3,369 million for fiscal 2006.
Growth was the result of increased demand for equipment procurement and installation services for the U.S.
Army. a new program to provide aviation support services, new tasking on programs to provide logistical
support to the U.S. Army, new tasking to provide technical support for the Navy’s undersea test facilities, a
multiple award contract to provide professional services to Naval Sea Systems Command, a new program to
provide support services for the U.S. Strategic Command and I/T engineering and management services for
certain intelligence services. These new programs and tasking provided approximately $297 million in
revenue growth for fiscal 2006. The remainder of the revenue increase during fiscal 2006 was the result of
normal contract activities including new tasking on various projects and various new programs.

For fiscal 2006 Civil agencies revenue was down $69 million or 4.3% versus fiscal 2005, driven by the
reduction in scope for a significant project with the Internal Revenue Service. The impact of the scope
reduction on this project was approximately $72 million. New tasking on projects for the National Aeronau-
tics and Space Administration (NASA) offset scope reductions and the completion of other programs.

Work performed by the North American Public Sector for state and local governments as well as
commercial clients was $141 million for fiscal 2006, down $12 million. The decrease was the result, primarily,
of a reduction of effort on a contract with the New York Department of Health. This was offset somewhat by
a project with a foreign government to provide information technology services.
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Costs and Expenses

The Company’s costs and expenses were as follows:

Percentage of
Dollar Amount Revenue

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

As As
Restated Restated

Costs of services (excludes depreciation and

amortization)........cvoeeii i e $11,817.8  $11,724.0 $11,320.1 79.5% 80.1% 80.4%
Selling, general and administrative ............... 916.4 862.5 267 62 59 61
Depreciation and amortization................... 1,073.6 1,091.8 1,051.0 7.2 7.5 7.5
Interest expense, net ............. ..ol 125.7 80.1 1433 8 S 10
Specialitems ................o i 316.1 77.3 286 21 _5 _2

Total ... $14.2496 $13835.7 $13399.7 95.9% 94.5% 95.2%

The Company substantially matches revenues and costs in the same currency. Therefore, foreign
currency did not have a material impact on costs and expenses as a percentage of revenue. However, the
Company is increasing its use of offshore support and therefore may be exposed to additional margin
fluctuations.

Costs and expenses as a percentage of revenue for fiscal 2007 increased 1.4% points to 95.9% from
94.5% for fiscal 2006 primarily as a result of costs incurred from restructuring activities which contributed
2.4% to the total cost ratio. The cost of services ratio decreased as a result of restructuring activities during
fiscal 2007 and cost management while the depreciation and amortization ratio decreased as a result of the
termination of the Nortel Networks and Sears contracts both of which were capital intensive contracts. The
selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expense ratio increased as a result of 1) professional fees and
employee taxes to be paid by the Company as a result of the stock option investigation, and 2) the SG&A
portion of additional compensation expense incurred as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R during
fiscal 2007. The interest expense ratio increased as a result of financing a repurchase of shares with
commercial paper, an increase in interest expense related to income taxes and an increase in assets under
capital leases.

Costs and expenses as a percentage of revenue for fiscal 2006 improved .7% points to 94.5% from 95.2%
for fiscal 2005 with most ratios improved or unchanged from the prior year. The cost of services ratio
decreased as a result of cost management and certain revenue settlements for which the associated costs were
recorded in a prior period. The interest expense ratio decreased primarily as the result of the retirement of $1
billion of term debt during March 2005. These decreases were offset by the impairment charge and loss on
sale of equipment due to the termination of portions of the Nortel Networks contract recorded as a special
item in fiscal 2006.

Costs of Services

Costs of services as a percentage of revenue decreased .6% points to 79.5% for fiscal 2007 as a result of a
decrease in the Global Commercial ratio of 1.2% points to 75.7% and a .1% point decrease in the North
American Public Sector ratio to 86.2%. Improvements in the cost of services ratio for the Global Commercial
segment were primarily in the outsourcing business in the United States and Asia, as a result of cost savings
initiatives, restructuring activities and the termination of low margin contracts.

The Global Commercial cost of services ratio for fiscal 2007 benefited from reductions in the ratio in
U.S. Commercial operations, where the ratio improved 2.1% points as a result of cost savings initiatives
during the past year, the transfer of certain tasks to lower cost regions for certain contracts, and the
termination of low margin contracts. The ratio for Other International operations improved 1.6% points as
Asia benefited from restructuring activities. These improvements in the cost of services ratio for Other
International were partially offset by significant revenue growth from a low margin professional staffing
business in Australia. Europe, where the ratio decreased .7% points, benefited from reductions in the cost of
services ratio as a result of the transfer of certain tasks to lower cost regions, the impact of restructuring
activities on the ratio in the consulting and systems integration activities and a reduction in management
bonuses. These reductions in expense were somewhat offset by higher costs on certain outsourcing
engagements.
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The North American Public Sector ratio for fiscal 2007 benefited from the impact of an adverse estimate
to complete incurred on a state project in the prior year and a revenue increase on this contract during the
current year as a result of the client extending the contract. These changes combined for .4% points favorable
impact to the ratio for fiscal 2007. This favorable impact was partially offset by an adverse cost incurred for
contracts with the IRS of .2% points during fiscal 2007. These changes, combined, had a .1% point favorable
impact on the overall cost of services ratio.

Costs of services as a percentage of revenue decreased .3% points to 80.1% for fiscal 2006 as a result of a
decrease in the Global Commercial ratio of .2% points to 76.9% and a .4% points decrease in the North
American Public Sector ratio to 86.3%. The ratio for fiscal 2006 benefited, as noted below, from cost of
services amounts carried at the Corporate level for fiscal 2005 which included $24 million of accrued cost
related to the settlement of an overtime pay class action lawsuit.

The Global Commercial cost of services ratio for fiscal 2006 benefited from reductions in the ratio in
Furope as a result of outsourcing improvements in the United Kingdom offset somewhat by higher ratios for
other European consulting and systems integration business. These improvements in Europe were offset by a
higher ratio for U.S. outsourcing as a result of start up and termination activities and an unfavorable mix
impact as revenue from higher margin software license sales was lower for the year. The costs of services ratio
benefited from certain revenue items such as revenue settlements with clients for which the related costs
were recognized in a prior period, a pre-tax $8 million gain from the sale of a building and the novation of
certain contracts. These items favorably benefited the ratio approximately .2% poinls.

The North American Public Sector ratio for fiscal 2006 benefited from increased margins for certain time
and materials contracts on subcontractor work and materials and cost containment on a fixed unit price
contract. The year over year comparison also benefited .2% points from unfavorable adjustments during
fiscal 2005 on certain programs [or which recovery of costs was not probable. These factors were somewhat
offset by an adverse estimate to complete incurred on a state project impacting the ratio by approximately
(.1%) point.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses as a percentage of revenue increased .3% points
to 6.2% for fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of additional compensation expense due to the incremental
impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and the legal expenses related to the investigation by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Department of Justice into the Company’s stock option
granting practices. These items had a .3% point net unfavorable impact on the expense ratio for fiscal 2007.
The pretax incremental stock option expense recorded in SG&A as a result of the adoption of SFAS No.
123(R) was approximately $14.2 million ($10.0 million net of taxes) and the pre-tax legal and related
expenses related to the stock option investigation, including employee taxes 1o be paid by the company, were
approximately $22.3 million ($15.7 million net of tax). The comparison of the fiscal 2007 ratio to the prior
year ratio benefited from a one-time adverse impact to the prior year ratio for a provision for doubtful
accounts, as noted below, which had a .1% point impact on the expense ratio for fiscal 2006, The allocation of
the SFAS No. 123(R) and legal expenses, noted above. for fiscal 2007 resulted in an increase in the North
American Public Sector expense ratio of .5% points and an increase in the Global Commercial ratio of 2%
points.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses of 5.9% as a percentage of revenue for fiscal 2006
decreased .2% points from the prior year primarily as a result of a decrease in incomc tax penalties as
compared to prior year of approximately $40 million partially offset by additional compensation expense of
$16.4 million (approximately $12.1 million net of taxes). The decrease in the ratio was the result of a decrease
in the ratio for the corporate segment as a result of the decrease in tax penalties partiatly offset by an increase
in the ratio for the North American Public Sector of .5% points. The North American Public Sector ratio
increase was attributable to increased expenses in the new business development area and increased
management and bid and proposal costs. The Global Commercial ratio was essentially flat to the prior year as
improvements in the ratio from savings in new business selling costs due to fewer significant new business
opportunities and a reduction in general and administrative costs was offset by the increase in compensation
costs as a result of the restatement noted above and the adverse impact of a pre-tax $18 million provision for
doubtful accounts related to negotiations with an outsourcing customer regarding certain contract provisions.
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense as a percentage of revenue decreased .3% points to 7.2% during
fiscal 2007. The expense ratio improved in both the North American Public Sectar and in Global Commer-
cial. The decrease in the expense ratio was the result of revenue growth and a decline in depreciation and
amortization expense to $1,073.6 million for fiscal 2007. This decline was the result of an approximately $20
million decrease in depreciation expense for fiscal 2007 due primarily to the termination and disposal of the
related assets for the Sears contract and a shift in the mix of the assets in Australia toward longer lived assets.
The North American Public Sector ratio decreased by .2% points as depreciation and amortization expense
was held flat and revenue increased by 5.9%. The Global Commercial ratio decreased .2% points due to the
reduction in expense noted above while revenues were essentially flat to the prior year.

Depreciation and amortization expense of $1,091.8 million for fiscal 2006 represents 7.5% of revenue
and was unchanged from the ratio of 7.5% for fiscal 2005. Improvement in the North American Public Sector
ratio was offset by an increase in the Global Commercial ratio. The North American Public Sector ratio
decreased by .1% point predominantly due to decreases in amortization of certain intangibles acquired in the
Dyncorp acquisition. The Global Commercial ratio increased as a result of significant upfront capital
investment for outsourcing contracts awarded during fiscal 2005 and 2004 in Europe and Asia and capital
refreshes necessary on some existing contracts, offset by lower levels of capital investment for U.S.
commercial operations due to the termination of the Nortel and Sears contracts and a favorable mix variance
from Australian operations due to revenue growth in non-capital intensive business lines,

Interest Expense and Interest Income

The increase in interest expense for fiscal 2007 of $54.3 was the result, primarily, of three factors: 1) the
use of commercial paper to finance the accelerated share repurchase transactions (see Note 11 in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements) which increased interest from commercial paper by $19.7 million for
fiscal 2007, 2) an increase in equipment under capital leases, particularly in the North American Public
Sector, resulted in an increase in interest expense of $13.0 million, and 3) interest accrued related to income
taxes and income tax contingency items of $18.7 million (see Note 2 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). Interest income increased approximately $8.7 million for fiscal 2007 as a result of an increase in
interest income from tax refund items, interest income from a partnership and interest on cash balances in
Asia and Canada. These increases offset the loss of dividend income from the DynCorp International 13%
preferred stock which was redeemed during the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The result of the increase in
interest expense and interest income was an increase in net interest expense of $34 million and an increase in
the interest expense ratio of .2% points.

The decrease in interest expense for fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was due 1o lower average debt
levels during fiscal 2006 as the result of the retirement of $1 billion of term debt during March 2005. The
interest savings from the retirement of the term debt was somewhat offset by an increase in interest expense
for income taxes, capitalized leases and short-term borrowings for working capital needs in Europe. The
combination of these factors resulted in a reduction in interest expense of $38.5 million. In addition, interest
income, including dividend income from the DynCorp International 13% preferred stock, increased approxi-
mately $24.7 million for fiscal 2006 resulting in a .6% improvement in the net interest expense ratio. During
May 2006, the Company received approximately $169 million from DynCorp International for the redemp-
tion of the preferred stock and payment of cumulative dividends of approximately $22.5 million.

Special Items

Special items totaling $316.1 million were recorded during the year ended March 30, 2007, and consisted
of: (1) a $333.4 million restructuring charge (see discussion below), (2) a $1.0 million true-up of an estimate
related to the fiscal 2006 Nortel impairment charge and (3) an $18.3 million gain from the redemption of
DynCorp International preferred stock.

Restructuring

In April 2006, the Company announced a restructuring plan to be carried out during fiscal 2007 and
2008. The objectives of the plan are to 1) streamline CSC’s worldwide operations and 2) leverage the
increased use of lower cost global resources. Restructuring charges consist predominantly of severance and
related employee payments resulting from terminations. During the third quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company
evaluated facility consolidation opportunities and other areas where operations can be streamlined and costs
reduced consistent with the plan objectives, resulting in additional lease termination, asset impairment and
other charges.
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Workforce reductions of approximately 4,400 employces occurred in fiscal 2007, and an additional 1,100
reductions are planned for fiscal 2008. Termination-related charges of $294.3 million were recorded in fiscal
2007. Other, primarily vacant space-related costs. of $39.1 million were also recorded during the year, net of
an $11.6 million gain on the sale of a data center facility. All but approximately $.1 million of the
restructuring charge was incurred in the Global Commercial reporting segment. Additional restructuring
charges of not more than $110 million are expected 1o be incurred in fiscal 2008.

The restructuring plan generated savings of approximately $180 million in fiscal 2007 and is expected to
result in savings of $340 million in fiscal 2008. Approximately 97% of the savings comes from reduced cost of
services, while the remainder will be predominantly from lower selling, general and administrative costs.
Savings are net of new or increased recurring costs, primarily the costs anticipated for an increasing offshore
workforce. Savings will also be impacted by certain transitional costs as new offshore staff are trained while
oulgoing staff are still on the payrolls. Such transitional costs were under $10 million in fiscal 2007 and
expected to be under $2 million in fiscal 2008.

A majority of the planned headcount reductions (3,000 in fiscal 2007 and 500 in 2008) were scheduled to
take place in Europe. Approximately 1,100 and 500 positions were to be reduced in North America in fiscal
2007 and 2008, respectively, with the batance in Australia and Asia. Partially offsetting the reductions were
planned headcount increases in certain lower cost regions of approximately 1,400 and 700 employees in fiscal
2007 and 2008, respectively. As of March 30, 2007, approximately 4,400 separations have been completed
(approximately one-sixth due to attrition), with 3,000 in Europe, 1.100 in North America and the remainder
in Australia and Asia. Approximately 2,100 new hires occurred in lower cost regions during the full year
ended March 30, 2007, including replacements of some of the 4.400 reductions as well as for previously-
planned and on-going business activities.

The Company’s strategy in Europe has been to obtain negotiated. voluntary terminations to the extent
possible, but involuntary terminations were also necessary in certain countries to attain targeted reductions.
Outside of Europe, terminations have been predominanitly involuntary. Involuntary termination benefits are
determined in accordance with existing company policies and local legal requirements. In some countries,
local regulations require the Company to consult with employee representatives such as works councils or
unions in the determination of job categories and number of employees to be terminated, as well as the
resulting termination benefit amounts.

The amounts of termination benefits are typically attributable to emplovees’ services already rendered
and increase as length of service increases. The Company records charges for negotiated, voluntary termina-
tions at the time an employee accepts the Company’s offer. Involuntary termination benefits are accrued at
the time such obligations are considered probable and reasonably estimable. Such a calculation is based on
estimates of benefil payouts as well as number and type of staff to be terminated. In cases where a plan calls
for first attempting to garner voluntary terminations and then moves to involuntary terminations if targeted
reductions are not achieved, a charge is accrued based on estimated involuntary benefits for all remaining
reductions.

Accruals for future termination benefits are based on a number of assumptions and estimates. Such
accruals may differ from actual results for a variety of reasons, including: different benefit amounts or mix of
employees as a result of completed employee representative consultations; additional voluntary terminations
in lieu of accrued involuntary terminations; changes in mix of actual terminated employees by age. years of
service, or job class.

Restructuring-related pre-tax cash payments of approximately $207.2 million were made in fiscal 2007
(excluding $25.8 million cash proceeds received from sale of a data center) and are estimated to be
approximately $195 million for fiscal 2008. Included in the restructuring charge are pension benefit augmen-
tations that are due 1o certain employees in accordance with legal or contractual obligations, which will be
paid out over several years as part of normal pension distributions. Such liabilities are included in the
consolidated pension liability account.
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See the following table for a summary of fiscal 2007 activity (in millions):

Total Pre-Tax Less Charges Restructuring
Charges Recorded not Affecting Liability as of
Year-to-Date Restructuring Less March 30,
Fiscal 2007 Liability'" Payments'?  Other® 2007
Workforce reductions ................. $294.3 $(6.8) $(201.7) $7.7 $ 935
Other....... ...l 39.1 6.3 (5.5) 10 40.9
Total . ... $3334 $(0.5) $(207.2) Ei_z $134.4

() Charges primarily consist of pension benefit augmentations offset by gains on sale of a data center
facility,

() Excludes $25.8 million cash proceeds received from sale of a data center facility.
) Foreign currency translation adjustments.

During fiscal 2006 Nortel Networks (Nortel) terminated the Company’s services for certain information
technology outsourcing activities under the outsourcing agreement between Nortel and the Company. As a
result of the termination of these services the Company recorded a non-cash special charge of $52.0 million in
the second quarter of fiscal 2006 to write down outsourcing contract costs and certain equipment associated
with the contract to their estimated fair value. The Company recorded an additional charge in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006 of $25.3 million to write down the remaining assets 10 fair value, recognize a loss on the
assets sold to Nortel under the terms of the termination settlement, record severance costs for those
employees who were not hired by Nortel or redeployed within the Company and record costs associated with
terminating the contract for a total charge of $77.3 million ($48.3 million after tax) or 26 cents per share.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 the Company recorded a charge of $29.5 million for premium
payments and the write down of deferred financing costs and interest discount related to the early redemp-
tion of $1 billion of term debt. The Company elected to make this early redemption and incur the charges as
it had available cash and these debt issues carried interest rates above current prevailing rates. See Note 1010
the consolidated financial statements for further description. The debt redemption charge was partially offset
by the reversal in the fourth quarter of previously recorded facility restructuring accruals of $.9 million. The
combined special items had a $0.10 per share impact on earnings per share and a .2% net impact on the
Company’s profit margin in fiscal 2005,

Taxes

The provision for taxes on continuing operations as a percentage of pre-tax earnings was 35.9%, 41.4%
and 34.7% for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate during
fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 was the result of lower state tax and additional credits in fiscal 2007,
partially offset by higher foreign effective tax rates. The Company’s income tax expense for fiscal 2007
includes a reduction for a change in estimate in the amount of approximately $24 million of research and
development credits available to be claimed by the Company for years prior to fiscal 2007. As a result of
these factors, the effective tax rate for fiscal 2007 declined 5.5% percentage points from fiscal 2006. The
increase in fiscal 2006 income tax expense compared to fiscal 2005 was primarily the result of a reduction in
tax contingency recorded in fiscal 2005 which did not recur in fiscal 2006. See Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements for further discussion of income taxes.
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Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations net of taxes was $61.3 million and $313.8 million, respectively, for
fiscal years 2006 and 2005, Income from discontinued operations during fiscal 2006 included the gain on sale
of Health Plan Solutions of $22.9 million and the gain from the working capital adjustment for the sale of
DynCorp International of $38.4 million. The Company received $63.5 million par value preferred stock for
the working capital adjustment and recorded taxes of $20.7 million and a valuation allowance of approxi-
mately $6.5 million against the preferred stock. Income from discontinued operations during fiscal 2005
includes the net after tax gain on the sale of DynCorp International of $228.8 million or approximately $1.19
per share. In fiscal 2005, proceeds from the sale included $775 million of cash and $75 million of par value
preferred stock. Discontinued operations for fiscal 2005 included the operations of DynCorp International,
sold during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, and the operations of Health Plan Solutions which was classified
as held for sale as of April 1, 2005 and sold during the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

In March 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 47,
“Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations—an interpretation of FASB Statement No.
143.” During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded a Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle of
$5.6 million ($4.3 million after tax) or $0.02 per share as a result of implementing the Interpretation to
account for the Company’s unrecorded legal obligations to restore some of its leased facilities to their
original condition upon lease expiration.

Earnings Per Share and Share Base

Earnings per share from continuing operations for fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 decreased $0.35
to $2.16. Earnings per share from continuing operations for fiscal 2007 were adversely impacted by special
charges of $1.46 per share and favorably impacted by a decrease in the average share base of 8.3 million
shares from fiscal 2006. This decline in the share base was the result of the Company’s acquisition and
retirement of 16.4 million shares through two accelerated share repurchase transactions with 9.3 million
shares acquired during the first quarter and 7.1 million shares acquired during the second quarter of fiscal
2007. See Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of these transactions. This
reduction to the share base was partially offset by option exercises during the past twelve months and an
increase in common stock equivalents of 1.2 million for fiscal 2007,

Earnings per share from continuing operations increased $0.20 to $2.51 for fiscal 2006, Earnings per
share from continuing operations for fiscal 2006 were adversely impacted by special charges of §0.26 per
share and a decrease in income from continuing operations and favorably impacted by a decline in the
average share base of 4.1 million shares for fiscal 2006. This decline in the share base was driven primarily by
the Company’s acquisition of 7.13 million treasury shares in the HPS exchange which reduced weighted
average shares outstanding by 6.6 million shares for fiscal 2006. This reduction was partially offset by
employee stock option exercises during fiscal 2006. Common stock equivalents declined slightly on a year
over year basis.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash Flows

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Dollars in millions 2007 2006 2005
Net cash from Operations .......c.veereror e, $1,9786 § 15513 $1.941.5
Net cash used in investing. ..........o oot iiiiiiiiiii s (872.7) (1,124.0) (595.4)
Net cash used in financing ... ot (955.5)  (150.7) (900.6)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ......... 9.0 3.8 2.0
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................. (240.6) 280.4 447.5
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....................... 1,290.7  1,010.3 562.8

Cash and cash equivalents atendof year......................... $1,050.1 $1,290.7 $1,010.3




Historically, the majority of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents have been provided from
operating activities and this trend continued during fiscal 2007 as operating activities generated an additional
$27 million in cash compared to the prior year or $1.6 billion in net cash during fiscal 2007. Cash generated
from operations during fiscal 2007 was the result of factors with significant, but opposing, impacts on cash
flow, including cash outflows to fund the restructuring plan and cash inflows from advanced customer
payments, Factors impacting working capital during the year include:

¢ During fiscal 2007 cash payments for restructuring activities were $181 million; net of $26 million
from the sale of assets related to the restructuring, during fiscal 2007,

¢ During fiscal 2007 the Company’s billed trade accounts receivables and unbilled receivables
increased approximately $223 million and $229 million, respectively. The increase in trade receiv-
ables was across both the North American Public Sector and the Global Commercial segments. The
increase in unbilled receivables related primarily to contracts in Europe and U.S. federal contracts.
This compares to an increase in unbilled receivables of approximately $184 million and a minimal
increase in trade accounts receivable during fiscal 2006. The fiscal 2007 increase in trade accounts
receivable and unbilled receivables contributed to an increase in DSO to 94 days at the end of fiscal
2007 from 87 days at the end of last year.

s The Company’s investment in deferred costs and work in progress related to certain contracts
increased approximately $231 million during fiscal 2007 compared to an increase of $262 million in
the prior year. The majority of the increase relates to the UK National Health Service contract.

* Accounts payable and accrued expenses combined increased $532 million for fiscal 2007 compared to
a decrease of $50 million for fiscal 2006. The increase in the balance for fiscal 2007 was the result of
the timing of payments for accounts payable, which included an increase of approximately $110
million of capital expenditure payables, an increase in accrued expenses for restructuring activities
and activity on contracts.

¢ The Company made payments for taxes of $304.8 million and $147.9 million for fiscal 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The Company projects cash payments for taxes to remain at fiscal 2007 levels for 2008;
however, resolution of tax contingencies could have a significant impact on cash tax payments.

¢ Advanced payments received from customers increased approximately $270 million during fiscal
2007, primarily as a result of the achievement of billing milestones on a significant development
effort for a foreign government client. Such balances partially offset the Company’s significant
investment in this project. This compares to a decrease in advanced payments from customers for
fiscal 2006 as a result of the winding down of a contract and lower advanced payments on another
contract as it transitioned out of the start-up phase.

The Company has submitted 16 Requests for Equitable Adjustment (REAs) totaling in excess of S1
billion on two U.S. Federal contracts. Included in current assets on the Company’s balance sheet is
approximately $820 million of unbilled accounts receivable and deferred costs related to the contracts. CSC
has requested payment for certain related out-of-scope work directed or caused by the customers in support
of their critical missions. The contractual modification process for scope changes has lagged behind the need
for CSC to provide critical on-going operational support. The Company does not record any profit element
when it defers costs associated with such REAs. The Company believes it has a legal basis for pursuing
recovery of these REAs and that collection is probable. Settlement of the amounts depends on individual
circumstances and negotiations with the parties and we are unable to predict the timing of resolution of the
REAs.
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The Company’s capital investments principally relate to purchases of computer equipment and
purchases and development of software, and deferred outsourcing contract costs that have supported the
Company’s expanding Global Commercial operations in prior years. [nvestments include computer equip-
ment purchased at the inception of outsourcing contracts as well as for subsequent upgrades, expansion or
replacement of these client-supporting assets. For cash flow presentation purposes, the Outsourcing Con-
tracts line includes amounts paid to clients for assets purchased from the clients that are categorized as
property and equipment on the balance sheet. Outsourcing contract costs are also comprised of incremental
external costs as well as certain internal costs that directly relate to a contract’s acquisition or start-up.
including payments to clients for amounts in excess of the fair market value of acquired assets (premium).
The absence of significant new outsourcing contract awards during the latter part of fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007
resulted in a reduction in investing cash outflows for computer equipment and related facilities costs and for
outsourcing contract costs. These reductions in cash outflows were partially offset by cash outflows for the
acquisition of an identity management and credentialing business (see Note 4 in Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements) and an increase in cash outflows for purchase and development of software as a result
of software purchases in Europe, primarily for the National Health Service contract.

While increasing new business will typically require higher overall capital investments, the mix of the
new business will also impact the level of capital. The growth in U.S. federal awards during fiscal 2006 limited
the growth in overall capital investment in fiscal 2007 as U.S. federal contracts typically require lower levels
of initial investment when compared with similar commercial outsourcing contracts, This is expected to
continue during fiscal 2008 but is expected to be tempered somewhat by revenue resulting from an increase in
commercial contract awards during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, as well as the payment for capital
expenditures incurred during fiscal 2007 of approximately $110 million.

Dispositions of investments in businesses have from time to time generated investing cash flows for the
Company. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 the disposition of DynCorp International generated $775
million in cash proceeds. As discussed below the Company used these proceeds to reduce debt levels during
that quarter.

As described above, historically a majority of the Company's capital investments have been funded by
cash from operations. Fiscal 2007 continued to reflect this trend; however, the Company has increased its use
of capital leases to finance certain equipment purchases related to long term contracts with total capitai lease
obligations of $152 million as of March 30, 2007. The Company funded the acquisition and retirement of
outstanding shares from (wo accelerated share repurchase transactions during fiscal 2007 with approximately
$600 million of commercial paper and cash on hand. The commercial paper was redeemed during fiscal 2007
using cash generated from operating activities. During fiscal 2006 the Company financed its capital invest-
ments primarily with cash generated from operations. Financing cash flows for fiscal 2005 reflected the
Company’s use of the proceeds from the sale of DynCorp International to redeem $1.0 billion of term debt
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. Cash outflows to redeem the term debt included $27.8 million of early
redemption premiums. At vear-end fiscal 2007 and 2006, there was no outstanding commercial paper, a result
of cash generated from operations.

Partially offsetting the financing cash out flows were cash proceeds from the exercise of employee stock
options during fiscal 2007 and 2006 of $94.8 million and $101.1 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The balance of cash and cash equivalents was $1,050.1 million at March 30, 2007, $1,290.7 million at
March 31, 2006, and $1,010.3 million at April 1, 2005. During fiscal 2007, equity decreased $619.9 million
primarily as a result of the Company’s repurchase of outstanding shares through two accelerated share
repurchase transactions and the adoption SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” (SFAS No. 158), which required the recognition of an additional
unfunded pension obligation of $705.1 million ($476.5 miliion net of taxes) on the balance sheet. The
Company’s total unfunded pension obligation was $801.7 million at March 30, 2007. In prior years, the
unfunded pension obligation would have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Current year
earnings of $388.8 million, the exercise of employee stock options for $94.8 million and an increase in the
foreign currency translation adjustment of $248.3 million partially offset these reductions.
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At the end of fiscal 2007, CSC’s ratio of debt to total capitalization was 20.4%, up from the ratio at the
end of fiscal 2006 of 18.4%, and from 18.0% at the end of fiscal 2005. The increase in the debt ratio was
primarily the result of the decrease in equity due to the share repurchases and the impact of the adoption of
SFAS No. 158 as discussed above. The Company’s debt to total capitalization ratio of 20.4% is expected to
rise in fiscal 2008 as a result of financing the announced acquisition of Covansys Corporation as well as
financing the repurchase of up to $1 billion of cutstanding commeon stock under a Rule 10b5-1 purchase plan.
The capitalization ratio may also be impacted during fiscal 2008 by the need to finance other suitable
investments the Company may identify or other significant capital requirements that may arise.

Dollars in millions 2007 2006 2005
As As
Restated Restated
9 7Y $1,505.9 $1462.1  $1,388.7
BqUuity . e 5,885.5 6,5054  6,314.2
Total capitalization ................ ..o i $7391.4 $79675 §$7,702.9
Debt to total capitalization ..................ccooiiiiiaaLL 20.4% 18.4% 18.0%

The Company purchased and retired approximately 16.4 million outstanding commeon shares through
two accelerated share repurchase transactions for $1 billion during fiscal 2007. The first transaction was an
accelerated share repurchase agreement for 9.3 million shares for an initial purchase price of $500 million, or
$54 per share, subject to adjustment. The second transaction was a collared share repurchase agreement
under which the Company acquired 7.1 million shares for $500 million. The number of shares is subject to
adjustment upon final determination of the price per share subject to the terms of the collar. For the collared
share repurchase agreement the Company has no further obligation and may receive additional shares
depending on the final price per share. These transactions were financed through available cash on hand and
the issuance of approximately $600 million of commercial paper which has subsequently been redeemed.

The Company’s sources of liquidity include cash, commercial paper and committed and uncommitted
lines of credit. Short-term borrowings are principally used to supplement operating cash flow in funding
working capital requirements.

At March 30, 2007, the Company had a committed line of credit providing $1 billion of long-term
commercial paper backup which expires on August 23, 2011. If the Company were unable to sell its
commercial paper, borrow under its uncommitted lines of credit, or determines it is too costly to do either of
the aforementioned, the Company has the ability to borrow under this commiited line of credit. This line of
credit has the option of being drawn at a Base Rate, a Eurodollar Rate or a bid option rate. The line requires
the Company to 1) limit liens placed on our assets to $100 million and to liens incurred in the ordinary course
of business; 2) maintain a minimum interest coverage ratio of consolidated Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) to consolidated interest expense for the period of four consecu-
tive fiscal quarters ending on or immediately prior to such period not to exceed 3.00 to 1.00; and 3) not permit
at the end of any quarterly financial reporting period the ratio of consolidated total debt to consolidated
EBITDA for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters ending on or immediately prior to such date, to
exceed 3.00 to 1.00. For further details on this agreement please see Exhibit 10.23, which is incorporated by
reference to this Annual Report. As of March 30, 2007, the Company’s total liquidity was approximately
$2,050 million which included cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities of $1,050.1 million and
availability under the syndicated backstop credit facility of $1 billion. As of March 30, 2007, the Company
had no borrowings under this credit facility and was in compliance with all terms of the agreement.

At March 30, 2007, the Company had $51.9 million of short-term borrowings and $1.45 billion of long-
term debt. As further described in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, commercial paper is
classified as short-term borrowings. The Company had no outstanding commercial paper as of March 30,
2007.

In March 2005, the Company used the proceeds from the sale of DynCorp International and cash on
hand to redeem the 7.5% term notes due August 2005, and the 6.75% term notes due June 2006 for $998.9
million, and an early redemption premium of $27.8 million.
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On March 21, 2005. the Company instituted a voluntary share repurchase program for shareholders
owning less than 100 shares. Under this program which has now expired, the Company repurchased 48,443
shares for $2.2 million on April 25, 2005 and 11,000 shares for $.5 million on May 31, 2005.

In the opinion of management, CSC will be able to meet its liquidity and cash needs for the foreseeable
future through the combination of cash flows from operating activities, cash balances, and unused short-term
borrowing capacity. If these resources need to be augmented. major additional cash requirements would
likely be financed by the issuance of debt and/or equity securities and/or the exercise of the put option as
described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. During fiscal 2002, the Company filed a skelf
registration statement for up to $1.5 billion of debt and/or equity securities. The Company has previously
issucd $600 million worth of term debt from the shelf registration, leaving $900 million of shelf available for
additional securities. As a result of the delay in filing its second and third quarter Form 10-Q’s during fiscal
2007 the Company will not be able to utilize the available shelf registration to issue additionat securitics until
April of 2008. There can be no assurances the Company will be able to issue debt with acceptable terms.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the expiration of the Company’s financial guarantees outstanding as of
March 30, 2007:

Fiscal 2010

Dollars in millions Fiscal 2008  Fiscal 2009 & thercafter Total
Performance guarantees:
Surety bonds ... $§ 224 § 24 $ 2438
Lettersof credit ....... ... 366.1 186.2 $1041 5624
Standby letters of credit ... oo 72.0 1.0 73.0
Forcign subsidiary debt guarantees ......................... 5439 232 567 1
Total ... $1.0044  $189.6 §33.3 $1,227.3

See Note 10 to the notes to consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

The following table summarizes the Company's payments on contractual obligations by period as of
March 30, 2007:

Less than More than

Dollars in milllions 1 year 1-3 years  3-5 vears 5 years Total
Long-termdebt ... ... ... o § 4994 $4985  $297.8  §1.2957
Interest on fixed ratedebt ........ ... ... ... ...... ... $ 749 171 76.1 13.7 281.8
Capital lease obligations.......... ... ... .. .. ... .... 41.5 36.5 16.7 57.1 151.8
Bank debt ... oo 519 519
Operating leases .......... it 302.1 397.8 1999 125.6 1.025.¢
Minimum purchase obligations ....................... 4353 3134 53.8 802.2
Other long-term liabilities ............................ 3 34 27 A 6.2

Total ... $906.0 $1.367.6 $847.7  $4943  $3.615€

Regarding minimum purchase obligations included above, the Company has signed long-term purchase
agreements with certain software, hardware, telecommunication and other service providers to obtain
favorable pricing, committed service levels and terms for services necessary for the operation of business
activities. The Company is contractually committed to purchase specified service minimums over remaining
periods ranging generally from one to five years. If the Company does not meel the specified service
minimums, the Company may have an obligation to pay the service provider a portion or all of the shortfall.
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The above excludes estimated minimum funding requirements for retiree benefit plans as set forth by
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). The Company has numerous plans, both inside
and outside of the U.S., and determines expected funding requirements on a per-plan basis. The minimum
funding requirement can vary significantly from year to year based on a variety of factors, and can be zero in
some years. Funding is determined based on a review of benefit obligations and plan assets as well as various
regulatory requirements including ERISA and Cost Accounting Standards (CAS) applied to U.S. govern-
ment contracts. While there are certain minimum contribution requirements, CSC may elect to increase the
level of funding of contributions based on a number of factors including performance of pension investments,
changes in workforce composition and the ability to recover costs on cost reimbursable contracts. During
fiscal 2008, the Company expects to make contributions of approximately $240 million to pension and
postretirement benefit plans. The Company has not quantified expected contributions beyond fiscal 2008
because it is not possible to predict future timing or direction of the capital markets, which can have a
significant impact on future minimum funding obligations. Refer to the Critical Accounting Estimates section
later in this MD&A and to Note 12 to the notes to consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Fiscal 2007 Company contributions amounted to $248.8 million. These fiscal year contribution figures
may differ from those in Note 12 to the notes to consolidated financial statements due to the use of a
December 3ist measurement date in that note.

Dividends and Redemption

It has been the Company’s policy to invest earnings in the growth of the Company rather than distribute
earnings as dividends. This policy, under which dividends have not been paid since fiscal 1969, is expected to
continue, but is subject to review by the Board of Directors.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). Our significant accounting policies are described in
~Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements under “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” The
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, as well
as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, We base our estimates and judgments on historical
experience and other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Many of the types of
estimates made are for contract-specific issues. Changes to estimates or assumptions on a specific contract
could result in a material adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

We have identified several critical accounting estimates. An accounting estimate is considered critical if
both: (a) the nature of the estimates or assumptions is material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment
involved, and (b) the impact of changes in the estimates and assumptions would have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements. Our critical accounting estimates relate to: revenue recognition and cost
estimation and recoverability on long-term, fixed-price contracts; revenue recognition on software license
sales that require significant customization; capitalization of outsourcing contract costs and software develop-
ment costs; estimates used to determine deferred income taxes; assumptions related to purchase accounting
and goodwill; assumptions to determine retirement benefits costs and liabilities; and assumptions and
estimates used to analyze contingencies and litigation. For all of these estimates, we caution that future
events rarely develop exactly as forecast, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment.
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Revenue recognition

The majority of our revenue is recognized based on objective criteria and does not require significant
estimates. Revenue from our fixed unit price contracts, lime and materials contracts and cost plus contrac s is
recognized based on objective criteria and is not subject to estimates that may change over time. However,
for our fixed-price contracts that use percentage-of-completion accounting, which is less than seven percent
of the Company’s revenues. the determination of revenues and costs requires significant judgment and
estimation. Under this method we recognize revenue on a constant margin as contract milestones or other
output based measures are achieved. Costs are deferred until contractual milestones or other output based! or
cost based measures are achieved. The method requires estimates of costs and profits over the entire tern. of
the contract, including estimates of resources and costs necessary to complete performance. Such estime tes
are particularly difficult on activitics involving state-of-thc-art technologies such as system developm:nt
projects. The cost estimation process is based upon the professional knowledge and experience of our
software and systems engineers, program managers and financial professionals. Key factors that are contid-
ered in estimating the work to be completed and ultimate contract profitability include the availability ¢nd
productivity of labor and the nature and complexity of the work to be performed. A significant change in an
estimate on one or more contracts could have a material effect on our results of operations. Gur manageme:nt
regularly reviews project profitability and the underlying estimates.

Modifications to contract scope, schedule. and price may be required on development contra:ts
accounted for on a percentage-of-completion basis. Accounting for such changes prior to formal contrict
modification requires evaluation of the charactenistics and circumstances of the effort completed aad
assessment of probability of recovery. If recovery is deemed probable. we may, as appropriate, either de:er
the costs until the parties have agreed on the contract change or recognize the costs and related revenue as
current period contract performance. We routinely negotiate such contract modifications in both the North
American Public Sector and Global Commercial segments.

Many of our contracts call for us to provide a range of services or elements to our customers. The toial
estimated revenue for these contracts is allocated to the various services or elements based on relative fiir
value. These relative fair values are determined based on objective evidence of fair value. Once the 101al
estimated revenue has been allocated to the various contract elements, revenue for each element is
recognized based on the relevant revenue recognition method for the services performed or elements
delivered.

Estimates of total revenue at contract inception often differ materially from actual revenue due 0
volume difference, changes in technology or other factors which may oot be foreseen at inception.

Revenue recognition on software license sales that require significant customization

If significant customization is required in the delivery of a proprietary software product, revenue s
recognized as the software customization services are performed in accordance with the percentage-o -
completion method described above. Thus, cost and profit estimates are required over the life of the projec..
and changes in such cstimates can have a material effect on results.

Capitalization of outsourcing contract costs

Certain costs incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing contract are deferred and amortized over the
contract life. These costs consist of contract acquisition and transition/set-up costs, and include the cost of
due diligence activities after competitive selection. costs associated with installation of systems and processes,
and amounts paid to clients in excess of the fair market value of acquired assets (premiums). Finance stafl,
working with program management, review costs to determine appropriateness for deferral in accordance
with relevant accounting guidance.
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Key estimates and assumptions that we must make include assessing the fair value of acquired assets in
order to calculate the premium and projecting future cash flows in order to assess the recoverability of
deferred costs. We utilize the experience and knowledge of our professional staff in program management,
operations, procurement and finance areas, as well as third parties on occasion, to determine fair values of
assets acquired. To assess recoverability, undiscounted estimated cash flows of the contract are projected
over its remaining life and compared to the unamortized deferred cost balance. Such estimates require
judgment and assumptions, which are based upon the professional knowledge and experience of our
personnel. Key factors that are considered in estimating the undiscounted cash flows include projected labor
costs and productivity efficiencies. A significant change in an estimate or assumption on one or more
contracts could have a material effect on our results of operations. Amortization of such premiums is
recorded as a reduction to revenues.

Capitalization of software development costs

We capilalize certain costs incurred to develop commercial software products and to develop or
purchase internal-use software. Significant estimates and assumptions include: determining the appropriate
period over which to amortize the capitalized costs based on the estimated useful lives, estimating the
marketability of the commercial software products and related future revenues, and assessing the unamor-
tized cost balances for impairment. For commercial software products, determining the appropriate amorti-
zation period is based on estimates of future revenues from sales of the products. We consider various factors
to project marketability and future revenues, including an asscssment of alternative solutions or products,
current and historical demand for the product, and anticipated changes in technology that may make the
product obsolete. For internal-use software, the appropriate amortization period is based on estimates of our
ability to utilize the software on an ongoing basis. To assess the realizability or recoverability of capitalized
software costs, we must estimate future revenue, costs and cash flows. Such estimates require assumptions
about future cash inflows and outflows, and are based on the experience and knowledge of professional staff.
A significant change in an estimate related to one or more software products could result in a material change
to our results of operations.

Estimates used to determine income tax expernse

We make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial statement
purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilitics, which
principally arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financial
statement purposes. We also must analyze income tax reserves, as well as determine the likelihood of
recoverability of deferred tax assets, and adjust any valuation allowances accordingly. Considerations with
respect 1o the recoverability of deferred tax assets include the period of expiration of the tax asset, planned
use of the tax asset, and historical and projected taxable income as well as tax liabilities for the tax
jurisdiction to which the tax asset relates. Valuation allowances are evaluated periodically and will be subject
to change in each future reporting period as a result of changes in one or more of these factors.

Assumptions related to purchase accounting and goodwill

We account for our acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting. This method requires
estimates to determine the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired, including judgments to determine any
acquired intangible assets such as customer-related intangibles, as well as assessments of the fair value of
existing assets such as property and equipment. Liabilities acquired can include balances for litigation and
other contingency reserves established prior to or at the time of acquisition, and require judgment in
ascertaining a reasonable value. Third party valuation firms may be used to assist in the appraisal of certain
assets and liabilities, but even those determinations would be based on significant estimates provided by us,
such as forecasted revenues or profits on contract-related intangibles. Numerous factors are typically
considered in the purchase accounting assessments, which are conducted by Company professionals from
legal, finance, human resources, information systems, program management and other disciplines. Changes
in assumptions and estimates of the acquired assets and liabilities would result in changes to the fair values,
resulting in an offsetting change to the goodwill balance associated with the business acquired.
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As goodwill is not amortized, goodwill balances are regularly assessed for potential impairment. Such
assessments require an analysis of future cash flow projections as well as a determination of an appropriate
discount rate to calculate present values. Cash flow projections are based on management-approved
estimates, which involve the input of numerous Company professionals from finance, operations and
program management. Key factors used in estimating future cash flows include assessments of labor and
other direct costs on existing contracts, estimates of overhead costs and other indirect costs, and assessments
of new business prospects and projected win rates. Significant changes in the estimates and assumptions used
in purchase accounting and goodwill impairment testing can have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Assumptions to determine retirement benefits costs and liabilities

We offer a number of pension and postretirement benefit and life insurance benefit plans. CSC utilizes
actuarial methods required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 87, as amended by
SFAS No. 158 for fiscal 2007, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” and SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” 10 account for pension and postretirement
benefit plans, respectively. The actuarial methods require numerous assumptions to calculate the net periodic
pension benefit expense and the related pension benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans. Two
of the most significant assumptions are the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and discount
rates. In making these assumptions, we are required to consider current market conditions, including changes
in interest rates. Changes in the related net periodic pension costs may occur in the future due to changes in
these and other assumptions.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets should, over time, approximate the actual long-
term returns on pension plan assets. The assumption for the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
is selected by taking into account the expected duration of the projected benefit obligation for each plan, the
asset mix of the plan, historic plan asset returns as well as current market conditions and other factors. The
weighted-average of the expected long-term rates of return. for all plans, on plan assets utilized for the fiscal
2007 pension plan valuations was 7.7% compared to 7.8% used in fiscal 2006. Holding all other assumptions
constant, a one-half percent increase or decrease in each of the assumed rates of return on plan assets would
have decreased or increased, respectively, the net periodic pension cost by approximately $16 million.

An assumed discount rate is required to be used in each pension plan actuarial valuation. The discount
rate assumption reflects the market rate for high-qualily, fixed income debt instruments based on the
expected duration of the benefit payments for each of our pension plans as of the annual measurement date
and is subject to change each year. The weighted-average of the discount rates utilized for the fiscal 2007
pension plan valuations was 5.3% compared to 5.6% used for fiscal 2006. Holding all other assumptions
constant, a one-half percent increase or decrease in each of the assumed discount rates wouid have decreased
the net periodic pension cost by approximately $40 million, or increased it by approximately $52 million,
respectively. Some portion of the increase or decrease would be moderated by cost reimbursable contracts.

The accounting guidance includes mechanisms that serve to limit the volatility in earnings which would
otherwise result from recording changes in the value of plan assets and benefit abligations in the consolidated
financial statements in the periods in which such changes occur. For example, while the expected long-term
rate of return on plan assets should, over time, approximate the actual long-term returns, differences
between the expected and actual returns may occur in any given year. Such differences contribute to the
deferred actuarial gains or losses which are then amortized over time. For CSC, positive market returns for
fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007 caused actual pension plan asset returns to exceed those expected. Declining
discount rates over the past several years, which resulted in higher calculated benefit obligations, served 1o
partially offset or more than offset the positive impact of the asset returns for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006,
respectively.

For fiscal 2007, SFAS No. 158 requires recognition of a pension obligation if the fair value of plan assets
is less than the projected benefit obligation (PBO) at the end of the year. For fiscal 2006, SFAS No. 87
requires recognition of a minimum pension obligation if the fair value of plan assets is less than the
accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) at the end of the year. At the end of fiscal 2007, a number of our
pension plans had PBOs in excess of the fair value of their respective plan assets, thus requiring the
recognition of additional pension obligations. The effect of this adjustment and the annual measurement was
to increase pension liability by $403.5 million, decrease intangible assets by $16 million, decrease non-current

45




asset by $87.4 million, and increase accumulated comprehensive loss by $539.7 million ($376.0 million net of
taxes). Based on future plan asset performance and interest rates, additional charges to equity might be
required.

Assumptions and estimates used to analyze contingencies and litigation

We are subject to various claims and contingencies associated with lawsuits, insurance, tax and other
issues arising out of the normal course of business. The consolidated financial statements reflect the
treatment of claims and contingencies based on management’s view of the expected outcome. CSC consults
with legal counsel on issues related to litigation and seeks input from other experts and advisors with respect
to matters in the ordinary course of business. If the likelihood of an adverse outcome is probable and the
amount is estimable, we accrue a liability in accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”
Significant changes in the estimates or assumptions used in assessing the likelihood of an adverse outcome
could have a material effect on the consolidated financial results.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk Interest Rates

The Company utilizes fixed-rate long-term debt obligations, short-term commercial paper and other
borrowings subject to market risk from changes in interest rates. Sensitivily analysis is one technique used to
measure the impact of changes in interest rates on the value of market-risk sensitive financial instruments. A
hypothetical 10% movement in interest rates would not have a material impact on the Company’s future
earnings or cash flows and fair value of fixed rate debit.

Foreign Currency

During the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into certain contracts denominated in
foreign currency. Potential foreign currency exposures arising from these contracts are analyzed during the
contract bidding process. The Company generally manages these transactions by incurring costs to service
contracts in the same currency in which revenue is received. Short-term contract financing requirements are
met by borrowing in the same currency. By generally matching revenues, costs and borrowings to the same
currency, the Company has been able to substantially mitigate foreign currency risk to earnings. However,
the Company is increasing its use of offshore support and is therefore becoming more exposed to currency
fluctuations. The Company may use foreign currency forward contracts or options to hedge exposures arising
from these transactions.

During fiscal 2007, 38.2% of the Company's revenue was gencrated outside of the United States. Using
sensitivity analysis. a hypothetical 10% increase in the value of the U.S. dollar against all currencies would
decrease revenue by 3.82% or $567.9 million, while a hypothetical 10% decrease in the value of the U.S,
doliar against all currencies would increase revenue by 3.82% or $567.9 million. In the opinion of manage-
ment, a substantial portion of this fluctuation would be offset by expenses incurred in local currency. As a
result, a hypotheticat 10% movement of the value of the U.S. dollar against all currencies in either direction
would impact the Company’s earnings before interest and taxes by $8.3 million. This amount would be offset,
in part, from the impacts of local income taxes and local currency interest expense.

At March 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $914.1 million of non-U.S. dollar denominated cash
and cash equivalents, and approximately $51.9 million of non-U.S. dollar barrowings.
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Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

Consolidated Financial Statements
Management’s Report on Internal Control ......... ... ... ... ... e
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ...,

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended March 30, 2007, March 31, 2006
(As Restated) and April 1, 2005 (As Restated) .......ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i,

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006
L T =T T )

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended March 30, 2007,
March 31, 2006 (As Restated) and April 1, 2005 (As Restated) ............cooooiiiiiiiiiaian

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended March 30, 2007, March 31,
2006 (As Restated) and April 1, 2005 (As Restated) ..........coviiinii e

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ... ... ... i e et eeieens

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) ........... ... i i,

Schedule

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended March 30, 2007, March 31,
2006 and APril 1, 2005 . .. e
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53

54

56

57
58
110

124

Schedules other than that listed above have been omitted since they are either not required, are not
applicable, or the required information is shown in the consclidated financial statements or related notes,
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Computer Sciences Corporation (the Company) is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for external reporting purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures pertaining to
the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect transactions and disposi-
tions of assets; provide reasonable assurance transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and the directors of the Company: and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statcments. All internal controls, no matier how well
designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even where internal control over financial reporting is
determined to be effective, it can provide only reasonable assurance. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to {uture periods are subject to the risk controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As of the end of the Company's 2007 fiscal year, management conducted an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or a combination of
significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement to the
Company's annuat or interim financial statements will not be prevenied or detected. In the course of the
Company’s assessmenl, it has identified the following material weakness in internal control over financial
reporting: there are insufficient knowledgeable and competent personnel in certain key positions within the
tax function and processes and procedurcs over accounting for income taxes are not adequate for the
Company’s size and complexity. As a result of this material weakness in internal control over the accounting
for income taxes, material errors in income tax expense and related liabilitics and deferred tax assets
occurred in fiscal 2007 and prior years which resulted in restatements, as described in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly. managemenl has determined the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of March 30, 2007 was not effective.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial report-
ing as of March 30, 2007 has been audited by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm.
as stated in their report appearing on page 50.

Date: June 13, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Computer Sciences Corporation
El Segundo, California

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that Computer Sciences Corporation (the Company) did not
maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 30, 2007, because of the effect of the
material weakness identified in management’s assessment based on the criteria established in fnrernal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects, Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluat-
ing management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision
of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions,
and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ounly in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the
internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance wilh the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

A malterial weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in
management’s assessment: there are insufficient knowledgeable and competent tax personnel and the
Company’s processes and procedures for accounting for income taxes are inadequate for the Company’s size
and complexity. As a result of this material weakness in the design of internal control over accounting for
income taxes, material errors in income tax expense and related liabilities and deferred tax assets occurred in
fiscal 2007 and prior years. This deficiency results in a more than remote likelihood that a material
misstatement to the Company’s income tax expense and related liabilities and deferred tax asset accounts in
the annual or interim financial statemenis will not be prevented or detected. This material weakness was
considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the consoli-
dated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended March 30, 2007 of
the Company and this report does not affect our report on such financial statements and financial statement
schedule.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting as of March 30, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects. based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza-
tions of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness
described above on the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of March 30, 2007, based on the criteria established in frternal Con-
trol—lImegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited. in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for
the year ended March 30, 2007 of the Company and our report dated June 13, 2007 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial stalements and financiat statement schedule. and includes an explanatory para-
graph relating 1o the Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.
123(R), Share-Based Payment on April 1,2006 and SFAS No. 158, Emplover's Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirentent Plans—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R on
March 30, 2007.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Los Angeles, California
June 13. 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Computer Sciences Corporation
El Segundo, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Computer Sciences Corporation (the
Company) as of March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 30, 2007. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 8. These financial statements
and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Computer Sciences Corporation as of March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 30, 2007, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1, Note 12 and Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment on April 1,
2006 and SFAS No. 158, Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R on March 30, 2007.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated the accompa-
nying consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended March 31, 2006.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
March 30, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated June 13, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Los Angeles, California
June 13, 2007
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal Year Ended

In millions (except per-share amounts) March 30, 2007  March 31, 2006 April 1, 2005
As Restated'?  As RestatedV)
REVENUES ..ottt ettt e et e e $14,856.6 $14,639.0 $14,080.0
Costs of services (excludes depreciation and amortization). .. 11,817.8 11,724.0 11,320.1
Selling, general and administrative .......... . ... oL 916.4 B62.5 856.7
Depreciation and amortization ............ ... ..o 1,073.6 1,091.8 1,051.0
Interest eXpense. . ....oovir i e 175.2 120.9 159.4
INterest INCOME .. .. .ot ce e (49.5) (40.8) (16.1)
Special IteMS ... ... i e 316.1 713 28.6
Total costs and eXpenses..........cvveviviriiiiininninennn. 14,249.6 13,835.7 13,399.7
Income from continuing operations before taxes ............ 607.0 803.3 680.3
TAXES ON MICOMMIE .ot eie it v ae e eae et aeae e ae i 218.2 3322 236.0
Income from continuing operations ........................ 3888 4711 444.3
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes .......... 35.0
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes........ 61.3 228.8
Discontinued operations, net of taxes ....................... 61.3 3138
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of
L 41O {4.3)

Net ICOME L. e e e $ 3888 $ 5281 $ 7581
Earnings per common share:

Continuing Operations .............ovvvereneraereaen... $ 221 $ 254 $ 234

Discontinued operations .. ............ ... ..ol 0.33 1.66

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. .. .. (0.02)

=
)
wy
2.
0
*
o

221 $ 284 $ 400

Continuing Operations ............ooiiiiiiiiiiaraiinas $ 216 $§ 231 P} 23
Discontinued operations ... 033 1.64
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. .. .. (0.02)

Diluted®. .. .. e $ 216 § 281 $ 395

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding.

() See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)

53




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
March 30, March 31,
In millions 2007 2006
As Restated'V
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ...... ... ... i, $ 1,050.1 $ 1,290.7
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $58.0 (2007) and
$68.4 (2006) .. ..ot 4,184.3 3,732.6
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets ....................o L 14720 1,268.9
Total CUITENt @SSeL5 . . ..ottt ie e ieiieaiiniiaeaneennns 6,706.4 6,292.2

Investments and other assets:
Software, net of accumulated amortization of $830.3 (2007} and $732.4

(2006) . .. et e e 5133 453.3
Outsourcing contract costs, net of accumulated amortization of $1,167.9
(2007) and $1,112.8 (2000) .. ... ..ottt e e 1,029.5 1,175.3
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $340.1 (2007) and $323.0
(2008) ..ot e e e 2,505.2 2,306.3
Other BSSELS . .. ...ttt e e 437.0 474.5
Total investments and other assets ..............coiiiviivineannns 4,485.0 4.409.4
Property and equipment—at cost:
Land, buildings and lease hold improvements.......................... 1,001.0 913.4
Computers and related equipment............oooii it 4,189.7 40399
Furniture and other equipment...........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 422.2 414.6
56129 5,367.9
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization....................... 3,073.8 3,0478
Property and equipment, net ................oiiiiiiii i 2,539.1 2,320.1

$13,730.5 $13021.7

(1) See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)
| LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

March 30, March 31,
In millions 2007 2006

As Restated'V

‘ Current liabilities:
|

Short-term debt and current maturities of long-termdebt ...._......... $§ 937 $ 853

Accounts payable. . ... 835.7 705.1

Accrued payroll and related costs ............. o 732.5 707.5

! Other accrued eXpenses ... ..ot i 1,799.3 1,4427
Deferred reVenUE ... ..o i e e 1.025.5 634.3

Federal, state and foreign income 1axes............cooveiiiivivnareans 752.9 7937

| Total current liabilities ........... ... oo 5.259.6 4,368.6
. Long-term debt. net of current maturities ... iannns 1,412.2 1,376.8
Other long-term liabilities . ... ... e 1,173.2 770.9

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock par value $1 per share; authorized 1,000,000 shares;
RONE ISSUEA ... .o i e s
Common stock, par value $1 per share; authorized 750,000,000 shares;

issued 181,105,129 (2007) and 194,904,250 (2006) .................... 181.1 1949
Additional paid-in capital .......... ... o 1,876.3 1,882.0
Earnings retained for use in business . ............ ... . i 4250.6 46928
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ... (68.5) 106.8

6.239.5 6.876.5
Less common stock in treasury, at cost, 7,787,140 (2007) and 7,653,655

Shares (2006) . ...t e e e et (354.0) (347.1)

Unearned restricted stock . ... i (24.0)
Stockholders’ equity, net ....... ... e 5,885.5 6,505.4

$13,730.5 $13,021.7

(1) See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements,

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended

In millions (except per-share amounts)

Cash flows from operating activities:

March 30, 2007 March 31, 2006 _April 1, 2005

As Restated")

As RestatedV

NetinCOME .. ..ot i reee e, $ 3888 $ 5281 $ 7581
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ........................... 1,162.0 1,1872.5 1,145.5
Stock based compensation .............ieiiiiiiiiienan.n 58.7 329 18.4
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.. ... .. 43
Deferred taxes. ... .ovvvniennneriie e i (51.9) 129.4 1429
Special IeIMS ..ottt i e e 23 773 28.6
Gain on dispositions, net of tax ...............ccoeunanL. (23.2) (60.9) (229.7)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable ............... 55 28.7 10.7
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation ........ (12.1)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisitions and dispositions:
Increase inreceivables. ...l (238.0) (261.5) (314.7)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets. .. (324.8) (193.4) (400.2)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accruals ... 3482 (49.9) 4935
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable............ (75.3) 72.6 98.9
Increase in deferred revenue........................... 3401 73.5 222.8
Other operating activities, net........................u {(1.7) (17.3) (33.3)
Net cash provided by operating activities ................... 1,578.6 1,551.3 1,941.5
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment....................... (685.9) (826.9) (855.2)
Outsourcing CONtIACES . ... ..iutvriirieierninararnnanes (112.7) (242.5) (416.5)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired .......................... (134.3) (44.1) (20.5)
Business dispositions......... ... ... . i 2.8 3 819.1
SO tWATE . ..ottt e i (154.2) (151.1) (205.1)
Other investing activities, net..................c.ooiiian. 211.6 140.1 82.8
Net cash used in investing activities. ................cooiit (872.7) (1,124.0) {595.4)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under lines of credit............................ 542.9 454.9 47.9
Repayment of borrowings under lines of credit ............. (564.4) (477.3) (25.8)
Principal payments on long-termdebt ...................... (40.8) (8.5) {7.4)
Redemptionof debt............. ... it (1,025.2)
Proceeds from stock options, net of tax and other common
StOCK tranSaCtionNS . . .. .. ovit ittt et 94.8 101.1 107.8
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation .......... 12.1
Repurchase of common stock ...........cociiiiiiiininnn.n. (1,000.0)
Acquisition of treasury Stock .......... .. iiiieii s (227.7)
Other financing activities, net ..............ccoiivivnenen... (1) 6.8 2.1
Net cash used in financing activities ........................ (955.5) (150.7) (900.6)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 9.0 38 2.0
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .......... (240.6) 280.4 4475
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year................ 1,290.7 _1,010.3 562.8
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ..................... $ 1,050.1 $ 1,290.7 $ 1,010.3

(1) See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements.

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In millions except shares in
thousands

Balance as of April 2, 2004 as
previously reported ........

Adjustmenis to opening share-
holder's equity (1) .........

Balance at April 2, 2004 as
restated (1) ...............
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .................
Currency translation adjustment
Unfunded pension obligation . .
Unrealized loss on available for
sale securities ...

Comprehensive income .. ... ..
Stock based compensation
expense and option exercises

Balance at April 1,2005 ......
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ...,
Currency transkation adjustment
Unfunded pension obligation . .
Unrealized loss on available for
sale securities .............

Comprehensive income .. .....

Acquisition of treasury stock ..

Stock based compensation
expense and option exercises

Balance at March 31, 2006 . ...
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ...t
Currency translation adjustment
Uniunded pension obligation . .
Unrealized loss on available for
sale securities ..., ... ...
Reclassification adjustment for
gains realized in net income

Comprehensive income .......
Acquisition of treasury stock .,
Stock based compensation
expense and option exercises
Amortization and forfeilures of
restricted stock ...l
Repurchase common stock .. ..
Adjustment to initially ap;:ly
FASB Statement No. 158, net
oflaxes. .............. ...

Balance at March 30, 2007 ...

Earnings Accumulated
Additional  Retained Other Common  Unearned
Common Stock Paid-In ~ For Usein Comprehensive Stockin  Restricted
Shares Amount Capital Business  Income (Loss)  Trensury Stock Total
As As As As As

Restated'®  Restated'"  Restated'” Restated"  Restated'"

188.294.0 31883 $1.539.2 $3.397.9 $198.4 $(192y § (9 §355037
55.1 (191.3) (136.2)

188.294.0 188.3 1.594.3 3.406.6 198.4 (19.2) (9 5.367.5
758.1 758.1

94.3 94.3
(37.7) (37.7)

1) (1)

8146

3.368.2 34 138.6 (D (9.8) 132.1
191,662.2 191.7 1,732.9 4,164.7 2549 {19.3) (10.7) 6,314.2
528.1 528.1

(164.6) (169.6)

14.2 14.2

73 73

380.0
(327.8) (327.8)

3.242.1 32 149.1 {13.3) 139.0
1949043 194.9 1.882.0 4.692.8 106.8 (347.1) (24.0) 6.505.4
388.8 3888

248.3 2483

588 588

1.6 1.0
6.9) (69)

690.0

(6.9) (6.9)

2.603.0 2.6 146.9 149.5
24.0 24.0

{16,402.1) (16.4) (152.6) (831.0) {1.000.00
(476.5) (476.5)

181,105.2  $181.1 $1.876.3 $4,250.6 $ (68.5) $(354.0) § 58855

() See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements.

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)

57




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include those of Computer Sciences Corporation,
its subsidiaries and those joint ventures and partnerships over which it exercises control, hereafter collec-
tively referred to as “CSC” or “‘the Company.” Investments in business entities in which the Company does
not have controi, but has the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies,
generaily 20 - 50 percent ownership, are accounted for by the equity method. Other investments are
accounted for by the cost method. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Reclassification
Prior period amounts have been adjusted to conform to current year presentation.

‘The Company has reclassified pension plans which have asset balances from other long-term liabilities to
other assets. The reclassifications have been made to the prior period consolidated balance sheet to conform
to the current year presentation, As a result the Company’s March 31, 2006 balance sheet herein reflects an
$86.3 reclassification of other long-term liabilities to other assets. The balance sheet was the only financial
statement impacted by this reclassification.

Prior year pension disclosure amounts have been restated to exclude a government plan which the
Company has determined does not fall under SFAS No. 132(R) (as modified by SFAS No. 158), as the
Company is not the plan sponsor.

Accounting Change

The Company adopted FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 158,
“Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R,” effective March 30, 2007. This Statement requires recognition of
the overfunded or underfunded status of single-employer defined benefit postretirement plans as assets or
liabilities, respectively, on the balance sheet. Changes to the funded status of the defined benefit plans are
recognized in comprehensive income in the year in which the change occurs. Changes in the funded status are
measured based on the projected benefit obligation for pension plans and the accumulated benefit obligation
for other postretirement plans.

SFAS No. 158 further requires that the funded status of a defined benefit plan be measured as of the
Company’s fiscal year end balance sheet date. This provision is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008, The Company has not yet determined the impact of this change to its financial
statements.

The provisions of SFAS No. 158 were applied prospectively as of March 30, 2007 with the exception of
the measurement date provision which will be applied in fiscal 2009.
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of March
30. 2007 was as follows:

Before After

Adoption of Adoption of

SFAS No, 158 Adjustments  SFAS No. 158
OLher a8SELS ..ottt § 3835 $(146.5) $ 4370
Total assets ... .. 13.877.0 {146.5) 13.730.5
Other accrued eXpense. . ......ooovie i ine e 1,783.3 16.0 1.799.3
Income taxes payable ..... ... ... ... 981.5 (228.6) 7529
Total current liabilities ............... ... .. oL 54722 (212.6) 5259.6
Other long-term liabilities............... ... o 630.6 542.6 1.173.2
Accumulated other comprehensive income ............ 408.0 {476.3) (68.3)
Total stockholders” equity ... ... oo enn. 6,362.0 (476.5) 5.885.5
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity ............... 13877.0 (146.3) 13.730.5

On April 1. 2006 the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R}. “Share-Based Payment.” The Company has
adopted the modified prospective transition method and therefore has not restated the results of prior
periods. Under this method. the Company is required to recognize compensation expensc cqual to the fair
value of partially vested share-based awards at April 1. 2006 over the remaining period of service. as well as
the compensation expense for those share-based awards granted or modified on or after April 1. 2006. The
lotal stock-based compensation expense for awards issued on or after April 1. 2006 is recorded on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period based on the grant-date fair values. For those awards granted prior to the
date of adoption, compensation expensc is recognized on an accelerated basis based on the grant-date fair
value amount as calculated for pro forma purposes under SFAS No. 123. The fair values are estimated using
the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model as discussed further below. With respect to the income tax
benefits associated with exercises of share-based payvments. the Company has elected to adopt the alternative
transition method as permitted by Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS
123(R)-3: Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.

Prior 1o the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation
expense under Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25 “*Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees™ and related interpretations. The Company disclosed in its prior financial statements certain pro
forma net income and earnings per share information under SFAS No. 123 **Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” as amended by SFAS No. 148 * Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure.™

In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R). the Company recognized $58.4 of stock-based compensation
expense ($41.2 net of tax) for fiscal 2007. Of this amount. $13.8 was charged to costs of services and $44.6 was
charged to selling, general and administrative expense. respectively. As a result of adopting SFAS No.
123(R), income from continuing operations before taxes for fiscal 2007 was $48.4 ($34.2 net of tax) lower than
had the Company continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. The impact on both
basic and diluted earnings per share for the same period was $.19 per share.
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Nete 1-—Sammary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

The following pro forma table illustrates the impact on net income and earnings per share had the -
Company applied the fair value expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 for the years ended March
31, 2006 and April 1, 2005:

Fiscal Year Fisca! Year
Ended Ended
March 31, 2006 April 1, 2005

As Restated!™  As Restated'V

N R et ) 1 1 =S $528.1 $758.1
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in
reported net income, nct of related tax effects.................. 23.8 13.3

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of

related tax effects ..........oo i i (34.3) (38.7)
Pro forma net inCOME. .. ... oovir ittt $517.6 $732.7
Earnings per share:

Basic—asreported ...... ... . 2.84 4.00
Basic—proforma ....... ... . 2.79 3.86
Diluted—as reported . ...........oiiii i 2.81 395
Diluted—pro forma .......coov i 275 382

(I} See Nole 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

As indicated, the Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton model in determining the fair value of
options granted. In applying this model, the expected term was calculated based on the Company’s historical
experience with respect to its stock plan activity and is representative of the period of time that the stock-
based awards are expected to be outstanding. Beginning April 1, 2006, the Company determined separate
assumptions for the expected term of options granted based on three separate job tier classifications which
had distinct historical exercise behavior. This resulted in separate fair value calculations by job tier. The risk-
free interest rate was based on the zero coupon interest rate of U.S. Government issued Treasury strips with a
period commensurate with the expected term of the options. In determining the overall risk-free interest
rate, a range of interest rates from 4.11% to 4.96% was applied depending on the expected life of the grant.
Expected volatility was based on a blended approach using an equal weighting of implied volatility and
historical volatility. Historical volatility was based on the Company’s 10-year historical daily closing price.
Implied volatility was based on option trading behavior for those options traded on certain exchange markets
that have maturities of nine months and longer. The range of volatility used for fiscal 2007 was 28% to 33%.
Forfeitures were estimated based on historical experience.

The weighted average fair values of stock options granted during fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005
were $16.67, §15.59 and $16.95 per share, respectively. In calculating the actual and pro forma compensation
expense for its stock incentive plans, the Company used the following weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2003
Risk-free interest rate............. o viiiiinen, 4.84% 3.73% 3.47%
Expected volatility ............................... 28% 41% 47%
Expected lives . ...t 4.09 years 3.87 years 3.67 years
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company implemented Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. (FIN) 47,
“ Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143”
at December 31, 2005. The Company’s asset retirement obligation relates to leases which require the leased
facilities be restored to their original condition upon expiration of the lease. As a result of adopting FIN 47,
the Company recorded a liability for the asset retirement obligation of approximately $8.5 and recorded a
charge to a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for $5.6 ($4.3 after tax). Pro forma effects of
implementing FIN 47 were not disclosed as they were not material.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s primary service offerings are information technology (I/T) outsourcing and I/T and
other professional services. The Company provides these services under time and materials, cost-reimburs-
able, unit-price and fixed price contracts. The form of contract, rather than the type of service offering, is the
primary determinant of revenue recognition. Except as described below for certain fixed price contracts,
revenues are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services or products have been
provided to the client, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

For time and materials contracts, revenue is recorded at agreed-upon billing rates at the time services are
provided.

For cost-reimbursable contracts, revenue is recorded at the time cosis are incurred and associated fees
are recognized when probable and estimable by applying an estimated factor to costs as incurred, such factor
being determined by the contract provisions and prior experience.

Revenue is recognized on unit-price contracts based on unit metrics times the agreed upon contract unit
price.

Revenue on eligible fixed price contracts is recognized on the basis of the estimated percentage-of-
completion. Eligible coniracts include certain software development projects and fixed price arrangements
with the U.S. Federal government. Currently, less than seven percent of the Company’s revenues are
recognized under this method. Progress towards completion is typically measured based on achievement of
specified contract milestones, or other measure of progress when available, or based on costs incurred as a
proportion of estimated total costs. Profit in a given period is reported at the expected profit margin to be
achieved on the overall contract. This method can result in the recognition of unbilled receivables or the
deferral of costs or profil on these contracts. Deferred costs may include costs related to customer change
orders subject to negotiation with the customer. These deferred costs are recorded as prepaid expenses on
the Company’s balance sheet. Management regularly reviews project profitability and underlying estimates.
Revisions to the estimates at completion are reflected in results of operations as a change in accounting
estimate in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known by management.
Provisions for estimated losses, if any, are recognized in the period in which the loss becomes probable and
estimable. The provision includes estimated costs in excess of estimated revenue and any profit margin
previously recognized.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The sale of proprietary software licenses typically includes multiple deliverables such as a license to use
the software, post contract customer support, and services. Revenue is allocated to the undelivered elements
equal to their fair value with the remainder allocated to the delivered software license element. Fair value is
determined based on the price charged where each deliverable is sold separately. Revenue allocated to each
element is recognized when 1) a written contract is executed, 2) the element has been delivered, 3) the fee is
fixed and determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonably assured. If significant customization is required,
software licensing revenue is recognized as the related software customization services are performed in
accordance with the percentage-of-completion method, utitizing the output method to measure progress to
completion. Costs incurred in connection with sales of proprietary software are expensed as incurred.

Client contracts may include the provision of more than one of CSC’s services. CSC adopted Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,” for all arrange-
ments entered into or modified after July 4, 2003. Accordingly, for applicable arrangements, revenue
recognition includes the proper identification of separate units of accounting and the allocation of revenue
across all elements based on relative fair values, with proper consideration given to the guidance provided by
other authoritative literature.

Depreciation and Amortization

The Company’s depreciation and amortization policies are as follows:

Property and Equipment;

Buildings ... 10 to 40 years

Computers and related equipment ... ..., 3 to 5 years

Furniture and other equipment .......... 2 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements ................ Shorter of lease term or useful life
Software ........... ...l 2 10 10 years
Credit information files ...................... 10 to 20 years
Acquired contract related intangibles........, Contract life and first contract renewal
Outsourcing contract costs ................... Contract life, excluding option years

For financial reporting purposes, the cost of property and equipment, less applicable residual values, is
depreciated using predominately the straight-line method. Depreciation commences when the specific asset
is complete, installed and ready for normal use. Outsourcing contract costs and credit information files are
amortized on a straight-line basis. Acquired intangible assets are amortized based on estimated undiscounted
cash flow over the estimated life of the asset or on a straight line basis if cash flow cannot be reliably
estimated.

Software Development Cosis

The Company capitalizes costs incurred to develop commercial software products after technological
feasibility has been established. Costs incurred to establish technological feasibility are charged to expense as
incurred. Enhancements to software products are capitalized where such enhancements extend the life or
significantly expand the marketability of the products. Amortization of capitalized software development
costs is determined separately for each software product. Annual amortization expense is calculated based
on the greater of (a) the ratio of current gross revenues for each product to the total of current anticipated
future gross revenues for the product or (b) the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the
product.

Unamortized capitalized software costs associated with commercial software products are regularly
evaluated for impairment on a product-by-product basis by a comparison of the unameortized balance to the
product’s net realizable value. The net realizable value is the estimated future gross revenues from that
product reduced by the related estimated future costs. When indications exist of a possible impairment in
software, the Company assesses recoverability by reviewing undiscounted estimated cash flows associated
with the software product or its related asset group and compares the total to the unamortized balance.
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company capitalizes costs incurred to develop internal-use computer software. Internal and
external costs incurred in connection with development of upgrades or enhancements that result in addi-
tional functionality are also capitalized. These capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the software. Purchased software is capitalized and amortized over the estimated
useful life of the software,

Oursourcing Contract Costs

Costs on outsourcing contracts, including costs incurred for bid and proposal activities, are generally
expensed as incurred. However, certain costs incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing contract are deferred
and expensed over the contract life. These costs represent incremental external costs or certain specific
internal costs that are directly related to the contract acquisition or transition activities. Such capitalized costs
can be separated into two principal categories: contract acquisition costs and transition/set-up costs. The
primary types of costs that may be capitalized include labor and related fringe benefits, subcontractor costs,
travel costs, and asset premiums.

The first principal category, contract acquisition costs, consists mainly of due diligence activities after
competitive selection as well as premiums paid. Premiums are amounts paid to clients in excess of the fair
market value of acquirecl assets. Fixed assets acquired in connection with outsourcing transactions are
capitalized at fair value and depreciated consistent with fixed asset policies described above. Premiums are
capitalized as outsourcing contract costs and amortized over the contract life. The amortization of outsourc-
ing contract cost premiunms is accounted for as a reduction in revenue. The second principal category of
capitalized outsourcing costs is transition/set-up costs. Such costs are primarily associated with installation of
systems and processes.

In the event indications exist that an outsourcing contract cost balance related to a particular contract
may be impaired, undiscounted estimated cash flows of the contract are projected over its remaining term,
and compared to the unamortized outsourcing contract cost balance. If the projected cash flows are not
adequate to recover the unamorlized cost balance, the balance would be adjusted to equal the contract’s fair
value in the period such a determination is made. The primary indicator used to determine when impairment
testing should be performed is when a contract is materially underperforming, or is expected o materially
underperform in the future, as compared to the original bid model or subsequent annual budgets.

Terminations of outsourcing contracts, including transfers either back to the client or to another I/T
provider, prior to the end of their committed contract terms are infrequent due to the complex transition of
personnel, assets, methodologies, and processes involved with outsourcing transactions. In the event of an
early termination, the Company and the client, pursuant to certain contractual provisions, engage in
discussions 1o determine the recovery of unamortized contract costs, lost profits, transfer of personnel, rights
to implemented systems and processes, as well as other matters.

Acquisition Accounting and Goodwiil

Under acquisition accounting, the purchase price is allocated to the underlying tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their respective fair market values, with the excess
recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is assessed for impairment at least annually for each reporting unit. See Notes
4 and 5 for further discussion.
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Marketable Securities

The Company classifies its investments in marketable securities in accordance with SFAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Based on criteria set forth in SFAS No.
115 the Company has determined all of its investment securities are to be classified as available-for-sale.
Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. During fiscal 2007 the Company recorded $2.3 ($1.7 after taxes) of
unrealized gains related to available-for-sale securities as of March 30, 2007. Available-for-sale securities are
included in Prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying balance sheets. Realized gains
and losses and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary on available-for-sale securities are
inctuded in selling, general and administrative expenses.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company redeemed the preferred stock received from the sale
of DynCorp International for $168.6, $23.8 representing dividends receivable, resulting in a gain of $11.2 net
of taxes of $7.1.

Income Taxes

Accounting for income taxes requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. The Company maintains valuation allowances where,
based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will
not be realized. Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are included in our tax provision in
the period of change. In determining whether a valuation allowance is warranted, the Company takes into
account such factors as prior earnings history, expected future earnings, carryback and carryforward periods,
and tax strategies that could potentially enhance the likelihood of realization of a deferred tax asset. The
Company is also subject to examination of its income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other
tax authorities. The Company periodically assesses the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these
examinations to determine the impact on deferred taxes and income tax liabilities and the adequacy of the
provision for income taxes.

Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash and cash equivalents, the Company considers all investments in cash
equivalents purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The
Company’s investments consist of high quality securities issued by a number of institutions having high eredit
ratings, thereby limiting the Company’s exposure to concentrations of credit risk. With respect to financial
instruments, the Company’s carrying amounts of its other current assets and liabilities were deemed to
approximate their market values due to their short maturity. At March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, the
Company had no outstanding material hedge contracts with respect to its foreign exchange or interest rate
positions.

Capital expenditures acquired through capital lease obligations were $77.2 for the year ended March 30,
2007 and capital expenditures in accounts payable were $123.3 for the year ended March 30, 2007. Previous
year amounts were not material.

Depreciation and amortization reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows includes amortiza-
tion of outsourcing contract premiums of $88.3, $95.7 and $85.5 for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, which is reported as a reduction of revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Cash payments for interest on indebtedness and cash payments for taxes on income are as follows:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
=] =1 R $14d.4 § 951 $173.7
Taxes on income, netof refunds ... vt i e 3048 1479 493
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used, other than goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite fives, when events and circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of a long-lived asset is considered impaired when the anticipated undiscounted cash flow
from such asset is separately identifiable and is less than its carrying value. In that case, a loss is recognized
based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset. Fair value is
determined primarily using the expected present value, in which multiple cash flow scenarios that reflect the
range of possible outcomes and a risk free rate are used to estimate fair value. Losses on long-lived assets to
be disposed of are determined in a similar manner, except that fair values are reduced for the cost of disposal.
Changes in estimates of future cash flows could result in a write-down of the asset in a future period.

Foreign Currency

Company has determined local currencies are the functional currencies of the foreign operations.
Accordingly, these foreign entities translate assets and liabilities from their local currencies to U.S. dollars
using year-end exchange rates while income and expense accounts are translated at the average rates in effect
during the year. The resulting translation adjustment is recorded as part of accumulated other comprehensive
income (AOCI). As of March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006 the balance of currency translation adjustment
included in AOCI was a deferred gain of $431.0 and $182.7. respectively.
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Note 1—Sommary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continoed)
Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per common share are computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the incremental shares issuable upon the
assumed exercise of stock options.

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
As Restated (1) As Restated (1)

Income from continuing operations ............................. $ 3888 $ 4711 $ 4443
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes .............. 85.0
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes............ 61.3 228.8
Discontinued operations, net of taxes ...........ooiviivinnn.. 61.3 313.8
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes (4.3)

Netineome .. .. ... o e e $ 388.8 ¥ 5281 3 758.1
Common share information (in millions):

Average common shares outstanding for basic EPS ......... 176.263 185.693 189.575

Dilutive effect of stock options.....................oo L. 3.470 2.291 2.361
Sharesfordilwted EPS . ... ... .. . . i 179.733 187.984 191.936
Income from continuing operations ............................. $ 221 $ 254 $ 234
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes .............. 0.45
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes............ 0.33 1.21
Discontinued operations, net of taxes ....................0oeueus 0.33 1.66
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes (0.02)

Basic EPS* ... .. § 221 $ 2384 $ 4.00
Income from continuing operations ..............ooveiiinn..... $ 216 $ 251 $ 231
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes .............. 0.44
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes............ 0.33 1.19
Discontinued operations, net of taxes* .......................... 0.33 1.64
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes (0.02)

Diluted EPS* ... .. $ 216 $ 281 $ 395

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding,.

(M See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

(See notes to consolidated financial statements)
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Note 1——Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The computation of diluted EPS did not include stock options which were antidilutive. as their exercise
price was greater than the average market price of the Company’s common stock during the year. The
number of such options was 5.214,576, 2.865.076 and 3.057.225 for the years ended March 30, 2007, March 31,
2006 and April 1, 2005, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “ Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097 {(FIN 48). The interprctation clarifies the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No.
109, “ Accounting for Income Taxes.” Specifically, the pronouncement prescribes a recognition threshold and
a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides guidance on the related derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting for interim periods. disclosure and transition of uncertain tax
positions. The interpretation is effcctive for CSC's fiscal 2008, The Company is assessing FIN 48 and has not
determined the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its consolidated financial statements. The
Company does, however, expect to record a cumulative cffect adjustment to its fiscal 2008 balance of
beginning earnings retained for use in business. and that adjustment may be material.

During September, 2006 the Securities and Exchange Commission relcased Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) No. 108, "Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemenis when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements.”” SAB No. 108 requires a registrant to quantify all misstatements that
could be material to financial statement users under both the “rollover’™ and “iron curtain™ approaches. If
either approach results in uantifying a misstatement that is material the registrant must adjust its financial
statements. SAB No. 108 is applicable for CSC’s fiscal 2007. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, **Fair Value Measurements.” The Statement defines
fair value. establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. The Statement does not require
any new fair value measurements, The Statement is effective for CSC’s fiscal 2009. At this time the Company
does not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position.

In February 2007. the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Valuc Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” This Statement permits entities
to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified efection
dates. If the fair value option is elected. a business entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on elected
items in carnings at each subsequent reporting date. Upon initial adoption of this Statement an entity is
permitted to elect the fair value option for available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities previously
accounted for under Statement 115, The effect of reclassifying those securities into the trading category
should be included in a cumulative-effect adjustment of retained carnings and not in current-period carnings
and should be separately disclosed. This Statement is effective for CSC’s fiscal 2009. The Company does not
believe the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have a material impact on the Company's results of operations or
financial position.
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Note 2—Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company has restated the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for fiscal years ended March
31, 2006 and April 1, 2005. These restatements relate to 1) the completion of the Company’s investigation of
its stock option granting practices, 2) the correction of errors relating to the accounting for income taxes, and
3) the recognition of revenue for the sale of licenses for a software product. The effects of the restatement
adjustments on the Company’s originally reported results of operations for the years ended March 31, 2006
and April 1, 2005 and on its originally reported earnings retained for use in business at April 2, 2004 are
summarized below:

Eamnings Retained

Net Income for  Net Income for for use in
the Year Ended the Year Ended Business as of
March 31, 2006 April 1, 2005 April 3, 2004
As previously reported. ......................... $ 634.0 $810.2 $3.597.9
Adjustments:
Revenue from software licensing arrangements,
net of related income tax effect ............... 14.1 12.9 (51.1)
Stock-based compensation, net of related income
taxeffect...... .. .. (12.2) (6.2) (24.8)
Stock based compensation in lieu of cash bonus,
net of related income tax effect .,............. (1.0) 5 (2.6)
Reversal of tax benefit associated with exercise
of stockoptions .................cociiiiina. (2.0) (1.6) (10.2)
Penalties for income tax errors .................. (4.0) (44.3) (7.4)
Interest on income tax items, net of related tax
effects. . ... .o (10.1) (1.6) (4.8)
Income taxes ..o (90.8) (11.2) (92.9)
Other ... i e e e 1 (.6) 2.5
Netdecrease .........cooiiiiiiiiniinnin... (105.9) (52.1) {191.3)
Asrestated ........... .. ..., $ 5281 $758.1 $3,406.6
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Note 2—Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
Revenue Recognition

The Company determined that it did not correctly apply the provisions of Statement of Position 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition” with respect to the sale of licenses for a software product. As a result, the
Company overstated revenue and unbilled receivables and understated deferred revenue related to this
product in fiscal years prior to 2005. In fiscal years 2006 and 2005 this error resulted in an understatement of
revenue. The Company has restated revenue for fiscal 2006 and 2005 and as a result revenue increased $23.4
and $21.4 for these years, respectively. The Company has also restated receivables, other assets, and deferred
revenue at March 31, 2006 resulting in increases (decreases) of $(13.7), $(20.7), and $5.2, respectively. The
cumulative effect of this error on earnings retained for use in business was a decrease of $51.1 at April 3,
2004.

Income Taxes

The Company idenlified errors related to income taxes in prior periods. The most significant of these
errors related to income tax accounting for amortization of tax bases of assets contributed to a consolidated
affiliate. The impact of the correction of this error was an increase in income tax expense of $53.7 and $11.8
for fiscal 2006 and 2005. The cumulative effect of the correction of this error on earnings retained for use in
business was a decrease of $91.4 at April 3, 2004,

In addition, the Company identified errors in the accounting for U.S. income tax liabilities related to
foreign operations. The impact of the correction of this error was an increase in income tax expense of $6.6
and $5.4 for fiscal 2006 and 2005. The cumulative effect of this error on earnings retained for use in business
was a decrease $15.2 at April 3, 2004.

The Company also identified individually immaterial income tax accounting errors that have been
corrected. These errors related principally to state income taxes, provision for a gain, the valuation of state
net operating losses and deferred tax liabilities related to state taxes. The combined impact of these errors on
income tax expense was an increase of $28.4 and $1.4 for fiscal 2006 and 2005 respectively. The cumulative
effect of the correction of these errors on earnings retained for use in business was a decrease of $3.6 at April
3, 2004.

Additionally, the Company identified certain errors in the preparation of U.S. federal tax returns. These
included an error which understated the deduction of certain general and administrative costs in its U.S.
federal income tax returns for fiscal 2002 through fiscal 2005 and resulted in the overstatement of income tax
expense by $7.4 for fiscal 2005 and an understatement of income tax expense by $2.1 for fiscal 2006. The
cumulative effect of the correction of these errors on earnings retained for use in business was an increase of
$17.3 at April 3, 2004.

As a result of the errors noted above the Company incurred interest and penalties. For fiscal 2006 and
2005 the Company has recorded adjustments related to additional interest expense of $16.7 and $2.6,
respectively, for the income tax errors. The cumulative effect on earnings retained for use in business was a
decrease of $4.8 at April 3, 2004. The Company also recorded penalties related to the income tax errors of
$4.0 and $44.3 for fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The cumulative effect of the penalties for periods prior to
fiscal 2005 on earnings retained for use in business was a decrease of $7.4 at April 3, 2004,
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The total effect of all the income tax adjustments noted above was to increase income tax expense $90.8
(384.2 net of impact of interest expense) and $11.2 ($10.2 net of the impact of interest expense) for fiscal 2006
and fiscal 2005. As a result of the correction of these errors, other assets, other accrued expenses, and
Federal, State and foreign income taxes payable increased by $1.2, $83.0, $154.3, respectively at March 31,
2006. The cumulative effect of these errors on earnings retained for use in business was a decrease of $105.1
at April 3, 2004.

Other

The Company also identified errors in an accrual for payroll taxes and in recording the tax benefit
related to the exercise of employee stock options. The correction of these errors increased (decreased) cost of
sales by $(0.1) and $1.1 during fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively, and resulted in a $2.5 cumulative increase to
earnings retained for use in business at April 3, 2004.

The Company has reclassified operating cash flow related to deferred 1axes from income taxes payable
to deferred taxes on the cash flow statement as of March 31, 2006 to conform with curreat and prior period
presentations. As a result the Company’s March 31, 2006 cash flow statement herein includes a $67.4
reclassification of income taxes payable to deferred taxes in addition to the adjustments related to changes in
deferred taxes as a result of the restatement for tax accounting errors in the operating section of the
Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Cash Flows was the only financial statement impacted by this
reclassification.

Stock Options

In July 2006 the Company established a special committee, comprised of the two most recently elected
independent directors (the Special Committee), to manage and supervise an investigation into the Com-
pany’s stock option grant practices between March 1, 1996 and July 31, 2006 (the Relevant Period). Together
with its independent counsel and forensic accountants, the Special Committee conducted an extensive review
of stock option grants made by the Company during the Relevant Period, which covered 13,564 grants.

Based on the results of the Special Committee’s investigation, the independent directors determined
that 9,234 stock option grants should be modified, principally due to delays in authorization and approval and
the absence of definitive documentation, including:

¢ 540 stock option grants made between May 9, 1996, and June 13, 2002, which shouid have been
accounted for as repricings of prior stock option grants, 527 of which require variable accounting
until April 1, 2006, when the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”;

* 3,906 other stock option grants made between April 9, 1996, and April 3, 2006, for which the
measurement date should be changed to a later date on which the closing stock price was higher,
requiring additional compensation expense; and

* 4788 other stock option grants made between April 1, 1996, and July 10, 2006, for which the
measurement date should be changed to a later date on which the closing stock price was lower,
requiring no additional compensation expense.
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The incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense, before taxes, from March 1, 1996, through
March 31, 2006, related to stock options was as follows:

. Pre-Tax
Fiscal Year Ended Expense
March 20, 1000 .. i i e e $ 00
March 28, 1007 i e e e e $ 04
APTI 3, L0 L e e $18
AP 2, 100 e e $ 3.2
March 31, 2000 ... o e e e e e $ 87
March 30, 2000 L. e e e e e $ 28
March 20, 200 e e e e $16.8
March 28, 20003 ...t e e e $(6.5)
ALl 2, 204 e $14.1
AT L, 2005 e e $ 85
March 31, 2006 . ..o e $20.6

The Company also determined that the tax benefits associated with the exercise of certain stock options
in foreign jurisdictions had been incorrectly credited against the foreign tax provision, rather than additional
paid-in capital. The Company further determined that it had inappropriately applied the effective rate, rather
than the U.S. statutory rate, in recognizing the tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options in the
U.S. Correction of these two tax errors resulted in an incremental cumulative tax provision of approximately
$14.

Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this Note 2 hereafter to years are to calendar years.

Background
During the Relevant Period, CSC granted stock options to two categories of employees:

» the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, each of their respective direct reports and each
other employee who is an “officer” for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (collectively,
Senior Executives); and

» al! other employees (collectively, Other Employees}.

Option grants to Senior Executives were approved by the Compensation Committee or the Board of
Directors. Approvals for option grants Lo Other Employees were delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
or, after July 1999, in the case of option grants of 5,000 shares or less, to the Corporate Vice President,
Human Resources. The Company did not grant stock options to its independent directors.

Option grants during the Relevant Period can be grouped into three general categories:

¢ “Annual Cycle Options,” which were granted as part of the annual compensation review process
each year;

+ “Discounted Options,” which, on and prior to May 12, 2004, were granted on the Annual Cycle
Option grant date in lieu of a cash bonus. and which typically had an exercise price per share equal to
25% of the closing market price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date; and

* “Other Options,” which primarily include options granted to new hires (including to employees
acquired through acquisitions and outsourcings) and for promotions and special recognition.
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Of the 13,564 option grants made by the Company during the Relevant Period, (i) 9,134 were for Annual
Cycle Options, (ii) 262 were for Discounted Options and (iii) 4,168 were for Other Options. The option
grants in each category were reviewed to determine the first date upon which the identity of the optionee, the
number of shares subject to the option grant and the option exercise price were determined with finality (the
measurement date). The following describes the option grants for which the independent directors deter-
mined that the measurement date should be a date other than the grant date.

Annual Cycle Options

Annual Cycle Options Granted to Senior Executives.

The independent directors concluded that there was evidence that the Annual Cycle Options granted to
Senior Executives in 1996, 1999 and 2002 may each have had two measurement dates: (i) the first occurring
on the date of an initial action to select the optionees, the number of option shares and the grant date closing
stock price to be used for the exercise price, and (ii} the second occurring on the date of a subsequent action,
within 10 days, to select a later grant date closing stock price to be used for the exercise price. Therefore, the
Company determined that the aggregate 54 Annual Cycle Option grants to Senior Executives on May 9,
1996, May 10, 1999 and June 13, 2002, should be accounted for as a repricing of options for which a
measurement date had previously been established on May 6, 1996, May 3, 1999, and June 3, 2002,
respectively. Generally accepted accounting principles in effect at the time require a change from fixed to
variable accounting for the 1999 and 2002 repricings, but not for the 1996 repricing. The incremental
cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes from March 1, 1996, through March 31, 2006,
refated to accounting for these Annual Cycle Option grants to Senior Executives as repricings was approxi-
mately $10.

Annual Cycle Options Granted to Other Employees.

In each of the years from 1996 through 2005, there were changes, after the grant date, in the list of
Annual Cycle Options to be granted to Other Employees. Therefore, the measurement date for all of the
7,562 Annual Cycle Options {(excluding the 260 French grants discussed below) granted to Other Employees
in those years has been changed to be the first date upon which the list was determined with finality, Of these
grants, 3,891 had a lower closing stock price on the new measurement dates than on the related grant dates,
which did not result in any additional compensation expense. The remaining 3,671 grants did, however,
except as set forth below, result in additional compensation expense amortized over the vesting period.

The new measurement date for the 2001 Annual Cycle Options granted to Other Employees resulted in
a repricing requiring variable accounting. On October 29, 2001, the Company commenced an exchange offer
{the 2001 Exchange Offer) pursuant to which employees could elect to cancel unexercised options with an
exercise price per share of $70 or more in exchange for new options. The 2001 Exchange Offer was
specifically designed so that no employee eligible to participate was granted any options during the period
beginning six months before the commencement of the 2001 Exchange Offer and ending six months after the
option cancellation date. Although the grant date of the Annual Cycle Options granted to Other Employees
in 2001 precedes the 2001 Exchange Offer commencement date by more than six months, the new
measurement date of these Annual Cycle Options does not. Consequently, certain of these options were
treated as a repricing of options held by the same optionee which were cancelled in the 2001 Exchange Offer.
The remaining 2001 Annual Cycle Options which were not treated as a repricing also resulted in additional
compensation expense, since the new measurement date had a higher closing stock price than the grant date.
The restatement adjustment related to the incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before
taxes through March 31, 2006, related to changing the measurement date of the 2001 Annual Cycle Options
granted to Other Employees, and accounting for such options as a repricing was approximately $21, including
approximately $19 attributable to variable accounting.
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The foregoing description excludes all Annual Cycle Options granted to Other Employees subject to
French taxes (French Options). The Company has a French sub-plan pursuant to which it grants French
Options addressing French tax consequences. One of the requirements for these options is that they not be
granted during a “closed period.” as defined under French tax law. Until recently, the Company understood
that the closed period included, among other periods. the 10-trading day period before and after the
Company made a material announcement. Since the Company did not determinc the grant date of French
Options until it had confirmed that no material announcement was made during the following 10 trading
days, the measurement date for all of the 260 French Option grants made during the Relevant Period has
been changed. The Company currently believes that the closed period does not include the 10-day period
after a material announcement (other than an earnings release or the filing of a Form 10-K or Form 10-Q).

The restatement adjustment related to the incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense
before taxes from March [, 1996, through March 31, 2006. related to Annual Cycle Option grants to Other
Employees, including the $21 relating to the 2001 Annual Cycle Options discussed above. constitutes
approximately $47 of the total $70 incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before taxes.

Discounted Options and Restricted Stock

The Company has identified 105 Discounted Options granted between May 3, 2000. and May 12, 2004, in
which the identity of the optionee or the number of shares underlying the option was not determined with
finality until after the grant date. The restatement adjustment related to the incremental cumulative non-cash
compensation expense before taxes from May 3, 2000, through March 31, 2006, related to accounting for the
change in measurement dates for these Discounted Options grants was approximately $1.

In 2005 and 2006. the Company granted restricted stock and restricted stock units, respectively. in liew of
a cash bonus. Sixteen of the restricted stock awards in 2005 were not determined with finality until after the
grant date. and the Company recorded an incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense before
taxes from March 1, 1996, through June 30, 2006, related to accounting for the change in measurement dates
for thesc restricted stock awards of less than $0.05. This amount has been included in the aggregate
incremental compensation expense amounts related 1o stock options.

The Company has also determined it had incorrectly reversed accruals for certain management bonuses
which had been exchanged for discounted options and awards. The aggregate incremental cumulative non-
cash compensation expense before taxes from March 1, 1996, through June 30, 2006, related to stock options
includes the resulting increase or decrease in compensation expense for each period affected. The cumulative
impact of the bonus accrual adjustments through March 31, 2006, was approximately $5.

Other Options

During the Relevant Period, the Company issued 4.168 Other Option grants to new hires and for
promotions. special recognition and other reasons. Of these. the Company identified 931 which were granted
to new hires who joined the Company through an acquisition or through an outsourcing by their former
employer. in which the measurement date should have been a date other than the grant date. Although the
acquisition or oulsourcing agreement generally set forth the aggregate number of option shares to be granted
to the new employees, the specific allocation among employees was often not finalized until after the grant
date.

The Company has also identified 320 additional Other Option grants in which the measurement date
should have been a date other than the grant date, and two Other Option grants which should have been
accounted for as repricings requiring variable accounting, These Other Option grants were primarily made to
new hires or for promotions or special recognition.
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The restatement adjustment related to the incremental cumulative non-cash compensation expense
before taxes from March 1. 1996, through March 31, 2006, related to Other Option grants was approximately
$8.

Historical stock-based compensation expense and the incremental impact from recognizing stock-based
compensation expense resulting from the investigation of past stock option grants is as follows:

As Previousty Adjustments

Reported, Pre-Tax After Tax As Restated,
Fiscal Year Net of Taxes™ Expense  Expense  Net of Taxes
1097 e e ¥ 7 $ 4 $ 3 $ 1.0
1008 e e, .8 i.8 1.4 22
LO0 e 5 3.2 1.6 2.1
2000 L e e e e 5 8.7 116 12.1
2000 . e 1.8 2.8 6.0 7.8
2002 L e e e 38 16.8 11.8 15.6
2003 e 51 (6.5) (4.0) 1.1
2004 e e 4.9 14.1 89 13.8
Total 1997 - 2004 impact........c.coovvvernierennnen. $18.1 3413 $376 $55.7
2005 6.0 8.5 7.3 13.3
2006 .. e e _B6 20.6 15.2 23.8
Total. ..o $32.7 $70.4 $60.1 $92.8

(1) Represents stock-based compensation expense as determined under APB No. 25 and used in disclosures
pursuant to SFAS No. 123.

Additionally, the Company has restated the pro forma expense under SFAS No. 123 in Note | of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements to reflect the impact of these adjustments.
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement adjustments on the Company’s previously
reported consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006:

ASSETS

| March 31, 2006
Adjustment

As Revenue As
Reported  Recognition Stock Options Income Taxes Other  Restated

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents........ $ 1,290.7 $ 1,290.7
Receivables, net of aliowance for
doubtful accounts of $68.4 .. ... 37463  $(13.7) 3,732.6
Prepaid expenses and other current
ASSEES .ot 1.268.9 - - . 1,268.9
Total current assets ............ 63059 (13.7) - o - 6,292.2

Investments and other assets:
Software, net of accumulated
amortization of $7324 ... ... 4533 4533
Outsourcing contract costs, net of
accumulated amortization of

$LUI28 . 1.175.3 1,175.3
Goodwill, net of accumulated
amortization of $323.0 ......... 2,306.3 2,306.3
Other assets ..................... 468.7 (20.7) $25.3 $1.2 - 474.5
Total investments and other
@SSEIS ...ttt 4,403.6 (20.7) 253 12 _ 44094

Property and equipment-—at cost:
Land. buildings and lease hold

improvements ................. 913.4 913.4
! Computers and related equipment 4,039.9 4,039.9
Furniture and other equipment ... 414.6 o 414.6
53679 5.367.9

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization................... 3.047.8 _ 3,047.8
Property and equipment. net ... .. 2,320.1 o 2,320.1

$13,029.6  $(34.4) $25.3

A=t
—
()

$13,021.7
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

March 31, 2006
Adjustment
As Revenue As
Reported  Recognition Stock Options Income Taxes Other  Resiated
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current
maturities of long-term debt...... $ 853 $ 853
Accounts payable .................. 705.1 705.1
Accrued payroll and related costs. . . 706.5 $10 707.5
Other accrued expenses ............ 1,359.7 $ 83.0 1,442.7
Deferred revenue .................. 6291 § 52 634.3
Federal, state and foreign income
1£:) (3. S 655.4 (15.6) 1543 {4) 793.7
Total current liabilities ............. 4,141.1 (10.4) 2373 0.6 4.368.6
Long-term debt, net of current
MAatUmties. . .oove e iiaiirnrennss 1,376.8 1,376.8
Other long-term liabilities .......... 739.8 311 770.9
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock par value $1 per
share; authorized 1,000,000 shares;
none issued Common stock, par
value $1 per share; authorized
750,000,000 shares; issued and
194904250 ...l 194.9 194.9
Additional paid-in capital .......... 1,799.2 $85.4 (26) 1,882.0
Earnings retained for use in business 5,042.1 (24.0) (60.1) (267.2) 20 4,692.8
Accumulated other comprehensive
income ...l 106.8 106.8
7.143.0 (24.0) 253 (267.2) (6) 68765
Less common stock in treasury, at
cost, 7,653,655 shares............. (347.1) (347.1)
Unearned restricted stock .......... (24.0) (24.0)
Stockholders’ equity, net ........... 6,771.9 (24.0) 25.3 (267.2) (.6)  6,505.4
$13,029.6  3$(34.4) $253 $ 12 $13,021.7
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement adjustments in the Company’s previously
reported consolidated stalements of income:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

Adjustment
As Revenue As
Reported  Recognition Stock Options  Income Taxes Other _Restated

Revenues ...............oovienn $14615.6 $23.4 _ $14.639.0
Costs of services (excludes

depreciation and amortization) ... 11.719.8 § 43 $(.1) 11,7240
Selling, general and administrative .. 8422 16.3 $ 40 862.5
Depreciation and amortization ... .. 1.091.8 1.091.8
Interest expense.................... 104.2 16.7 120.9
Interest income .................... (40.8) (40.8)
Special items.............. ... .. 77.3 . 77.3
Total costs and expenses............ 13,794.5 20.6 20.7 (1) 13.835.7
Income from continuing operations

before taxes ..................... B21.1 23.4 (20.6) (20.7) .1 803.3
Taxesonincome ................... 244.1 9.3 (5.4) 84.2 _ 332.2
Income from continuing operations 577.0 14.1 (15.2) (104.9) g 471.1
Income from discontinued

operations, net of taxes ..........
Gain on sale of discontinued

operations, net of taxes .......... 61.3 L 61.3
Discontinued operations, net of taxes 61.3 _ 61.3
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of taxes (4.3) _ (4.3)
Netincome ........................ $ 6340 $14.1 $(15.2) $(1049) $.1 § 5281
Earnings per common share:
Continuing operations.............. $ 3.1t $0.08 $(0.08) $ (0.56) § 254
Discontinued operations............ 0.33 0.33
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle.............. (0.02) - (0.02)
Basic* ... ... 341 $0.08 $(0.08) $(s6) 0§ 284
Continuing operations.............. $ 307 3008 $(0.08) $ (0.56) $ 251
Discontinued operations............ .33 0.33
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle.............. (0.02) _ (0.02)
Diluted* ............ ... ..o $} 338 $0.08 $(0.09) $ 056y 0§ 281

* Amounts may not add as a result of rounding
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement adjustments in the Company’s previously
reported consolidated statements of income:

Fiscal Year Ended April 1, 2005

Adjustment
As Revenue As
Reported  Recognition Stock Options Income Taxes (Other _Restated

Revenues ...............ooeien... $14,058.6 $21.4 $14,080.0
Costs of services (excludes

depreciation and amortization) . .. 11,315.1 $ 39 $11 113201
Selling, general and administrative . . 807.8 4.6 $443 856.7
Depreciation and amortization ..... 1,051.0 1,051.0
Interest expense.................... 156.8 2.6 1594
Interest income .................... (16.1) (16.1)
Specialitems....................... 28.6 28.6
Total costs and expenses............ 13,343.2 8.5 46.9 1.1 13,399.7
Income from continuing operations

before taxes ..............oiiut 7154 21.4 (8.5) (46.9) (1.1) 680.3
Taxesonincome ................... 219.0 8.5 (1.2) 10.2 (.5) 236.0
Income from continuing operations 496.4 129 (7.3) (57.1) (.6) 4443
Income from discontinued

operations, net of taxes ........., 85.0 85.0
Gain on sale of discontinued

operations, net of taxes .......... 228.8 228.8
Discontinued operations, net of taxes 313.8 313.8
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of taxes
Net inCOmMe ...ovvevineneananenn.s $§ 8102  $129 $ (1.3) $(57.1) $(6) $ 7581
Earnings per common share:
Continuing operations.............. § 262 $0.07 $(0.04) $(0.30) £ 234
Discontinued operations............ 1.66 1.66
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle..............
Basic* ... .. § 427 $0.07 $(0.03) $(0.30) $§ 400
Continuing operations.............. $ 259  $0.07 $(0.04) $(0.30) $ 23
Discontinued operations............ 1.64 1.64
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle..............
Dituted* .._........................ $ 422 $0.07 $(0.04) $(0.30) $ 395

* Amounts may not add as a result of rounding
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The following tables set forth the effects of the adjustments on certain line items within the Company’s
consolidated statement of cash flows for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and April 1, 2005:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006
As Reported  Adjustments  As Restated

Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt IMCOME . ..ttt ettt et $ 6340 $(1059) § 3528.1
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. .. .......... ... .. ... 1,187.5 1,187.5
Stock based compensation............ ... L 12.3 2016 329
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ....... 43 43
Deferred taxes ... i e 48.7 80.7 129.4
Restructuring related special items........................ 77.3 713
Gain on dispositions, netof tax .......................... (60.9) (60.9)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable ................ 287 287

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisitions and dispositions:

Increase inreceivables .....................c el (240.5) (21.0) (261.5)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets (193.4) {193.4)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accruals. . (70.5) 2016 (49.9)
Increase in income taxes payable ..................... 59.9 12.7 72.6
Increase in deferred revenue ......................... 76.0 (2.5) 735
Other operating activities, net ........................ (12.1) {5.2) {17.3)
Net cash provided by operating activities ...................... $1,551.3 $1,551.3

Fiscal Year Ended April 1, 2005
As Reported Adjustments  As Restated

Cash flows from operaling activities:
| Vol 11 1= $ 810.2 $ (52.1) § 7581
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. ........................... 1,145.5 1.145.5
Stock based compensation.......... ... . .o 9.9 85 18.4
Deferred taxes ... 192.7 (49.8) 142.9
Spectal items ... 28.6 28.6
Gain on dispositions, netof tax ............... ...l (229.7) (229.7)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable ................ 10,7 10.7

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisitions and dispositions:

Increase in receivables . ...... .. ... ... . ... .. (295.7) (19.0) (314.7)
Increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets {400.2) (400.2)
Increase in accounts payable and accruals ............ 4454 48.1 4935
Increase in income taxes payable ..................... 29.8 69.1 48.9
Increase in deferred revenue .................... ... 225.3 (2.5) 2228
Other operating activities, net ............coovvvevnnn. {31.0) (2.3) (33.3)
Net cash provided by operating activities ...................... $1.941.5 $1.941.5
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Note 3—Discontinued Operations

The Company exchanged its CSC Health Plan Solutions (HPS) business, which was previously included
in the Global Commercial segment, for approximately 7.13 million of CSC common shares held by a
subsidiary of DST Systems Inc., which shares were valued at $324.6 and included in treasury stock, on April
29, 2005. The transaction was structured in accordance with Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company realized a gain of $22.9 on the transaction. The revenue and expenses of HPS have been classified
as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144, ** Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-lived Assets.”

The Company sold its equity interest in the international and other select operations of DynCorp for
$850 including $75 of 13% preferred stock of DynCorp International (DI) on February 11, 2005. The
transaction included the sale of the stock of a wholly owned subsidiary which had a tax basis in excess of its
carrying value for financial statement purposes. The tax benefit of this sale reduced the tax assoctated with
the transaction by $151.8. The Company realized an initial after tax gain of approximately $228.8 on the
transaction net of taxes of $59.3. The gain was subject to working capital adjustments. During fiscal 2006, the
Company finalized the working capital adjustments, payable in preferred stock, for the sale of DI. As a result
the Company recorded the receipt of $65.5 of 13% preferred stock, issued as of February 11, 2005 and an
additional gain on sale for DI of $38.4 net of taxes of $20.7. Also during fiscal 2006, the Company recognized
$20.2 of preferred stock dividend income which is included in interest income in the consolidated statements
of income.

The following discloses the results of the discontinued operations:

Fiscal Year
2006 2005
2= 111 (- $8.0 $1,790.5
Income before taxes ... ....oovieiii i i e i e e (1 1383
Income from discontinued operations ...... ... ... 85.0
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Note 4—Acquisitions

On December 22. 2006 CSC acquired all the outstanding shares of Datatrac Information Services, Inc.. a
privately held U.S. government services and solutions provider headquartered in Richardson. Texas for an
initial purchase price of 5123 subject to final purchase accounting adjustments. The acquisition extends CSC's
ability to offer comprehensive solutions in identity management and credentialing, a market segment of
strategic importance to CSC’s North American Public Sector operation. It also expands the company’s
capabilities in offering customer contact solutions to clients across the broad U.S. federal market and
strengthens CSC's ability to compete for work within the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and other
government agencies.

Datatrac’s results of operations have been included with the Company's from the date of acquisition.
December 22, 2006, to the end of the period. The purchase price of the acquisition was allocaled to the net
assets acquired based on estimates of the fair values at the date of the acquisition. CSC allocated fair values
of $18.0 for certain intangible assets using an independent appraisal. The $18.0 of intangible assets includes
$16.9 for customer contracts and related customer relationships with a weighted-average useful life of
approximately 16 years and to be amortized based on the estimated timing of related cash flows. and the
remainder is software licenses. The goodwill recognized of $92.2 was assigned to the North American Public
Sector, and is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. In addition. the stock purchase agreement contains
an earn-out provision with additional consideration based on the Company’s success in winning the
recompete for its Service Center Operation Team (SCOT) contract with the U.S. Federal Government. The
additional consideration may be up to $20 based on the terms of the contract.

A summary of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Datatrac acquisition and the net cash
paid are as follows:

Estimated Fair

Values

Accounts receivable ... e $ 253
Prepaids and other current assets. ...t 1.7
Other A85€18, MEL. ..ttt e e e e e e e 0.5
Net property, plant and eqQUIpPMERt .. ... ... it e 15.3
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ... ... (29.1)
Long-term debt. .. ..o (.1}
Goodwill L. 92.2
Intangible ASSEl ... ... e 18.0

Net assets acquired and goodwill ... ... . ... $123.8
Purchase price ... ... $126.0

Less cash acquired ....... .. .. .. . 2.2)
Purchase price net of cash acquired ........ ... ... . 31238

The pro forma impact on nel income and earnings per share have not been disclosed for the current or
comparable prior periods, as the amounts were immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.
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Note 4—Acquisitions (Continued)

As atesult of the Datatrac acquisition on December 22, 2006, the Company incurred costs to consolidate
facilities and other costs to integrate Datatrac into the Company. The facility consolidations refated to the
abandonment and sublease of Datatrac facilities. The components of the final acquisition integration
liabilities included in the purchase price allocation for Datatrac are presented in the following table.

Acquisition Balance
Integration Paid as of Remaining at
Liabilities = March 30, 2007 March 34, 2007
Facility consolidations....................cooiiiiiin.. $6.5 3.1 $6.4
Other ... .1 _ .1
Total ..o $6.6 $1 $6.5

During September 2006 Danske Regioner exercised its option to put its minority interest in CSC
Scandihealth A/S (Scandihealth) to CSC. As a result, CSC acquired the remaining 40% share of Scandihealth
it did not own for a purchase price of approximately $20.8. The purchase price was allocated to the related
minority interest liability of $4 and the remainder to goodwill. The goodwill recognized was included in the
Global Commercial segment, none of which is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Prior to the
exercise of the option Scandihealth was a consolidated subsidiary of CSC and, as such, its assets and liabilities
were reflected in CSC’s consolidated balance sheet. The proforma impact on net income and earnings per
share have not been disclosed for the current or comparable prior periods, as the amounts were immaterial to
the financial statements as a whole.

As a result of the DynCorp acquisition on March 7, 2003, the Company incurred costs to exit and
consolidate activities, involuntarily terminate employees, and other costs to integrate DynCorp into the
Company. The facility consolidations related to the abandonment and sublease of DynCorp facilities. The
components of the final acquisition integration liabilities included in the purchase price allocation for
DynCorp are presented in the following table,

Acquisition Balance
Integration Paid as of Remaining at
Liabilittes = March 30, 2007 March 30, 2007
Severance Payments .........oeiiiii i $71 $ 71
Facility consolidations. ...................cooia oLt 66.7 53.0 $13.7
Other .. e e e 6.1 34 2.7
Total . oo $79.9 $63.5 16.4

During fiscal 2006, the Company finalized a scheme of arrangement to acquire the 26.9% of CSA
Holdings Ltd (CSAH) now owned by the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, CSC Computer Sciences
International Inc. (CSCI). The arrangement allows for better integration of similar businesses between
CSAH and CSC'’s other operations. The purchase price of the remaining interest was 75.5 million Singapore
dollars (approximately $44). 100% of CSAH’s results of operations have been included with the Company’s
from the date of acquisition, October 17, 2005. Revenue from the acquired interest has been reflected in the
consolidated statements of income given the Company’s previous majority ownership. The pro forma impact
on net income and earnings per share have not been disclosed for the current or comparable prior periods, as
the amounts were immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.
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Note 5—Goodwill

During the second quarter ended September 29, 2006, the Company completed its annual goodwill
impairment test. Based on the results of these tests, no impairment losses were identified and performance of
step two was not required.

The following tabie summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the years
ended March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006:

North
Global American
Commercial Public Sector

Segment Sepment Total
Balance as of April 1,2005 ......... ... .ot $1.793.5 $549.9 $2,343.4
Addiions ... ... 17.2 37 20.9
DHSpOSItiOnS. ..o e
Foreign currency translation .............................. (58.0) (58.0)
Balance as of March 31,2006 .. .. ... ... ... .. ... 1,752.7 553.6 2.306.3
Additions ... 16.3 16.3
ACQUISILIONS ... 922 92.2
Dispositions. . ... . e (.2) (.2)
Foreign currency translation ................. ...l 90.6 90.6
Balance as of March 30, 2007 . ... . i $1.859.4 $645.8 $2.505.2

The Global Commercial additions to goodwill during fiscal 2007 relates to the acquisition of the
remaining interest of a majority owned joint venture. The North American Public Sector additions to
goodwill during fiscal 2007 relates to the Datatrac Information Services acquisition on December 22, 2006.
See Note 4 for further details. The Global Commercial disposals relates to the divestment of Insurer (1/90)
Software Product Business in South Africa. The foreign currency translation amounts relates to the impact of
foreign currency adjustments in accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.”

The Global Commercial additions to goodwill during fiscal 2006 relate to the acquisition of 26.9% of
CSA Holdings Ltd. This addition to goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes. See Note 4 for further details.
The North American Public Sector additions to goodwill during fiscal 2006 relate to a purchase adjustment
for the acquisition of the minority share in a joint venture.

The foreign currency translation amounts related to the impact of foreign currency adjustments in
accordance with SFAS No. 52, “‘Foreign Currency Translation.”
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Note 6—Other Intangible Assets

A summary of amortizable intangible assets as of March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006 is as follows:

March 30, 2007
Gross
Carrying Accomulated
Value Amortization Net
SO WA ...t e e $1,343.6 $ 8303 $ 5133
Quisourcing CoONtTact COSIS. ...\ vruvrrervrerernirenerneaennnn 2,197.4 1,167.9 1,029.5
Customer and other intangible assets ....................... 189.1 108.0 81.1
Total intangible assets.............oooviiiiiiiienn.a.. $3,730.1 $2,106.2 $1,623.9
March 31, 2006
Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Value Amortization Net
Software . ... e e $1,185.7 $ 7324 $ 4533
QutsSourcing CONIIACT COSLS. .. vvr e et eiriernrreanennnns 2,288.1 1,112.8 1,175.3
Customer and other intangible assets ....................... 172.2 95.6 76.6
Total intangible assets............. ..ottt $3,646.0 $1,940.8 $1,705.2

Amortization (including reduction of revenues as described in Note 1) related to intangible assets was
$430.8, $435.6 and $403.2 for the years ended March 30, 2007, March 31, 2006 and April 1, 2005, respectively.
Estimated amortization related to intangible assets at March 30, 2007 for each of the subsequent five years,
fiscal 2008 through fiscal 2012, is as follows: $436, $414, $312, $229 and $90, respectively.

Capitalized and purchased software, net of accumulated amortization, consisted of the following:

March 30, 2007  March 31, 2006

Commercial software products..............ccoiiiiiiian.. $188.2 $192.9
Internal-use software ............. i i 26.0 26.8
Purchased software. ... e e 299.1 233.6

J £eT 7Y S $513.3 $453.3

Amortization of capitalized software development costs and purchased software included in deprecia-
tion and amortization of $1,073.6, $1,091.8 and $1,051.0 for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2003, respec-
tively, consisted of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 30, 2007 March 31, 2006 April 1, 2005

Commercial software products...................... $ 503 $ 534 $ 54.8
Internal-use software ............... ..., 12.6 15.9 26.2
Purchased software. .........cooiiiviniirivnnnnns. 87.2 71.5 61.7

Total ..o 150.1 $146.8 $142.7
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Note 7—Special Hems

Special items totaling $316.1 were recorded during the year ended March 30, 2007. and consisted of: (1) a
$333.4 restructuring charge (see discussion below), (2) a $1.0 true-up of an estimate related 10 the fiscal 2006
Nortel impairment charge and (3) an $18.3 gain {rom the redemption of DynCorp International preferred
stock.

Restructuring

In April 2006. the Company announced a restructuring plan to be carried out during fiscal 2007 and
2008. The objectives of the plan are to 1) streamline CSC's worldwide operations and 2) leverage the
increased use of lower cost global resources. Restructuring charges consist predominantly of severance and
related employee payments resulting from terminations. During the third quarter of fiscal 2007 the Company
evaluated facility consolidation opportunities and other areas where operations can be streamlined and costs
reduced consistent with the plan objectives. resulting in additional lease termination. asset impairment and
other charges.

Workforce reductions of approximately 4,400 employees occurred in fiscal 2007. and an additional 1.100
reductions are planned for fiscal 2008, Termination-related charges of $294.3 were recorded in fiscal 2007.
Other, primarily vacant space-related costs, of $39.1 were also recorded during the year, net of an $11.6 gain
on the sale of a data center facility. All but approximately $.1 million of the restructuring charge was incurred
in the Global Commercial reporting segment. Additional restructuring charges of not more than $110 are
expected to be incurred in fiscal 2008,

A majority of the planned headcount reductions (3,000 in fiscal 2007 and 500 in 2008) were scheduled to
take place in Europe. Approximately 1,100 and 500 positions were to be reduced in North America in fiscal
2007 and 2008, respectively, with the balance in Australia and Asia. Partially offsetting the reductions were
planned headcount increases in certain lower cost regions of approximately 1,400 and 700 employces in fiscal
2007 and 2008, respectively. As of March 30, 2007, approximately 4,400 separations have been completed
(approximately onc-sixth due to attrition), with 3,000 in Europe, 1,100 in North America and the remainder
in Australia and Asia. Approximately 2.100 new hires occurred in lower cost regions during the year ended
March 30, 2007, including replacements of some of the 4,400 reductions as well as for previously-planned and
on-going business activities.

The Company’s strategy in Europe has been to obtain negotiated, voluntary terminations to the extent
possible, but involuntary terminations were also necessary in certain countries to attain targeted reductions.
Outside of Europe, terminations have been predominantly involuntary. Involuntary termination benefits are
determined in accordance with existing company policies and local legal requirements. In some countries,
local regulations require the Company to consult with employee representatives such as works councils or
unions in the determination of job categories and number of employees to be terminated. as well as the
resulting termination benefit amounts.

The amounts of termination benefits are typically attributable to employees’ services alrcady rendered
and increase as length of service increases, The Company records charges for negotiated. voluntary termina-
tions at the time an employee accepls the Company's offer. Involuntary termination benefits are accrued at
the time such obligations are considered probable and reasonably estimable. Such a calculation is based on
estimates of benefit pavouts as well as number and type of staff to be terminated. In cases where a plan calls
for first attempting to garner voluntary terminations and then moves to involuntary terminations if targeted
reductions are not achieved, a charge is accrued based on estimated involuntary benefits for all remaining
reductions.

Accruals for future termination benefits are based on a number of assumptions and estimates. Such
accruals may differ from actual results for a variety of reasons, including: different benefit amounts or mix of
employees as a resull of completed employee representative consultations; additional voluntary terminations
in lieu of accrued involuntary terminations: changes in mix of actual terminated employees by age, years of
service, or job class.
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Note T—Special Items {Continued)

Restructuring-related pre-tax cash payments of approximately $207.2 were made in fiscal 2007 (exclud-
ing $25.8 cash proceeds received from sale of a data center) and are estimated to be approximately $195 in
fiscal 2008. Included in the restructuring charge are pension benefit augmentations that are due to certain
employees in accordance with legal or contractual obligations, which will be paid out over several years as
part of normal pension distributions. Such liabilities are included in the consolidated pension liability
account,

See the following table for a summary of fiscal 2007 activity:

Total Pre-Tax Less Charges
Charges not Affecting Restructuring
Recorded Year- Restructuring Less Liability as of
to-Date Fiscal 2007 Liability"? Payments'® Other'®  March 30, 2007
Workforce reductions . .. $294.3 $(6.8) $(201.7) $7.7 $ 935
Other.........oooo 39.1 6.3 (65 10 40.9
Total...o.ovverieieinnnn $333.4 $(0.5) $(2072) 387 $134.4

(1} Charges primarily consist of pension benefit augmentations offset by gains on sale of restructured assets.
2 Excludes $25.8 cash proceeds received from salc of a data center facility.
() Foreign currency translation adjustments.

Effective February 28, 2006, Nortel Networks (Nortel) terminated the Company’s services for certain
information technology outsourcing activities covered by the agreement between Nortel and the Company.
As a result the Company recorded a non-cash special item charge of $77.3 ($48.3 after tax) or 26 cents per
share. The charge relates to the write down of outsourcing contract costs and certain equipment associated
with the Nortel contract to estimated fair value, the loss on sale of equipment to Nortel, severance costs and
costs associated with terminating the contract. The Nortel contract is included in the Global Commercial
reporting segment.

During fiscal 2003, the Company recorded special items of $28.6 ($18.4 after tax) or 10 cents per share.
Special items included $27.8 of early redemption premiums and the write off of $1.7 of deferred debt issuance
costs and unamortized discount as described in Note 10. Special items also included a $.9 reversal of special
items recorded in fiscal 2001 in connection with the consolidation of facilities.

Note 8—Income Taxes

Total income tax expense was allocated as follows:

Fiscal Year
2007 206 2005
As Restated™ As Restated™

Income from continuing operations ..................... $218.2 $332.2 $236.0

Income from discontinued operations ................... — 223 533
Cumulative effect on prior years of changes in

accounting principles. ........ ... ... .. — (1.3) —

$218.2 $353.2 $289.3

(1 See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”
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Note 8—Income Taxes (Continued)

The sources of income before taxes from continuing operations, classified between domestic entities and
those entities domiciled outside of the United States are as follows:

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005
As Restated'? As Restated
Domeslic entities. ... ... e $637.7 $570.3 $435.3
Entities outside the United States ...................... (30.7) 233.0 245.0
TOtaAl. oo $607.0 $803.3 $650.3

(1) See Note 2. “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.™

The provision for income tax expense on income from continuing operations is classiticd between
current and deferred and by taxing jurisdiction in the following manner:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
As Restated'" As RHestated'V

Current
Federal ... ... .. $246.2 $149.6 $ (6.8)
N1 ¥: | (T 222 1.1 3.1
Fareign... ... . . 1.7 52.1 86.8
270.1 202.8 u3.1
Deferred
Federal ... ... .. ... . (64.5) 67.0 108.1
] -1 O (13.4) 250 12.7
Foreign. ... .. .. e 26.0 374 22.1
(51.9) 129.4 142.9
Total provision for taxes ........................... $218.2 $332.2 $236.0

(1) See Note 2, “Restalement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

The major elements contributing 1o the difference between the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35.0%
and the effective tax rate are as follows:

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005
As Restated'" As Restuted'V
SEAtULOTY TALE - oo 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal tax ............ ... .. ... ) 38 ¥
Change in tax contingency................. ... ..oeavnn. (5.5)
Foreign rate differential ............... ... oo 8.2 4.0 3.0
Income tax credits ... i e 7.7 (2.2) (2)
Penalties ... ... o 2 2 2.0
Other. . ... e (.5 _ b )
Effective tax rate........... ... . i i _35.9% A 4% 347%

(1} See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”
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Note 8—Income Taxes (Continued)

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that comprise deferred tax balances are as follows:

March 3, March 31,
2007 2006
As Restated'"
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Other accrued liabilities. ..., ... ..o oo $ 269
Currency exchange .......... ... ... oottt 46.6 $ 118
OLher asSets ..o oottt e e e e 115.1 65.9
Employee benefits .. ........ . i 384.1 196.0
Tax loss/credit carryforwards . ......... ..o 392.0 2389
Depreciation and amortization ................ccoviiineerenn... (314.2) (357.1)
Contract accOUNTING . ...t ineeiritia et aaarranas (447.4) (443.2)
Investment basis differences.................. ..o (14.6) 42.1
Deferred revenue . ... ...t iiit i (21.4) (55.3)
Prepayments .........ooiii i (46.2) (33.0)
Other liabilities ... ... ..o i e e i (67.2) 21.0
SUbBtOtal L. e 53.7 (312.9)
Valuation allowance ..ot ie e {335.8) (189.1)
Total deferred tax liabilities .......... ... . ... ... i i, $(282.1) $(502.0)

1) See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Of the deferred tax amounts above, $390.0, and $398.5 are included in the current income tax liability
accounts at March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively. All long-term deferred tax assets are included in
other assets and all long-ierm deferred tax liabilities are included in other long-term liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

During fiscal 2001 the Company made a net investment in an unconsolidated limited partnership. The
difference between the investment’s book and tax basis generated a deferred tax asset in the amount of
$151.0. The remaining deferred tax asset at March 31, 2007 of $50.6 represents the expected reduction of the
Company's foreign income taxes payable or increases to loss carryforwards over the next two years.

The increase to the valuation allowance for the fiscal year ended March 30, 2007 of $146.7 relates
primarily to deferred tax assets for net operating losses in certain foreign and state tax jurisdictions. In
assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized and adjusts the valuation allowance
accordingly. In determining whether the deferred taxes are realizable the Company considers the period of
expiration of the tax asset, and historical and projected taxable income as well as tax liabilities for the tax
jurisdiction in which the tax asset is located. Valuation allowances are evaluated periodically and will be
subject to change in each future reporting period as a result of changes in one or more of these factors.

In the opinion of management the Company has adequately provided for income tax issues not yet
resolved with federal, state and foreign tax authorities. At March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, the Company
has accrued $469.3 and $446.6, respectively, for these matters. The Company records contingent tax liabilities
when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated at the date
of the financial statements related to positions taken that could be challenged by taxing authorities under
examination. These potential exposures result from differing interpretations or applications of tax laws and
regulations, and from certain transactions, deductions or credits claimed on returns as filed. Timing of the
resolution of these matters is highly uncertain. Although not probable, the most adverse resolution of these
issues could result in additional charges to earnings in future periods. Based upon consideration of all
relevant facts and circumstances, it is the opinion of the Company’s management the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results
of operation.
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Note 8—Income Taxes (Continued)

At March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, the Company has available unused foreign net operating loss
{NOL) carryforwards of approximately $1,349.9 and $736.6 and state NOL carryforwards of approximately
$794.9 and $1,302.1. As of March 31, 2007, the foreign NOL carryforwards can be carried over indefinitely,
except for $279.2 which expire at various dates through 2014. As of March 31, 2007, the state NOL
carryforwards expire at various dates through 2027.

The Company is currently the beneficiary of tax holiday incentives in India which expire in fiscal years
2007 and 2009. As a result of the tax holiday incentives, the Company’s tax expense was reduced by
approximately $7.2, $5.3 and $3.0 during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The cumulative undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries were approximately $958.8
as of March 30, 2007. As the Company intends to permanently reinvest all such earnings, no provision has
been made for income taxes that may become payable upon the distribution of such earnings, and it is not
practicable to determine the amount of the related unrecognized deferred income tax liability.

During fiscal 2007, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) commenced an examination of the Company’s
federal income tax returns for fiscal years 2000 through 2004. In addition, the Company filed a protest with
respect Lo the results of the TRS examination of fiscal years 1995 through 1999 with the Office of Appeals.
Although the outcome of tax audits is always uncertain, in the opinion of management, the resolution of this
audit is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

Note 9—Receivables

Receivables consist of the following:

March 30, March 31,
2007 2006
As Restated!
Billed trade acCotntS ... o.vv ittt it e vt e $2,330.0 $2,107.4
Unbilled recoverable amounts under contracts in progress............ 1,716.0 1.487.3
Otherreceivables ... .. i 138.3 137.9
Total e e e e $4,184.3 $3,732.6

1 See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”™

As of March 30, 2007, there were no billed trade accounts receivable for long-term contracts that are
unpaid by customers under retainage provisions.

Unbilled recoverable amounts under contracts in progress generally become billable upon completion
of a specified contract, negotiation of contract modifications, compietion of government audit activities,
achievement of project milestones or upon acceptance by the customer. Unbilled recoverable amounts under
contracts in progress include amounts for long-term contracts of $955.4, including $427.6 which is expected to
be collected during fiscal 2008 and $527.7 which is expected to be collected within fiscal 2009 and thereafter.
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Note 10—Debt

Short-term

The Company has a commercial paper program. The program is backed by a multi-year facility which
expires on August 23, 2011. The Company’s outstanding commercial paper is classified as short term
obligations. At March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, the Company had no commercial paper outstanding. The
weighted average interest rate on the Company’s commercial paper borrowings was 5.4% and 3.2% for the
years ended March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively.

The Company had $51.9 and $56.6 of borrowings outstanding under its uncommitted lines of credit with
certain foreign banks, as of March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively. CSC has provided parent
guarantees for these short-tcrm lines of credit which carry no commitment fees or significant covenants. The
weighted average interest rate on borrowings under these short-term lines of credit was 3.7% at March 30,
2007 and 3.8% at March 31, 2006.

On March 11, 2005, the Company redeemed all of its outstanding 7.50% term notes due August 2005 and
all of its outstanding 6.75% term notes due June 2006. As the result of these redemptions, the Company
recorded a $29.5 pre-tax charge during fiscal 2005 consisting of $27.8 of early redemption premiums and the
write off of $1.7 of deferred issuance costs and unamortized discount. The debt redemption charge is included
in special items in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Long-term

The following is a summary of long-term debt:

March 30, 2007 March 31, 2006

6.25% term notes, due March 2009 ............... ... ... .. ... $ 2000 $ 2000
7.375% term notes, due June 2011 ....... . ... .. e 498.5 498.1
5.00% term notes, due February 2013 ... ... .. ... ... . ... ..., 2978 297.4
3.50% term notes, due April2008 . .......... .. ... 299.4 298.7
Capitalized lease HLiabilities ............ ... .o i it 1518 106.9
Notes payable ... o e 6.5 4.4
Total long-term debt . ... ..o i 1,454.0 1,405.5
Less current Matirities . ... .uurr et iee e s crnaanes 41.8 28.7

L Y $1,4122 $1,376.8

Capitalized lease liabilities shown above represent amounts due under leases for the use of computers
and other equipment. Included in property and equipment are related assets of $325.8 (2007) and $381.7
(2006), less accumulated amortization of $88.2 and $102.7, respectively.

Certain of the Company’s borrowing arrangements coatain covenants that require the Company to
maintain certain financial ratios and limit the amount of dividend payments. Under the most restrictive
requirement, $4,250.6 of retained earnings was available for cash dividends at March 30, 2007. The Company
was in compliance with all covenants at March 30, 2007.

The carrying value of the Company’s long-term debt was $1,454.0 and $1,405.5 at March 30, 2007 and
March 31, 2006, as shown above. The corresponding fair value was approximately $1,474.5 and $1,409.3 using
the interest rates available to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities.

Maturities of long-term debt, capital lease payments, and other long-term obligations by fiscal year are
$41.8 (2008), $527.6 (2009}, $11.7 (2010), $12.3 (2011), $505.6 (2012), and $355.0 thereafter.
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Note 10—Debt (Continued)

In the normal course of business, the Company may provide certain customers and potential customers
with financial performance guarantees. which are generally backed by standby letters of credit or surety
bonds. In general, the Company would only be liable for the amount of these guarantees in the event of
default in the performance of our obligations, the probability of which is remote in management’s opinion.
The Company is in compliance with the performance obligations under all service contracts for which there is
a performance guarantee, and any liability incurred in connection with these guarantees would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial positien. In addition.
the Company has other guarantees that represent parent guarantees in support of working capital credit lines
established with local financial institutions for its foreign business units.

The following table summarizes the expiration of the Company’s financial guarantees outstanding as of
March 30, 2007.

Fiscal
Fiscal Fiscal 2010 and
2008 2009 Thereafter Total
Perfiormance guarantees:
Surety bonds ... ... $ 224 § 24 $ 248
Lettersof credit ... 3661 1862 $10.1 562.4
Standby letters of credit. ... 72.0 1.0 73.0
Foreign subsidiary debt guarantees .................... 543.9 23.2 567.1
Total.. oo $1,004.4 $189.6 $33.3 $1,227.3

Note 11-—Share Repurchase Program

On June 29, 2006 the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to
$2.000. In connection with the share repurchase program the Company entered into an accelerated share
repurchase agreement and a collared accelerated share repurchase agreement with Goldman, Sachs & Coon
June 29, 2006. Under the accelerated share repurchase agreement, which was effective as of June 29, 2006, the
Company acquired 9.3 million shares of common stock on June 29, 2006 from Goldman, Sachs & Co for $500.
Under the collared accelerated share repurchase transaction, which was effective July 5.2006, the Company
received an initial minimum delivery of common stock outstanding of 7.1 million shares for a payment of
$500. The transactions were accounted for as a share retirement with common stock, paid-in capital and
retained earnings reduced by $16.4, $152.6 and $831.0, respectively. The Company will receive additional
shares pursuant to this agreement depending on movements in the market price of the Company’s common
stock over the life of the agreement. The agreement has a term of six to twelve months after completion of
the period establishing the hedge price, which was completed on July 28, 2006.

Under both the accelerated share repurchase and the collared accelerated share repurchase agreements,
Goldman, Sachs & Co may repurchase an equivalent number of shares in the open market over the terms of
the respective agreements. The accelerated share repurchase agreement may be completed at any time
between January 29, 2007 and June 29, 2007. At the completion of the agreement, CSC’s initial price under
the accelerated share repurchase agreement will be adjusted up or down based on the volume-weighted
average price (VWAP) of the stock during this period. Such adjustment may be settled in cash or stock at the
Company’s discretion. The collared accelerated share repurchase agreement may be completed at anytime
between January 29. 2007 and July 30, 2007. The Company financed the accelerated share repurchase
transactions initially with cash on hand and the issuance of approximatety $600 of commercial paper.
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Note 11—Share Repurchase Program (Continued)

The Company also entered into a purchase agreement with Goldman, Sachs & Co to acquire up to an
additional $1,000 in market value of outstanding common stock through open market repurchase transac-
tions under a Rule 10b5-1 plan. The share repurchase program will begin after completion of the accelerated
share repurchase and the collared share repurchase agreement and is expected to be completed over a twelve
month period.

Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans

The Company and its subsidiaries offer a number of pension and postretirement benefit, life insurance
benefit, deferred compensation, and other plans, as described below.

A contributory, defined benefit pension plan is generally available to U.S. employees. Certain non-U.S.
employees are enrolled in defined benefit pension plans in the country of domicile. In addition, the Company
has two supplemental executive retirement plans (SERP), which are nonqualified, noncontributory pension
plans. The Company provides subsidized healthcare and life insurance retirement benefits for certain U.S.
employees, generally for those employed prior to August 1992, as well as dental and prescription drug
benefits for certain Canadian employees. Most employees outside the U.S. are covered by government
sponsored programs at no direct cost to the Company other than related payroll taxes.

CSC utilizes actuarial methods required by SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” and
SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” to recognize the
expense for pension and other postretirement benefit plans, respectively. CSC has implemented SFAS No.
132(R) (as modified by SFAS No. 158), “Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans,” for financial statement disclosures. Inherent in the application of these actuarial
methods are key assumptions, including, but not limited to, discount rates and expected long-term rates of
return on plan assets. Changes in the related pension and other postretirement benefit costs may oceur in the
future due to changes in the underlying assumptions, changes in the number and composition of plan
participants and changes in the level of benefits provided.

CSC currently uses a measurement date of December 31 for the majority of its pension and other
postretirement benefit plans.
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Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans {Continued)

Pension Plans

The following tables provide reconciliations of the changes in the plans’ projected benefit obligations
and assets, and a statement of their funded status:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2007 2006

Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ................ $1.961.6 $1.749.7 320878 §18959
SEIVICE COSE .ottt e i e e 128.2 118.3 81.2 81.4
INterest COBt ..ottt e e 1154 101.6 102.2 871.7
Plan participants’ contributions ............... ... . .o 44.7 43.6 357 30.2
AmMendments . ... .t e (20.3) (L.O) 4
Business combinations .......... ...ttt 2.6 1.4 8.0
Settlement/curtaillment ........ ... i {.5) (11.4)
Actuarial oSS .. ... . 46.2 74 63.8 248.7
Benefits paid ... ... . e (72.4) {61.6) (95.2) (70.8)
Other eXpenses ... ... 1.7
Foreign currency exchange rate changes. ........................ 245.9 (193.7)

Projected benefit obligation atend of year.................. $2,2029 $1961.6 $2,512.1 $2,087.8
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year. ................... $1,594.1 $1,393.9 $1.6349 $1421.6
Actual return on plan assets ... 213.1 90.0 188.5 240.7
Employer contribution ......... ... .o i 113.4 125.6 118.5 159.6
Plan participants’ contributions ............. ... .o 447 43.6 357 30.2
Benefits paid. ... o e (72.4) (61.6) (95.2) (70.8)
Business/contract acquisitions (disposition)...................... (.3) 2.6 3.1 .1
OLher eXpenses .. ... i {9.1)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes......................... 197.8  (146.5)

Fair value of plan assets atendof year ..................... $1.892.6 §1,594.1 $2,068.0 $1,634.9
Funded Status ....... ... oo i $ (310.3) $(367.5) § (444.1) § (452.9)
Unrecognized actuarial loss. ... ... 266.3 427.0
Unrecognized transition obligation................... .. ...ooo. 10.5
Unrecognized prior service cost........ ... .. ciiiiiiiin s 9.3 2.8
Contribution adjustment .............coiiiiiiiiiiiii i 29.0 20.2 225 22.0

Funded status at End of Year ... ... iiiiiiiaiinnnn.. $(281.3) § (L)Y $(4216) 8 94
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Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

The following table provides the amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2007 2006
NOD-CUTTENt ASSELS ... .. .ttt aiaeann $8 2 § 84 % 962
Intangible assel ......... o ittt e $ 136 24
Current liabilities . ... ... .. .. . i i e 5.0) {6.5)
Non-current liabilities ... ... ... .. ... oo i (276.5) (196.4) (4235) (111.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ............... ... ... 201.9 111.1 471.3 224
Net amount recorded .........co.iiiiiiiii ittt i, $(794) $ (7L $ 497 3 94

The accumulated benefit obligation at the end of 2007 and 2006 was $4,093.9 and $3,474.2, respectively.

The following is a summary of amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of March 30, 2007
and March 31, 2006 that have not been recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as compo-
nents of net periodic pension cost:

U.S. Plans Noa-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2007 1006
Net transition obligation..............cov i iiieiiiiiiaiiainannns $ (10.0)
Prior service eredit (Cost) . ... i e $ 143 (2.9)
Net actuarial l0SS. ... ..ot e et (216.2) (458.4)
Minimum pension liability ............ .o $(111.1) $ (22.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ............................ $(201.9) $(111.1) $(471.3) $ (22.4)

As of March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, the balance of minimum liability adjustments included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss was $457.4 (net of related taxes of $213.0) and $81.4 {net of related
taxes of $52.0).

The following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions used in the determination of the
Company’s pension plans’ benefit obligations for the years ended March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2007 2006

DISCOUNL FALE .+t ettt ettt et et e et e et e e e cevraraans 6.0% 59% 51% 49%
Rates of increase in compensation levels . .......... ... ... oo, 42% 4.6% 3.7% 35%

The following table lists selected information for the pension plans as of March 30, 2007 and March 31,
2006:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
End of Year 2007 2006 2007 2006
Projected benefit obligation ............. ... ..ol $2,2029 $1961.6 $2512.1 $2,087.8
Accumulated benefit obligation................ ... ... 20371 18066 20568 1,667.6
Fair value of planassets ... 18926 11,5941 20680 16349
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Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

Plans with Projected Plans with Accumulated
Benefit Obligation in Benefit Obligation in
Excess of Plan Assels Eacess of Plan Assets
{U.S. and Non-U.S8.) (U.S. und Non-U.5.)
End of Year 2007 2006 2007 2006
Projected benefit obligation ................... ... $4.4969  $3817.1  $2.286.1 $2.212.6
Accumulated benefit obligation................ ... 3.876.8 3,262.1 2,146 20122
Fair value of planassets ............. oot 37346  2990.6 1.855.6 1.694.1

The net periodic pension cost for U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans included the following components:

U.S. Plans Non-U.5. Plans
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

SErVICE COBL ..\ttt i $1282 $1183 $101.1 § 812 $814 3695
Interest CoSl ...t 1154 101.6 943 1022 877 759
Expected return on assets ......... ... (132.6) (111.8) (100.4) (121.4) (93.0) (76.3)
Amortization of transition obligation .............. (.8) 1.2 1.1 9
Amortization of prior service costs ................ 34 34 3.2 (1.1) 1.0 i.0
Amortization of unrecognized net loss ............. 16.0 235 14.7 15.4 16.2 10.9
Settlement/curtailment ........ ... il (.5) )

Special termination benefits ... 5.7

Net periodic pension cost..............ooovviinn.. $1299 $1350 $1i21 $§ 839 $944 P8LY

The estimated net transitional obligation, prior service cost and actuarial Joss for defined benefit plans
that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic pension cost over the
next fiscal year are $1.2, $1.5 and $34.7, respectively.

The weighted-averages of the assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost were:

LLS. Plans Non-1).8. Plans
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Discount or settlement 7ateS. ... 59% 59% 63% 49% 53% 54%
Expected long-term rates of return on assets ................ 8.3% 85% 85% 70% 11% 6Y%
Rates of increase in compensation levels.................... 44% 4.6% 46% 35% 37% 35%

The discount rate assumption reflects the market rate for high-quality, fixed income debt instruments as
of our annual measurement date and is therefore subject to change each year. The required use of an
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets may result in recognized plan income that differs from the
actual return on those plan assets in any given year. Over time, the actual long-term rate of return on plan
assets is expected to approximate the return assumption utilized. Differences between expected and actual
returns are recognized in the calculation of net periodic pension cost. Rate of increase in compensation levels
and other assumptions, such as turnover and life expectancy, also impact pension calculations.

The expected long-lerm rate of return on plan assets assumption is selected by first identifying the
expected range of long-term rates of return for each major asset class. Expected long-term rates of return are
developed based on long-term historical averages as well as current expectations of future returns. Consider-
ation is given to the extent active management is employed in each class. A single expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets is then calculated by weighing each class.
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Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

The asset allocation of pension plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Asset Category 2006 2005 2006 2005
Equitysecurities ......... ... ..o i i e 70% 70% 64% 63%
Debt SeCUTIES ... . i i it iiaiaiaann s 271%  29%  19% 23%
Participant directed ............. ... . 8% 8%
Other . . s 3% _1% _9% _ 6%
Total oo e 100% 100% 100% 100%

The Company’s investment strategy for plan assets takes into account a number of factors, including the
time horizon of the pension plans’ obligations. For each of the largest plans, an allocation range by asset class
is developed. The allocation has a significant weighting for equity investments in part due to the relatively
long duration of the plans’ obligations. Third party investment managers are employed to invest assets in
both passively-indexed and actively-managed strategies. The Company’s allocation range for its largest plan
is 60-76% equities, 23-31% debt securities and 0-10% cash and other investments. The Company has
typically used cash flow from employer and employee contributions to keep allocations within the range. The
Company also has investments in insurance contracts to pay plan benefits in certain countries. The allocation
above does not include certain amounts that are included in the fair value of assets such as cash awaiting
investment or asset transfer receivable amounts from other plans.

Information about the expected cash flows for pension plans follows:

Pension Plans

U.S. Non-U.S.
Plans Plans
Employer contributions
2008 (expected) . ..ottt e $125 $105
Expected Benefit Payments
2008 . e $ 90 $ 90
2000 e 85 80
71 90 85
20 100 90
200 e e 110 95
20032007 . e e e 730 540

No plan assets are expected to be returned to the Company in the next fiscal year.
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Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The following tables provide reconciliations of the changes in postretirement plans’ benefit obligations
and assets, and a statement of their funded status:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2007 2006

Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year............... ... $149.5 %1214 %108 § 7.0
S ErVICE COSL .. oo i e 22 1.4 3 3
Interest COSE ... i e e 8.8 6.8 5 4
Plan participants’ contributions ............... ...l 1.7 1.6
Amendments ... ... e (.5) 8
Business combination .......... . . e 4 1
Curtailment . .. o e (.3 (.7 @0
Actuarial 10ss (gain). ... ... 218 27.5 2.0
Benefits paid. . ... (1000  (79) (1) 1)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes................................. 2 3

Benefit obligation at end of year ................. ... $173.0 $1495 $9.6 § 108
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year............................ $ 766 § 740
Actual return on plan assels .. ... ... 7.4 35
Employer contribution .. ......... oo it 7.5 54 § 1
Plan participants’ contributions ........... ... .. 1.7 1.6
Benefits paid .. ... ... aon) @9 (D

Fair value of plan assets atend of year .................... ..o $ 832 § 76.6

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2007 2006

Funded Status ... ... .ot $(89.8) $(72.9) $(9.6) $(10.8)
Unrecognized actuarial loss............... .o i 422 35
Unrecognized transition obligation............... ... .. ... .o 10.7
Unrecognized prior SErvice COSt. . ...t it 33 4
Contribution adjustment . ... ... .. i e .6 1.4
Funded status at end of year ........ ... .. . .. i $(89.2) $(15.3) $(9.6) $ (6.9
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Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

The following table provides the amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2007 2006
NON-CUTTEIT BSSETS L .ottt t ittt et et et e et e e e e s et aban s, $ 335
Current Habilities ... ....oooio i i i e $ (44) $(1
Non-current Habilities .. .....u.veeiir et ie e eeeieranss (84.8) (48.8) (9.5) $(6.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ............... ool 70.3 1.8
Net amount recorded ........oouvetn oot $(18.9) $(15.3) $(7.8) $(6.9)

The following is a summary of amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of March 30, 2007
and March 31, 2006 that have not been recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as
components of net periodic benefit cost:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007

2007
Net transition obligation...... ... ... i i e $ (9.0 $(0.3)
Prior service credit (COSE) .. ..ooui vt it e e e e (1.8)
Netactuarial loss. ... _(59.5) (LS5
Accumulated other comprehensive 1oss ... i i e $(70.3) &)

As of March 30, 2007, the balance of minimum liability adjustments included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss was $343.8 (net of related taxes of $28.3).

The following table lists selected information for other postretirement benefit plans of March 30, 2007
and March 31, 2006:

Plans with Accomulated
Postretirement Benefit
Obligation in Excess
of the Fair Value of
Plan Assets

LJ.S. Plans Non-U.S, Plans (U.S. and Non-1.8.}
End of Year 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Projected benefit obligation .................. $173.0 $1495 $96 $10.8 $182.6 $160.3
Fair value of plan assets ...................... 83.2 76.6 83.2 76.6

At March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006, the Company had no postretirement healthcare plan assets
outside the U.S. Benefits paid include amounts paid directly from plan assets and amounts paid by the
Company.

For U.S. plans, a weighted-average discount rate of 5.8% and 5.9% was used in the determination of the
Company’s postretirement benefit obligation for the years ended March 30, 2007 and March 31, 2006,
respectively. For non-U.S. plans, a weighted-average discount rate of 5.5% and 5.2% was used in the
determination of the Company’s postretirement healthcare obligation for the years ended March 30, 2007
and March 31, 2006, respectively.

The assumed healthcare cost trend rate used in measuring the expected benefit obligation for U.S.
postretirement benefit plans was 9.0% for fiscal 2007, declining to 5.0% for 2013 and subsequent years. For
the non-U.S. postretirement benefit plans, it was 9.0% for fiscal 2007, declining to 5.0% for 2017 and
subsequent years.
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Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the healthcare
plans. A one-percentage change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have had the following
effect:

One Percentage Point

Increase Decrease
Effect on accumulated postretirement healthcare obligation as of March 30,2007 ....  $14.0 $(13.7)
Effect on net periodic postretirement healthcare cost for fiscal 2007............... .. 1.2 (1.2)

The net periodic benefit cost for U.S. and non-U.S. other postretirement benefit plans included the
following components;

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

207 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
SEIVICE COST o\ vttt e e eee e e ettt et e e e $22 $14 $14 $3 §3 §2
INTErest COSt oo oo 88 68 12 A 4 3
Expected return on assets ... i (6.4) (6.2) (5.1)
Amortization of transition obligation ............ . ... 1.6 1.6 1.6 A 1
Amortization of prior $ervice CoslS .....viiiiirariaeae e 7 vl .6 ) 1
Recognized actuarial loss (gain) ... 3.6 1 .6 N 1
Settlement/curtailment ... {.2) ___
Net provision for postretirement benefits .................... .. $103 $44 $63 $1.0 $1.6 806

The estimated net transitional obligation, prior service cost and actuarial loss for other postretirement
benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit
cost over the next fiscal year are $1.7, $.6 and $4.2, respectively.

The weighted-averages of the assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost were as follows.
See the above discussion of Pension Plans for how the assumptions are developed.

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Discount or settlement rates............c.oooveiiii it 59% 59% 63% 52% 55% 64%
Expected long-term rates of return on assetst ..., . ..., 85% 85% 8.5%

(1) The Company had no other postretirement benefit plan assets outside the U.S.

The asset allocation for U.S. other postretirement benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as
follows:

Percentage of Plan
Assets at Year End

Asset Category _2006 _2005
EQUIlY SECUTTEIBS L. ottt et 59% 63%
DD SECUTIIIES & vt vttt e et e e et e e e et e e et 33% 33%
Y] PRI _ 8% 4%
0 721 N ﬁ% LQ%




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 12—Pension and Other Benefit Plans (Continued)

The Company’s investment strategy for its funded post retirement benefits is similar to the strategy for
its pension assets. The Company’s target allocation for these assets is in the range of 50-70% equities, 30-50%
debt securities and 0-10% cash and other investments.

Information about the expected cash flows for other postretirement benefit plans follows. No significant
cash flow is expected for other postretirement benefit plans outside the U.S.

Employer contributions

2008 (eXPeCted) . ..o\ttt e $10
Expected Benefit Payments
2008 L e $10
200 . e e e e 10
L 10
200 e e e e 10
200 e e 15
20032007 e e e 60

No plans are expected to be returned to the Company in the next fiscal year.

Other Benefir Plans

The Company sponsors several defined contribution plans for substantially all U.S. employees and
certain foreign employees. The plans allow employees to contribute a portion of their earnings in accordance
with specified guidelines. At March 30, 2007, plan assets included 9,251,407 shares of the Company’s common
stock. During fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, the Company contributed $123.0, $123.6, and $108.1,
respectively.

Effective August 14, 1995, the Company adopted the Computer Sciences Corporation Deferred Com-
pensation Plan (the Plan). The Plan consists of two separate plans, one for the benefit of key executives and
one for the benefit of non-employee directors. Pursuant to the Plan, certain management and highly
compensated employees are eligible to defer all or a portion of their regular salary that exceeds the limitation
set forth in Internal Revenue Section 401(a)(17) and all or a portion of their incentive compensation, and
nonemployee directors are eligible to defer up to 100% of their compensation. Each plan participant is fully
vested in all deferred compensation and earnings credited to his or her account.

The liability under this Plan amounted to $89.0 at March 30, 2007, and $83.1 at March 31, 2006. The

Company’s expense under the Plan totaled $6.0, $5.8, and $5.2 for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005,
respectively.
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Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

The Company has operating leases for the use of certain real estate and equipment. Substantially all
operating leases are non-cancelable or cancelable only by the payment of penalties. All lease payments are
based on the lapse ol time but include, in some cases, payments for insurance. maintenance and property
taxes. There are no purchase options on operating leases at favorable lerms, but most real estate leases have
one or more renewal options. Certain leases on real estate are subject to annual escalations for increases in
utilities and property laxes. Lease rental expense amounted to $345.1, $299.6 and 3330.8 for the years ended
March 30, 2007, March 31, 2006, and April 1. 2005, respectively.

Minimum fixed rentals required for the next five years and thereafter under operating leases in effect at
March 30. 2007 arc as follows:

Fiscal Year Real Estate  Equipment
2008 e e $217.3 % 848
200 L e e e 192.7 29.5
3 02 A A 16002 154
% 1 O O 129.9 47
2 1 1 e 64.5 8
B 1T Tt LS OO 125.6

$890.2 $135.2

The Company has signed long-term purchase agreements with certain software, hardware, telecommu-
nication and other service providers to obtain favorable pricing and terms for services that are necessary for
the operations of business activitics. Under the terms of these agreements, the Company is contractually
committed to purchase speciticd service minimums over periods ranging from one to five years. If the
Company does not meet the specified service minimums, the Company would have an obligation to pay the
service provider a portion or all of the shortfall. Minimum purchase commitments for each of the subsequent
five years, fiscal 2008 through fiscal 2012, are as follows: $435.3, $279.1, $34.3, $53.7 and §.1, respectively. In
addition. the Company also has $39.3 of sublease income to be received through 2017.

Contingencies

The primary financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit
risk are accounts receivable. The Company’s customer basc includes Fortune 500 companies, the U.S.
Federal and other governments and other significant. well-known companies operating in North America,
Europe and the Pacific Rim. Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is minimized because of the
nature and diversification of the Company's customer base. Furthermore, the Company continuousty reviews
its accounts receivables and records provisions for doubtful accounts as needed.

The Company guarantees working capital credit lines established with local financial institutions for is
non-U.S. business units. Generally, guarantees have one-year terms and are renewed annually. CSC
guarantees up to $567.1 of such working capital lines: however, as of March 30, 2007. the amount of the
maximum potential payment is $51.9, the amount of the related outstanding subsidiary debt. The $51.9
outstanding debt is reflected in the Company's consolidated financial statements.

The Company generally indemnifics its software license customers from claims of infringement on a
United States patent, copyright, or trade secret. CSC’s indemnification covers custs to defend customers from
claims, court awards or related settlements, The Company maintains the right to modify or replace software
in order to eliminate any infringement. Historically. CSC has not incurred any significant costs related to
customer software license indemnification. Management considers the likelihood of incurring future costs Lo
be remote. Accordingly. the Company has not recorded a related liability.
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Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

CSC is engaged in providing services under contracts with the U.S. Government. The contracts are
subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and, from time to time, agencies of the U.S.
Government investigate whether the Company’s operations are being conducted in accordance with these
requirements. U.S. Government investigations of the Company, whether related to the Company’s federal
government contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in administrative, civil or criminal
liabilities, including repayments, fines or penalties being imposed upon the Company, or could lead to
suspension or debarment from future U.S. Government contracting. The Company believes it has adequately
reserved for any losses which may be experienced from these investigations.

In the course of business, discrepancies or claims may arise as to the use or reliability of various software
products provided by the Company for its customers. On February 11, 2005, the Company was named, along
with other vendors to the insurance industry, and dozens of insurance companies in Hensley, et al. vs.
Computer Sciences Corporation, et al., filed as a putative nationwide class action in state court in Miller
County, Arkansas shortly before President Bush signed the Class Action Fairness Act into law. The plaintiffs
allege the defendants conspired to wrongfully use software products licensed by the Company and the other
software vendors to reduce the amount paid to the licensees’ insureds for bodily injury claims. Plaintiffs also
allege wrongful concealment of the manner in which these software programs evaluate claims and wrongful
concealment of information about alleged inherent errors and flaws in the software. Plaintiffs seek injunctive
and monetary relief of less than $.075 for each class member, as well as attorney’s fees and costs. The
Company is vigorously defending itself against the allegations,

Litigation is inherently uncertain and it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of the matters
discussed above. Considering the early stage of the Hensley case, the complicated issues presented by that
matter, and the fact that no class has been certified, it is not possible at this time to make meaningful
estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from this matter. It is possible that the Company’s
business, financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows could be affected by the resolution of this
matter. Whether any losses, damages or remedies ultimately resulting from this proceeding could reasonably
have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows will
depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and amount of such losses or damages, if
any, and the structure and type of any such remedies. Depending on the ultimate resolution of these matters,
some may be material to the Company’s operating results for a particular period if an unfavorable outcome
results, although such a material unfavorable result is not presently expected, and all other litigation, in the
aggregate, is not expected to result in a material adverse impact to the consolidated financial statements.

As reflected by Form 8-K filings made by Sears Holdings Corporation (SHC) on May 13, 2005 (following
merger with K-Mart Holding Corporation), and by the Company on May 16, 2005, "THC’s subsidiary, Sears,
Roebuck and Co. (Sears), and the Company are in dispute over amounts due and owing and applicable
termination fees following Sears’ termination of its Master Services Agreement (Agreement) with the
Company on May 11, 2005. The dispute which also involves billings for continued services and counterclaim
allegations by Sears of contract breaches is expected to be resolved pursuant to negotiations or legal and
arbitration proceedings. As of March 30, 2007, the Company’s investment in net assets associated with the
Agreement was approximately $80. These net assets include accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, outsourc-
ing contract costs, software, and property, plant and equipment. The Company will vigorously pursue
recovery for its associated assets and commitments. While the Company expects full recovery of its
investments associated with this Agreement, if unsuccessful, the Company may experience a charge, which
could be material, associated with the impairment of these assets.
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Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The Company has converted 16 submitted Requests for Equitable Adjustment (REAs) to interest
bearing claims under the Contract Disputes Act (CDA) totaling in excess of $1.000 on two U.S. Federal
contracts. Included in current assets on the Company’s balance sheet is approximately $820 of unbilled
accounts receivable and deferred costs related to the contracts. CSC has requested payment for certain
related out-of-scope work directed or caused by the customers in support of their critical missions. The
contractual modification process for scope changes has lagged behind the need for CSC to provide critical on-
going operational support, The Company does not record any profit element when it defers costs associated
with such REAs/claims. The Company believes it has a legal basis for pursuing recovery of these
REAs/claims and that collection is probable with interest on the claims accruing but not being recognized.
Settlement of the amounts depends on individual circumstances, negotiations with the parties and prosecu-
tion of the claims; the Company is unable to predict the timing of resolution of these claims.

Several shareholders of the Company have filed purported derivative actions against the Company, as
nominal defendant, as well as certain of CSC’s executive officers and directors. These actions generally allege
that certain individual defendants breached their fiduciary duty to the Company by purportedly “backdat-
ing” stock options granted to CSC executives, improperly recording and accounting for allegedly backdated
stock options, producing and disseminating disclosures that improperly recorded and accounted for the
allegedly backdated options. engaging in acts of Corporate waste, and committing violations of insider
trading laws, They allege that certain of the defendants were unjustly enriched and seek to require them to
disgorge their profits. The Company and certain directors and other individuals have also been sued in a class
action proceeding alleging violations of the ERISA statute related to claims of alleged backdating of stock
options.

In addition to the matters noted above, the Company is currently party to a number of disputes which
involve or may involve litigation. The Company consults with legal counsel on those issues related to
litigation and secks inpul from other experts and advisors with respect to other matters in the ordinary course
of business. Whether any losses, damages or remedies ultimately resulting from such other matters could
reasonably have a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operation, or cash
flows will depend on a number of variables, including, for example, the timing and amount of such losses or
damages (if any) and the structure and type of any such remedies. For these reasons, it is not possible to make
reliable estimates of the amount or range of loss that could result from these other matters at this time.
Company management does not, however, presently expect any of such other matters to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Note 14—Stock Incentive Plans

Employee Incentives

The Company has four stock incentive plans which authorize the issuance of stock options, restricted
stock and other stock-based incentives to employees upon terms approved by the Compensation Committee
of the Board of Directors. The Company issues authorized but previously unissued shares upon the exercise
of stock options, the granting of restricted stock and the redemption of restricted stock uvnits (RSUs). The
Company’s standard vesting schedule for stock options and stock awards (restricted stock and RSUs) is one
third on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date, except for certain stock awards where one third
of the shares vest on each of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the grant date. Prior to April 2001, the
Company's standard vesting schedule for stock options and awards was one fifth of the shares vested on each
of the first five anniversaries of the grant date. Stock options are generally granted for a term of ten years.
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Note 14—S8tock Incentive Plans (Continued)

At March 30, 2007, 4,140,816 shares of CSC common stock were available for the grant of future stock
options, restricted stock or other stock-based incentives to employees.

Stock Options

Information concerning stock options granted under stock incentive plans during fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006
and fiscal 2005 is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining  Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Shares Price Life Value
Outstanding, at April 2,2004 ............. ... oot 18,254.993  $40.23
Granted, marketoptions ............oocvviriiinnt, 3,089,370 3995
Granted, discounted options ..................... ... 234,341 9.76
Exercised. ... ... .. i (3,052,857)  32.69
Canceled/Forfeited/Expired ......................... (699,581)  48.10
Outstanding at April 1,2005.................... .. ..., 17,826,266 40.78
Granted . ...t e 3,084,300 44.49
Exercised.. ... .o e e (2,777,353) 347
Canceled/Forfeited/Expired ......................... 883,772) 4445
Qutstanding at March 31,2006 .......................... 17,249 441 42.36 6.11 $185.3
Granted ... e e 3,164,075 55.20
Exercised. ... e (2,567,074) 3697
Canceled/Forfeited. ..ot (488,658) 47.64
Expired ... .o (297,702) 5233
Cutstanding at March 30,2007 ....... ... ... ... 17,060,082 4523 5.86 140.2
Vested and expected to vest in the future at March 30,
2007 . e s 16,845,782 45.14 5.82 139.7
Exercisable at March 30,2007 ........................... 11,557,782 43.36 4.59 114.8
March 30, 2007
Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted
Average Remyining Average
Number Exercise Contractual Number Exercise
Range of Option Exercise Price Outstanding Price Life Exercisable Price
$820-834.04 ... ..., 5,494,948  $34.29 5.52 4,766,456  $33.94
$30.10-845.61 .. ... 4,504,100 44.61 6.89 2,798,387 44.84
$45.70 - 85535 L. 5,256,639 52.37 6.43 2,267,544 49.18
$55.88-878.94 ... ... 1,804,395 59.25 2.67 1,725,395 59.31

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 was $43.1,
$48.3 and $54.6, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock optiens is based on the difference between the
fair market value of the Company’s common stock at March 30, 2007 (for options outstanding), or date of
exercise, for options exercised during the period less the applicable exercise price. The total grant date fair
value of stock options vested during fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 was $36.5, $48.0 and $51.7,
respectively.

The cash received from stock options exercised during fiscal 2007 was $94.8. During fiscal 2007 the
Company realized income tax benefits of $19.5 and an excess tax benefit of $12.1 related to the exercise of
these stock options.

As of March 30, 2007 there was $39.3 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
stock options, net of expected forfeitures. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 1.87 years,

104




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{Dollars in millions except per-share amounts)

Note 14—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)
Stock Awards

Stock awards consist of restricted stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs™). Restricted stock awards
consist of shares of common stock of the Company issued at a price of $0. Upon issuance to an empioyee,
shares of restricted stock become outstanding, receive dividends and have voting rights. The shares are
subject to forfeiture and to restrictions which limit the sale or transfer during the restriction period. The
restrictions on shares of CSC restricted stock normally lapse on the first, second and third anniversaries of the
date of issuance for awards issued in lieu of cash bonuses and on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries for
all others. The restrictions on RSUs vest on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of issuance for
those issued in lieu of cash bonuses, and on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries for all others. Upon the
vesting date, the RSUs are automatically redeemed for shares of CSC common stock and dividend
equivalents.

Information concerning stock awards granted under stock incentive plans during fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006
and fiscal 2005 is as follows:

Weighted
Number of Average
Shures Fair Value
Outstanding at Aprit 2, 2004 .. ... 30,855
Granted .. .. 302,797
Released/Redeemed ... ... . i e e
Forfeited/Canceled. . ... ... .. ... . . . . i o
Oustanding at April 1. 2005, . ... i e e 333,652
L 1 L (-« 505,928
Released/Redeemed ... .o i i e et (10,589)
Forfeited/Canceled. ... . e 33,000)
Outstanding at March 31,2006 .............. i 795991  $42.48
Granted ... . i e e 560,752 55.35
Released/Redeemed ... ... .. i e (193.584)  45.13
Forfeited/Canceled. ... ... ... . o (20,142)  45.22
Oustanding at March 30, 2007 ... ... i i e 1,143,017 48.30

As of March 30, 2007 there was $36.9 of 1otal unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
restricted stock awards and resiricted stock units. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 2.82 years.

Nonemployee Director Incentives

The Company has two stock incentive plans which authorize the issuance of stock options, restricted
stock and other stock-based incentives to nonemployee directors upon terms approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors. At March 30, 2007, 92,383 shares of CSC common stock remained available for the grant
to nonemployee directors of future RSUs or other stock-based incentives.
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Note 14—Stock Incentive Plans (Continoed)

Generally, RSU awards to nonemployee directors vest in full as of the next annual meeting of the
Company's stockholders following the date they are granted and are issued at a price of $0. Information
concerning RSUs granted to nonemployee directors during fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 is as follows:

Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Fair Valoe
Qutstanding at April 2, 2004 ... ... e e 68,817
L =1 111~ o 13,000
Redeemed. ... ... e e (12,532)
Forfeited/Canceled . . ....oo vt i ittt et e ie e teneneaareeniens -
Cutstanding at April 1, 2005. ... ... e 69,285
8 ] ¥ 11 1= n 11,400
Redeemed. ... . ..o it e i e e i e e (21,164)
Forfeited/Canceled. . ...c.oivinir e i e et et ee trenia s vnanans
Outstanding at March 31, 2006 . ..., ..ot e 59,521 %4245
18] 11 11 1= s 14,400 52.39
Redeemed. . ... i e (600)  37.81
Forfeited/Canceled. . ...t e ettt e e
Ouistanding at March 30,2007 ... ... .. i 73,321 44.44

When a holder of RSUs ceases to be a director of the Company, the RSUs are automatically redeemed
for shares of CSC common stock and dividend equivalents with respect to such shares. The number of shares
to be delivered upon redemption is equal to the number of RSUs that are vested at the time the holder ceases
to be a director. At the holder’s election the RSUs may be redeemed (i} as an entirety, upon the day the
holder ceases to be a director, or (ii) in substantially equal amounts upon the first five, ten or fifteen
anniversaries of such termination of service.

As of March 30, 2007 there was $0.3 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
nonemployee director RSUs. The cost is expected to be fully recognized as of the annual stockholders’
meeting on July 30, 2007.

Note 15—Stockholder Purchase Rights Plan

On February 18, 1998, the Company adopted a stockholder rights plan pursuant to which it issued one
right for each outstanding share of its common stock. These rights, which are attached to and trade only
together with the common stock, are not currently exercisable. On the tenth business day after any person or
entity becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of CSC’s common stock, each right (other than rights
held by the 15% stockholder, which will become void) will become exercisable to purchase, for $250, CSC
common stock having a market value of $500. The rights expire February 18, 2008, and may be redeemed by
the Board of Directors at $.0005 per right at any time before they become exercisable.
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Note 16—Segment and Geographic Information

All of the Company’s business involves operations which provide I/T outsourcing. consulting and system
integration services and other professional services. Although the Company presents estimates of revenue by
business service and geography. the Company's expenses and assets are not identified or accumulated in this
manner due to. among other reasons, cross-utilization of personnel and assets across the Company. Based on
SFAS No. 131 criteria, the Company aggregates operaling segments into two reportable segments that
consist of the North American Public Sector (formerly U.S. Federal Sector) and Global Commercial. The
Company organizes Global Commercial operating segments by geographies and vertical operations. These
operations serve large-scale corporations and orgamizations in a wide array of industries. The operating
segments provide outsourcing, systems integration, consulting, and professional services within their assigned
larget geographic or vertical market. Further, operating segments’ service offerings and clientele overlap and
the Company draws on multiple operating segments (o serve clients.

As a result, the aggregated operating segments have similar economic characteristics, products, services,
customers and methods of operation. The North American Public Sector operates principally within a
regulatory environment subject to governmental contracting and accounting requirements, including Federal
Acquisition Regulations, Cost Accounting Standards and audits by various U.S. federal agencies. The
Company utilizes uniform accounting policies across all of its operating units (see Note 1). The table below
presents financial information for the three fiscal years ended March 30, 2007, for the two reportable
segments, and for financial items that cannot be allocated to either operating segment:

North
Global American
Commercial Public
Sector Sector Corporate Total

2007

REVEIMUES. .o ottt $9.506.3  $5.350.3 $14.856.6

Earnings (loss) before special items, interest and taxes 758.0 3636 § (72.8) 1,048.8

Depreciation and amortization ... 915.0 141.2 17.4 1.073.6

ASSCES L o 9.476.6 3.685.2 568.7 13.730.5

Capital expenditures for long-lived assets .............. 837.8 74.1 40.9 9528
2006—As Restated'!

REVEMUES. ..\ttt e e $9.585.0  $5.054.0 $14.639.0

Earnings (loss) before special items, interest and taxes 665.7 3527 % (57.7) 96017

Depreciation and amortization ........................ 931.6 142.9 17.3 1.091.8

ABSEES . 83455 35118 11644 13.021.7

Capital expenditures for long-lived assets.............. 1.105.6 85.0 299 1.220.5
2005—As Restated'"

REVENUES. ... e $9.404.1 346759 $14.080.0

Earnings {loss) before special items, interest and taxes 6429 3133 § (10400 852.2

Depreciation and amortization ........................ 89.6 1423 18.1 1.051.0

A SBES L e s 8.810.2 3.169.7 623.3 12.603.2

Capital expenditures for long-lived assets.............. 1,248.0 185.1 36.2 1,469.3

(' See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Note: The capital expenditures for leng-lived assets disclosed above are reported on a continuing operations
basis and therefore may not agree to amounts disclosed in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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Note 16—Segment and Geographic Information (Continued)

A reconciliation of earnings before special items, interest and taxes to income before taxes is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
As Restated”  As RestatedV
Earnings before special items, interest and
LAKES ottt et et et e e $1,0488 $ 960.7 $ 8522
Interest expense............oovivivinineinnnn. (175.2) (120.9) (159.4)
Interestincome ........... ... ... ..., 495 40.8 16.1
Specialitems .............. ... ol (316.1) (77.3) (28.6)
Income before taxes ..................... $ 607.0 $ 803.3 $ 680.3

(D See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

The earnings before special items, interest and taxes provide useful information to the Company’s
management for assessment of the Company’s performance and results of operations. Components of the
‘ measure are utilized to determine executive compensation along with other measures.

Enterprise-wide information is provided in accordance with SFAS No. 131. Revenue by country is based
‘ on the location of the selling business unit. Property and equipment information is based on the physical

location of the asset. Geographic revenue and property and equipment, net for the three years ended March
30, 2007 is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2008
Property and Property and Property and
Equligmem, ‘ Equipment, Equlismem,
Revenues et Revenues et Revenues et
As Restated" As Restated'"
United States .......... $92232  $13928 $ 9,101.7 $1,372.2 $ 8,527.0 $1,340.3
Europe:
United Kingdom. .. 1,900.3 533.2 2,005.1 393.5 2,083.0 378.0
Other Europe ..... 2,246.0 281.1 2,171.7 244.1 2,242.7 298.3
Other International .. .. 1,487.1 332.0 1,360.5 310.3 1227.3 348.8
Total .............. $14,856.6 $2,539.1 $14.639.0 $2.320.1 $14,080.0 $2.365.4

(1) See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements.”

The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from departments and agencies of the United
States government. U.S. Federal government revenue accounted for 36%, 35% and 33% of the Company’s
revenues for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At March 30, 2007, approximately 46% of the
Company’s accounts receivable were due from the federal government. No single commercial customer
exceeded 10% of the Company’s revenues during fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 or fiscal 2005.

Note 17—Agreements with Equifax

The Company has an agreement (the Operating Agreement) with Equifax Inc. and its subsidiary,
Equifax Credit Information Services, Inc. (ECIS), pursuant to which certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
(collectively, the Bureaus) are affiliated credit bureaus of ECIS and utilize ECIS’ credit database to provide
credit reporting services from the ECIS system for resale to their customers. The Bureaus retain ownership of
their credit files stored in the ECIS system and receive revenues generated from the sale of the credit
information they contain. The Bureaus pay ECIS a fee for storing and maintaining the files and for each
report supplied by the ECIS system.

Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, the Company has an option to require ECIS to purchase CSC’s
credit reporting business (Credit Reporting Put Option). The option requires six months’ advance notice and
expires on August 1, 2013. The exercise price of the option is equal to the appraised value of the credit
reporting business.
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Note 17—Agreements with Equifax (Continued)

The Operating Agreement has a [0 year term, which will automatically be renewed indefinitely for
successive 10 year periods unless the Company gives notice of termination at least six months prior to the
expiration of any such term. In the event that on or prior to August 1, 2013 (i} the Company gives such notice
of termination and does not exercise the Credit Reporting Put Option prior to the termination of the then-
current term or (ii) there is a change in control of the Company. then ECIS has an option for 60 days
thereafter to require the Company to sell to it the credit reporting business at the Credit Reporting Put
Option exercise price.

Note 18—Subsequent Events

On April 25, 2007, the Company announced an agreement to acquire Covansys Corporation for $34.00
per share in an all-cash transaction. The transaction is valued at approximately $1.3 billion. The agreement
was approved by the Board of Directors of CSC. The Covansys Board of Directors has approved the
agreement and recommends that Covansys stockholders approve the merger. The transaction is expected to
be completed during the second quarter of CSC’s fiscal year 2008. Covansys is an information technology
services company specializing in industry-specific solutions, strategic outsourcing and integration services.
Covansys is known for strategic outsourcing and technology solutions in the healthcare, financial services.
retail and distribution, manufacturing, telecommunications and high-tech industries. The acquisition of
Covansys will increase the Company’s delivery capabilities in India, and accelerate development of strategic
offshore offerings.
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Fiscal 2007

1st Quarter'®™®

2nd Quarter® 3rd Quarter'®

4th Quarter'?!

As Restated!"

As Restated!! As Restated"

REVENUES ..ottt nee i $3.561.1 $3,609.1 $3.640.6 $4,045.8
Cost of services (excluding depreciation and
amortization) 2.883.1 28964 2,903.1 31353
Income from continuing operations before
TAXES . ottt (19.7) 140.5 168.0 318.1
Income from continuing operations........... (59.2) 88.7 109.6 249.7
Netlncome ....... ..o, (59.2) 88.7 109.6 2497
Earnings per common share:
Basic.. ... $ (032) $ o052 § 064 ! 144
Diluted ..o 3 (0.31) $ 051 § o062 $ 142
Fiscal 2006
In millions except per-share amounts* 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated'"
ANENE) (34 )
REVENUES ..ttt $3,587.1 $3.579.2 $3.581.1 $3.801.7
Cost of services (excluding depreciation and
amortization} 2,926.7 2,878.0 2,851.4 3.067.9
Income from continuing operations before
BAXES . o e 161.3 140.8 2324 268.7
Income from continuing operations........... 92.6 8.9 136.5 163.1
Discontinued operations, net of taxes......... 229 384
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of taxes (4.3)
Netlncome .............. ... .cooviin... 1155 78.9 174.9 158.8
Earnings per common share:
Continuing operations .................. $ 050 § 043 $§ 073 3 087
Discontinued operations, net of taxes .... 0.12 0.21
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of taxes ................. (0.02)
Basic*. ... $ 062 § 043 $ 094 $ 085
Continuing operations .................. $ 049 $ 042 $ 073 £ .086
Discontinued operations. net of taxes .... 0.12 0.20
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle. net of taxes ................. _ {0.02)
Diluted* .............. ... o $ 0862 $ 042 $ 093 $ 084

* Amounts may not add as a result of rounding.

A discussion of “Special Items” is included in Note 7 and a discussion of discontinued operations and

the gain on sale of discontinued operations is included in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

See Note 2, “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Includes pre-tax restructuring charges of $215.0, $40.2, $42.0, and $36.2 million for the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, and
4th quarters, respectively.

Includes a pre-tax $18.3 million gain from the redemption of DynCorp International preferred stock
recorded during the 1st quarter of fiscal 2007.

Includes a pre-tax $52.0, and $25.2 million Nortel networks impairment charge for the 2nd and 4th
quarters, respectively during fiscal 2006,

Includes a pre-tax realized gain of $22.9 million attributed 1o the exchange of the Company’s CSC
Health Plan Solutions (HPS) business of DST Systems, Inc. in discontinued operations, which shares
were valued at $324.6 million and included in treasury stock during 1st quarter of fiscal 2006.
Includes a pre-tax $65.5 million gain on the sale of DynCorp International (DI} in discontinued
operations during the 3rd quarter of fiscal 2006,
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The following table presents the effects of the adjustments made to the Company’s previously reported
consolidated condensed statements of income for the three months ended July 1, 2005:

First Quarter Ended July 1, 2005

Adjustments
Revenue
As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options Income Tax  Other  As Restated
Revenues ........................ $3,582.5 $ 46 $3.587.1
Costs of services {excludes
depreciation and amortization). .. 2.926.7 2.926.7

Selling, general and administrative 205.1 $03 $ 1.0 206.4

Depreciation and amortization . ... . 269.7 269.7

Interest expense .................. 241 4.2 28.3

Interest income ................... (5.3) (5.3)

Special items .....................

Total costs and expenses........... 3.420.3 3 5.2 3425.8

Income before taxes............... 162.2 4.6 (0.3) (5.2} 1613

Taxesonincome .................. 53.5 1.8 (0.1} 13.5 68.7

Income from continuing operations 108.7 2.8 0.2) (18.7) 92.6

Discontinued operations, net of

faxes. . ... 229 229

Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of taxes

Nelifcome .. .oovviii s $ 1316 52 $(0.2) $(13.7) $ 1155

Earnings per share:

Continuing operations ........ $ 039 $0.02 $(0.10) $ 030
Discontinued operations ...... 0.12 0.12
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of

1AXeS ...uiiii . _

Basic*....... ... P 07 $0.02 $(0.10) § 0.62
Continuing operations ........ $ 0.58 $0.01 $(0.10) $ 049
Discontinued operations ...... 0.12 0.12
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of
taxes ...l _ _
Diluted* .. .................... ... $ 070 0.01 $(0.10) I 062

*  Amounts may nol add as a result of rounding.
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: The following table presents the effects of the adjustments made to the Company’s previously reported
i consolidated condensed statements of income for the three months ended September 30, 2005: .
. I
1 Second Quarter Ended September 30, 2005
! Adjustments
! Revenue
t As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options  Income Tax  Other  As Restated
|
i Revenues ..............ccoeevvinns $3.572.6 $ 6.6 $3,579.2 .
' Costs of services (excludes
depreciation and amortization). .. 2,876.7 $ 1.3 2,878.0
Selling, general and administrative 207.8 38 $ 10 212.6
Depreciation and amortization .. ... 274.7 274.7
Interest expense .................. 259 4.2 30.1
! Interestincome ...............o.n (9.0) (9.0)
| Specialitems ............. .. 52.0 52.0
| Total costs and expenses........... 3.428.1 5.1 5.2 3,4384
|
‘ income before taxes............... 144.5 6.6 .1 (5.2) 140.8
Taxes on income ........oveuuenn.. 45.0 2.6 _{7 16.0 61.9
; ’ Income from continuing operations 99.5 4.0 3.4) (21.2) 78.9
| Discontinued operations, nct of
B BAXES . .o
| 4 Cumulative effect of change in
B accounting principle, net of taxes
: Net income ....................... § 995 $ 40 $ (3.4) $(21.2) § 789
| Earnings per share: |
{ Continuing operations ........ $ 054 $0.02 $(0.02) $(0.11) $ 043
l Discontinued operations ...... |
Cumulative effect of change in
! accounting principle, net of
! LAXES v\t vreeeeaieaeen
o Basic® . . ... e $ 054 $0.02 $(0.02) $(0.11) § 043
|
B Continuing operations ........ $ 053 $0.02 $(0.02) $(0.11) $ 042
i Discontinued operations ......
| Cumulative effect of change in
' accounting principle, net of
TAXES o'vvreinie i _
| Diluted® ................ ... $ 053 $0.02 $(0.02) ${0.11) § 042

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding.
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The following table presents the effects of the adjustments made to the Company’s previously reported
consolidated condensed statements of income for the three months ended December 30, 2005:

Third Quarter Ended December 30, 2005

Adjustments
Revenue
As Reported  Recopnition  Stock Options  Income Tux  Other  As Restated
Revenues ........................ $3577.0 $41 - $3.581.1
Costs of services (excludes
depreciation and amortization). .. 2.850.0 3 14 28514
Selling. general and administrative 207.7 5.7 ¥ 10 2144
Depreciation and amortization . . ... 2679 2679
Interest expense .................. 24.6 4.2 288
Interest income ................... (13.8) {13.8)
Special items . ........ ... Ll o -
Total costs and expenses........... 33364 7.1 52 3.348.7
Income before taxes............... 240.6 4.1 (7.1} {5.2) 2324
Taxesonincome .................. 755 16 _(1.4) 20.2 95.9
Income from continuing operations 165.1 25 (5.7} (25.4) 136.5
Discontinued operations, net of
LaXES . ottt e 38.4 38.4
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of taxes
Netincome ....................... $ 2035 $25 $ (57 $(25.4) $ 1749
Earnings per share:
Continuing operations ........ $ 089 $0.01 $(0.03) $(0.14) $ 073
Discontinued operations ...... 0.21 0.21
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of
LAXES ... .l
Basic*. ... . $§ L10 $0.01 $(0.03) $(0.14) $ 094
Continuing operations ........ $ 088 $0.01 $(0.03) $(0.13) $ 073
Discontinued operations ...... 0.20 0.20
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of
LAXES ..vvin i — _ _
Diluted* ......................... § 108 $0.01 $(0.03) $(0.13) $ 093

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding.
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The following table presents the effects of the adjustments made to the Company’s previously reported
consolidated condensed statements of income for the three months ended March 31, 2006:

Fourth Quarter Ended March 31, 2006

Adjustments
Revenue
As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options Income Tax  Other  As Restated
Revenues ..........ooovieenao... $3,883.5 $82 $3.891.7
Costs of services (excludes
depreciation and amortization). . .. 3,066.4 $ 16 $(0.1) 3,067.9
Selling, general and administrative .. 221.6 6.6 $ 10 229.2
Depreciation and amortization ... ... 2795 279.5
Interest expense ................... 29.6 42 338
Interest income .................... (12.7) (12.7)
Specialitems ......... ... __ 253 _ 25.3
Total costs and expenses............ 3,609.7 8.2 52 (0.1) 3,623.0
Income before taxes................ 2738 8.2 (8.2) (5.2) 0.1 268.7
Taxes on iNCOME ......c.vvuunnnn.n. 70.1 3.2 (2.2) 34.5 105.6
Income from continuing operations. . 203.7 5.0 (6.0} (39.7) 01 163.1
Discontinued operations, net of taxes
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of taxes. . (4.3) (4.3)
Netincome......ocovvvennnaennes $ 1994 $50 $ (60) $(39.7) $0.1 $ 1588
Earnings per share: ‘
Continuing operations ......... $ Lo08 $0.03 $(0.03) $(0.21) § o087
Discontinued operations .......
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of
TAXES o\ vinrrerrviaennennnen (.02) (.02)
Basic®. ... $§ 107 $0.03 $(0.03) $(0.21) $ 085
Continuing operations ......... $ Lo08 $0.03 $(0.03) $(0.21) $ 086
Discontinued operations .......
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of r
TAXES . ..ovvineiiieeninieans __(02) _ (.02)
Diluted* ..............ccoeiiinn $ 105 0.03 $(0.03) $(0.21) I 084

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding.

114




The following table presents the effects of the adjustments made to the Company’s previously reported
consolidated condensed statements of income for the three months ended June 30, 2006:

First Quarter Ended June 30, 2006

Adjustments
Revenne
As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options  Income Tax  Other  As Resiated
Revenues ........................ $3,556.2 §49 $3.561.1
Costs of services (excludes
depreciation and amortization). . . 2,883.3 $(0.2) 2.883.1

Selling, general and administrative 2276 § 05 228.1

Depreciation and amortization .. .., 260.9 260.9

Interest expense ................ .. 30.7 7.1 378

Interest income ................... (26.0) (26.0)

Special items ..................... 196.9 196.9

Total costs and expenses........... 35734 (0.2) 7.6 3.580.8

(Loss) income before taxes ........ (17.2) 49 02 (7.6) (19.7)

Taxesonincome .................. 38.1 1.9 0.1 {0.6) 39.5

(Loss) income from continuing

OpPerations. . ......c..ovvivieann.. (55.3) 3.0 0.1 (7.0) (59.2)

Discontinued operations. net of

TAXEeS . ... _ . .
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of taxes

Net (loss) income ................. ¥ (55.3) $ 3.0 $ 01 $ (0.0 $ (59.2)

Earnings per share:

Continuing operations ........ 5 (0.29) $0.02 ($ 0.04) $ (032)
Discontinued operations ... ...
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of

L - .

Basic*.............ooooocoe § (0.29) $0.02 (3 0.04) § (0.32)
Continuing operations ........ § (0.29) $0.02 ($ 0.04) $ (0.31)
Discontinued operations ......

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of
Taxes ......oiieniiiiiann, - . .
Diluted* ... ... ... ... $ (0.29) $0.02 ($ 0.04) $ (0.3

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding.
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The following table presents the effects of the adjustments made to the Company’s previously reported

consolidated condensed statements of income for the three months ended September 29, 2006:

Second Quarter Ended September 29, 2006

Adjustments
Revenue
As Reported  Recognition Stock Options Income Tax  Other  As Restated
REVENUES ....ovoieveeieneannnnns $3,605.2 $ 3.9 $3,609.1
Costs of services (excludes
depreciation and amortization). . . 2,896.4 2,896.4

Selling, general and administrative 2265 $ 05 227.0

Depreciation and amortization ... .. 266.3 266.3

Interest expense .................. 383 71 454

Interest income ..........ccovuenn, (7.5 (7.5)

Specialitems ..................... 41.0 41.0

Total costs and expenses........... 3,461.0 7.6 $3,468.6

Income before taxes............... 144.2 39 (7.6) 140.5

Taxes on income .................. 50.8 15 (0.5) 51.8

(Loss) income from continuing

operations...........oiiaen... 934 24 (7.1) 88.7

Discontinued operations, net of

17101 S _ L
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of taxes

Net (loss) income ................. $ 934 $24 $ (7.1 $ 887

Earnings per share:

Continuing operations ........ $ 054 $0.01 $(0.04) $ 052
Discontinued operations ......
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of

L£: -7 _

Basic*.....o..iiiii i $ 054 $0.01 $(0.04) $ 052
Continuing operations ........ $ 053 $0.01 $(0.04) $ 051
Discontinued operations ......

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of
taxes ............c.cooeiiin.
Diluted* ................ocviiins $ 053 $0.01 $(0.04) §f 051

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding.
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The following table presents the effects of the adjusiments made to the Company’s previously reported
consolidated condensed statements of income for the three months ended December 29, 2006:

Revenues ..................... ...
Costs of services (excludes
depreciation and amortization). ..
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization . .. ..
Interest expense ..................
Interest income ...................
Special items ............. ... ...,

Total costs and expenses...........

Income before taxes...............
Taxesonincome ..................
(Loss) income from continuing
OPEratIoNS. . o vvv vt iann..
Discontinued operations, net of
TAXES . .ot

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of taxes

Net (loss) income .................

Earnings per share:
Continuing operations ........
Discontinued operations . ... ..

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of
[£:3

Continuing operations ........
Discontinued operations ... ...

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of
TAXES . vvntvnirer s

Diluted* .........................

Third Quarter Ended December 249, 2006

*  Amounts may not add as a result of rounding,
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Adjustments
Revenue

As Reported Recognition  Stock Options  Income Tax  Other  As Restated
$3.,636.9 § 37 $3.640.6
2,903.1 2.903.1
227.9 3 3 2284
262.0 262.0
384 7.1 45.5
{8.4) (8.4)
42.0 42.0
3465.0 7.6 3.472.6
171.9 37 (7.6) 168.0
57.1 1.5 (0.2) 58.4
1148 2.2 (7.4) 109.6

$ 1148 §22 $ (74) $ 109.6
$ 0467 $0.01 $(0.04) § 064
$ 067 $0.01 $(0.04) § 064
$ 065 $0.01 $(0.04) § 062
$ 065 $0.01 $(0.04) $  0.62
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement to the Company’s consolidated condensed

balance sheet as of July 1, 2005:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents......
Receivables ...................
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets ......... ...,
Total current assets ........

Property and equipment, net ...
Qutsourcing contract costs, net
Software,net ..................

Goodwill, net of accumulated
amortization ................

Otherassets ...................

Total assets ...............

LIABILITIES

Short-term debt and current
maturities of long-term debt ..

Accounts payable..............
Accrued payroll and related costs
Other accrued expenses ........
Deferred revenue ..............
Fegieral, state, and foreign
income taxes ................

Total current liabilities . . . ..

Long-term debt, net ...........
Other long-term liabilities .... ..

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common stock, par value $1.00
per share; authorized
750,000,000 shares; issued
192398328 ... .............

Additional paid-in capital ......

Earnings retained for use in
business...............oenn.

Accumulated other
comprehenswe mcome .......

Less common stock in treasury,
at cost, 7,652,138 shares ......

Unearned restricted stock ......
Total stockholders’ equity ..

Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity .....

July 1, 2005
Adjustments
Revenue

As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options  Income Tax  Other  As Restated
$ 4273 $ 4273
3,7229 $(18.7) 3,704.2
1,157.8 1,157.8
5,308.0 (18.7) 5,289.3
2,368.7 2,368.7
1,288.5 1,288.5
4594 459.4
22972 2,291.2
4752 (32.7) $ 205 $§ 40 467.0
$12,197.0 $(51.4) $ 20.5 $ 40 $12,170.1
3 675 ) 67.5
692.3 692.3
716.8 $1.2 718.0
1,296.1 $ 673 1,363.4
600.1 $ 71 607.2
403.2 (23.1) 89.3 (.5) 468.9
3,776.0 (16.0) 156.6 0.7 3,917.3
1,301.6 1,301.6
924.4 283 952.7
192.4 192.4
1,699.7 65.6 26) 17627
4,539.7 (354) (45.1) (180.9) 1.9 4,280.2
140.6 140.6
6,572.4 (35.4) 20.5 (180.9)  (0.7) 63759

(347.0) (347.0)

(30.4) (30.4)
6,195.0 {35.4) 20.5 (180.9) (0.7) 5,998.5
$12.197.0 $(51.4) $ 20.5 $§ 40 $12,170.1
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement to the Company’s consolidated condensed
balance sheet as of September 30, 2005:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ... ...
Receivables ...................
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets ...............
Total current assets ........

Property and equipment, net ...
Qutsourcing contract costs, net
Software, net ..................

Goodwill, net of accumulated
amortization ................

Otherassets...................
Total assets ...............

LIABILITIES

Short-term debt and current
maturities of long-term debt . .

Accounts pavable ..............
Accrued payroll and related costs
Other accrued expenses ........
Deferred revenue..............
Federal, state, and foreign
Income taxes ................

Total current liabitities . .. ..

Long-term debt, net ...........
Other long-term liabilities . .. ...

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common stock, par value $1.00
per share; authorized
750,000,000 shares; issued
192631751, vviiiien

Additional paid-in capital ......

Earnings retained for use in
business........... .00

Accumulated other
comprehensive income .......

Less common stock in treasury,
at cost, 7,652,138 shares ......

Unearned restricted stock ... ...
Total stockholders’ equity . .

Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity .....

September 30, 2005

Adjustments

Revenue
As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options  Income Tax  Other

As Restated

$ 4046 §  404.6
3,724.1 $(16.5) 3,707.6
1,305.1 1,305.1
5433.8 (16.5) 5417.3
2,359.6 2,359.6
1,196.7 1.196.7
467.1 467.1
2,289.3 2.289.3
455.3 (28.9) §221 $§ 36 452.1
$12,201.8 $(45.4) 221 $ 36 $12,182.1
$ 721 $ 721
637.1 637.1
625.6 §1.2 626.8
1.268.6 $ 725 1,341.1
629.4 $ 65 6359
406.3 (20.5) 104.2 (0.5) 489.5
3,639.1 (14.0) 176.7 0.7 3,802.5
1,301.3 1301.3
979.1 29.0 1,008.1
192.6 192.6
1,708.3 70.6 (2.6) 1,776.3
4,639.2 (31.4) (48.5) (202.1) 1.9 4,359.1
117.6 117.6
6,657.7 (31.4) 22.1 (202.1) (0.7) 6.445.6
(347.0) (347.0)
(28.4) R {(28.4)
6,282.3 (31.4) 2.1 (202.1) (0.7) 6,070.2
$12,201.8 $(45.4) $ 221 $ 36 $12,182.1
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement to the Company’s consolidated condensed
balance sheet as of December 30, 2005:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents .. ....
Receivables ...................
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets ...............
Total current assets ........

Property and equipment, net . ..
Outsourcing contract costs, net
Software,net ..................

Goodwill, net of accumulated
amortization ................

Otherassets...................

Total assets ...............

LIABILITIES

Short-term debt and current
maturities of long-term debt . .

Accounts payable..............
Accrued payroll and related costs
Other accrued expenses ........
Deferred revenue .. ............
Federal, state, and foreign
income taxes ................

Total current liabilities . . ...

Long-term debt, net ...........
Other long-term Habilities ......

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common stock, par value $1.00
per share: authorized
750,000,000 shares; issued
193.865395. ...l

Additional paid-in capital ......

Earnings retained for use in
business.....................

Accumulated other
comprehensive income . ......

Less common stock in treasury,
at cost, 7,652,657 shares ......

Unearned restricted stock ......
Total stockholders’ equity . .

Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity .. ...

December 30, 2005
Adjustments
Revenue
As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options Income Tax Other  As Restated

$ 7732 ¥ 7732
3,714.9 $(16.0) 3,698.9
1,423.0 1,423.0
5911.1 {16.0) 5,895.1
2,355.1 2,355.1
1,161.2 1,161.2
458.7 458.7
22932 2,293.2
444.5 (26.0) 23.3 $ 238 444.6
$12,623.8 $(42.0) 3.3 $ 28 $12,607.9
$ 1153 $ 1153
615.3 615.3
6478 $1.2 649.0
1,422.3 $ 779 1,500.2
647.1 $ 58 652.9
494.2 (18.9) 122.4 {0.5) 597.2
3,942.0 (13.1) 200.3 0.7 4,129.9
1.321.6 1,321.6
851.9 30.0 881.9
193.9 193.9
1,756.0 71.5 (2.6) 1,830.9
48427 (28.9) (54.2) (227.5) 1.9 4,534.0
88.8 88.8
6,881.4 (28.9) 233 (227.5) (0.7) 6,647.6
(347.1) (347.1)
(26.0) - (26.0)
6,508.3 {28.9) 233 (227.5) (0.7) 6,274.5
$12,623.8 $(42.0) $ 233 $ 28 $12,607.9
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement to the Company’s consolidated condensed

balance sheet as of June 30, 2006:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents . .. ...
Receivables ...................
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets ...............
Total current assets . ... ...

Property and equipment, net ...
Outsourcing contract costs, net
Software.net ..................

Goodwill, net of accumulated
amortization ................

Otherassets ...................

Total assets ...............

LIABILITIES

Short-term debt and current
maturities of long-term debt ..

Accounts payable ..............
Accrued payroll and related costs
Other accrued expenses ........
Deferred revenue . .............
Federal, state, and foreign
income taxes ................

Total current hahilities .. ...

Long-term debt. net ...........
Other long-term labilities . ... ..

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock. par value $1.00
per share; authorized
750,000,000 shares; issued
186459540, .................

Additional paid-in capital ......

Earnings retained for use in
business.....................

Accumulated other
comprehensive income .......

Less common stock in treasury,
at cost, 7,689.335 shares ......

Unearned restricted stock ......
Total stockholders’ equity . .

Total liabilities and
stockholders” equity .. ...

June M, 2006
Adjustments
Revenue
As Reported  Recognition  Stock Options  Income Tax  Other  As Restated
$ 1.008.0 $ 1.008.0
4,012.9 $(11.9} 4,001.0
1,250.2 1,250.2
6,271.1 (11.9) 6.259.2
23929 2,392.9
1,116.6 1,116.6
455.8 455.8
23395 2.339.5
465.1 (18.3) $ 253 $ 42 476.3
$13,041.0 $(30.2) $253 $ 42 $13,040.3
$ Be6s8 $ 86.8
597.5 597.5
750.1 $ L1 751.2
1,933.6 $ 906 2.024.2
578.6 § 47 583.3
612.4 (13.8) $ 0.4 156.6 (0.5) 755.1
4,559.0 (9.1) 0.4 247.2 0.6 4,798.1
1,397.3 1,397.3
737.1 312 768.3
186.5 186.5
1,753.3 85.0 (2.7} 1.835.6
4.581.6 (21.1) (60.1) (274.2) 2.1 42283
1753 1753
6.696.7 (21.1) 249 (274.2) (0.6) 6.425.7
(349.1) (349.1)
6,347.6 (21.1) 24.9 (274.2) (0.6) 6.076.6
$13,041.0 $(30.2) $253 $ 42 $13.,040.3
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement to the Company’s consolidated condensed
balance sheet as of September 29, 2006:

September 29, 2006

Adjustments
Revenue
As Reported  Recognition Income Tax Other As Restated
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ..................... $ 703.2 $ 7032
Receivables ............ ..o ines 39229 $(10.6) 39123
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. .... 1,388.7 1,388.7
Total current assets . .........covvveeennnn.. 6.014.8 {10.6) 6,004.2
Property and equipment, net .................. 2,404.5 2,404.5
Qutsourcing contract costs, net ................ 1,067.0 1,067.0
Software, net ... ... i 456.0 456.0
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization .. ... 2,369.6 2,369.6
Other ASSELS .. vttt v e e e 484.9 {16.2) $ 7.0 475.7
Total @88€15 . ..ottt ireeie i $12,796.8 $(26.8) $ 70 $12.777.0
LIABILITIES

Short-term debt and current maturities of long-
termdebt ... ... $ 6975 3 6975
Accounts payable.......... ... . oo 639.5 639.5
Accrued payroll and related costs .............. 611.3 $11 6124
Other accrued expenses ....................... 14155 $ 982 1,513.7
Deferredrevenue ., .......... ..o, 567.1 $ 41 571.2
Federal, state, and foreign income taxes ........ 588.1 (12.2) 159.0 {0.5) 734 4
Total current liabilities .. .................. 4.519.0 {8.1) 257.2 0.6 4,768.7
Long-termdebt,net .......................... 1,425.5 1,425.5
Other long-term liabilities . .................... 796.9 311 828.0

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common stock, par value $1.00 per share;
authorized 750,000,000 shares; issued

186459540, . ... ... i 179.7 179.7
Additional paid-in capital .................. .. 1,800.9 27 1,798.2
Earnings retained for use in business ........... 4,189.2 (18.7) (281.3) 2.1 3,891.3
Accumulated other comprehensive income ... .. 236.6 236.6

6,406.4 (18.7) (281.3) (0.6) 6,105.8
Less common stock in treasury, at cost, 7,689,333

Shares ... (351.0) (351.0)
Unearned restricted stock ..............o0cvt.

Total stockholders’ equity ................. 6,055.4 (18.7) (281.3) (0.6) 5,754.8
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ... .. $12,796.8 $(26.8) § 70 $12,777.0
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The following table presents the effects of the restatement to the Company’s consolidated condensed

balance sheet as of December 29, 2006:

[ ASSETS

' Cash and cash equivalents . ....................
Receivables ....... ... ...l
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ... ..

Total current assets .........ccoeeennneann.

Property and equipment, net ..................
Qutsourcing contract costs, net ................
Software, net .. ... s
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization .. ...
Other a8selS . ...ttt

Total assels .. ... e

LIABILITIES

Short-term debt and current maturities of long-
termdebt ...

Accounts payable.......... ... .. oo
Accrued payroll and related costs ..............
Other accrued eXpenses ..........ovvivene.nn
Deferred revenue ...l
Federal. state, and loreign income taxes ........

Total current liabilities ....................

Long-termdebt, net ............. .. ... .. ...
Other long-term hlabilities .....................

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock, par value $1.00 per share:
authorized 750,000,000 shares; issued
186,459,540, . . o

Additional paid-in capital ............. .. ...
Earnings retained for use in business ...........
Accumulated other comprehensive income .. ...

Less common stock in treasury, at cost, 7,689,335
Shares ... .. e

Unearned restricted stock .....................
Total stockholders’ equity .................
Total liabilities and stockholders™ equity . . ..

December 29, 2006

Adjustments
Revenue

As Reported  Recognition Income Tax Other  As Restated
§ 7260 $ 7260
3.960.7 $ (9.6) 3.951.1
1.487.2 1.487.2
6,173.9 (9.6 6.164.3
24394 24394
1,047.4 1,047.4
465.5 465.5
2,491.6 2.491.6
502.9 (14.2) $ 99 498.6
$13,120.7 $(23.8) $ 99 $13.106.8
§ 5871 $ 5871
552.9 552.9
665.1 $11 666.2
1,605.6 £1058 1.711.4
589.0 $ 36 592.6
617.0 (10.9) 161.7 {0.5) 767.3
4,616.7 (7.3) 2675 0.6 48715
14218 1.421.8
804.8 311 8359
180.5 180.5
1,844.8 (2.6) 1.842.2
4.304.1 (16.5) (288.7) 2.0 4,000.9
301.5 301.5
6.630.9 (16.5) (288.7) (0.6) 6.325.1
{353.5) (353.5)
6,277.4 (16.5) (288.7) (0.6} 5971.6
$13,120.7 $(23.8) £ 99 $13.106.8
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Three Years Ended March 30, 2007
(Dollars in Millions)

Additions
Batance, Charged to Balance,

Beginning of Cost and End of
In millions %’eriof Expenses Other(l) Deductions Period
Year ended March 30, 2007
Allowance for doubtful receivables .............. $68.4 $ 5.5 $.1 $16.0 $58.0
Year ended March 31, 2006
Allowance for doubtful receivables .............. 531 28.7 2.5 15.9 68.4
Year ended April 1, 2005
Allowance for doubtful receivables .............. 49.4 10.7 5.8 12.8 53.1

(1) Includes balances from acquisitions, changes in balances due to foreign currency exchange rates and

recovery of prior-year charges.
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PART 11 {Continued)

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

“Disclosure controls and procedures™ arc the controls and other procedures of an issuer that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the issuer in the reports filed or submitted by
it under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) is recorded. processed. summa-
rized and reported. within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
forms. “*Disclosure controls and procedures™ include. without limitation. controls and procedures designed
to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in its Exchange Act reports is accumulated
and communicated to the issuer’s management, including its principal executive and financial officers, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company has completed the investigation of its stock option grant practices. as reported by the
Company in the Form 8-K filed February 28, 2007 with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
investigation resulted in adjustments to the Company’s previously issued financial statements (refer to Note 2
to the consolidated financial statements included herein). The Company has concluded these adjusiments
resulted from control deficiencies which existed in prior years over the stock option grant process, but which
the Company believes were remediated subsequent to December 29. 2006,

Under the direction of the Company's Chief Exccutive Officer and Chiel Financial Officer. the
Company has evaluated the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of March 30. 2007. We have
identified the following material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting: there are
insufficient knowledgeable and competent personnel in certain key positions within the tax function and
processes and procedures over accounting for income taxes are not adequate for the Company’s size and
complexity. This material weakness and the resulting restatement are further discussed in the Management
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
As a result of this material weakness, the Company has concluded that its disclosure controls and procedures
were not effective as of March 30, 2007, Sce “Management Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting™ and “*Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm™ on pages 4% and 50 through 52
of this Annual Repert on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Controls

“Internal controls over financial reporting™ is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
issuer’s principal executive and financial officers. and effected by the issuer’s board of directors, manage-
ment, and other personnel. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the issuer:

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permit preparation
of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and
that receipts and expenditures of the issuer are being made only in accordance with authorization of
managemenl and directors of the issuer: and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion. use or disposition of the issuer's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statcments.

There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter
ended March 30, 2007, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likcly to materially affect. the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. The Company has initiated remediation measures to address the
material weakness over the accounting for income taxes. These measures include recruitment of exceutive
tax personnel, re-evaluation of the overall organization structure and reassignment of responsibilitics within
the function, recruitment of additional staff personnel with tax. accounting and financial reporting cxpertise
and improvement in the tax provision process and the underlying procedures and internal controls.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.




PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Item 11. Executive Compensation

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Item 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information regarding executive officers of the Company is included in Part 1. For the other information
called for by Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 reference is made to the sections entitled “Stock Ownership,”
“Proposal 1—Election of Directors’ and “Executive Compensation” in the Registrant’s definitive Proxy
Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days after March 30, 2007. Such sections are incorporated herein by reference in their
entirety, except for the material included in the “Executive Compensation” section under the captions
“Compensation Committee Report” and “Stock Performance.”
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PART IV

Item 15, Exhibits, and Financial Statement Schedule

(1) and (2) Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

These documents are included in the response to Item 8 of this report. See the index on page 48.

(3) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed with this report:

Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

2.1

31

32

33
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10,6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 25, 2007, by and among Computer Sciences
Corporation, Surfside Acquisition Corp. and Covansys Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 30, 2007)

Restated Articles of Incorporation filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on June 11, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended March 28, 2003)

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 3, 2003)

Bylaws, amended and restated effective February 23, 2007

1998 Stock Incentive Plan* (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 3, 1998)

2001 Stock Incentive Plan* (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on August 13, 2001)

Schedule to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan for United Kingdom personnel* (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Annual Report on form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended April 2, 2004)

2004 Incentive Plan* (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on August 9, 2004)

Form of Stock Option Agreement for employees* (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 1, 2005)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreements for employees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 1,
2005)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreements for employees* (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
December 30, 2005)

Annual Management Incentive Plan, effective April 2, 1983* (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit X(i) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March
30, 1984)

Form FY2006 Annual Management Incentive Plan 1 Worksheet* (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
July 1, 2005)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, amended and restated effective February 14, 2006*
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated February 17, 2006)

Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated effective January 1, 2005* (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K dated December 6, 2005)

Severance Plan for Senior Management and Key Employees, amended and restated effective
January 1,2005* (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Report on Form
8-K dated December 6, 2005)
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Exhibit

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

21
23
311
31.2
321
32.2

*

Severance Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective February 2, 1998* (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended December 26, 1997)

Employment Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective May 1, 1999* (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended April 2, 1999)

Amendment of Employment Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective February 3, 2003*
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended December 27, 2002)

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective December 5,
2005* (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated December 6, 2005)

Retirement Agreement with Van B. Honeycutt, effective May 21, 2007* (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 25, 2007)
Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1995)
Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
X(xxvi) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 1, 1988)
1997 Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A
10 the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on August 11,
1997)

2006 Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan {incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on July 31, 2006
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.18 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 1,
2005)

Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Unit Agreement with directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 6,
2005)

Rights Agreement dated February 18, 1998, as amended and restated effective February 7,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 28, 2005)

Credit Agreement dated as of August 23, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 29,
2006)

Accelerated Share Repurchase Transaction—VWAP Pricing Agreement and Supplemental
confirmation dated June 29, 2006 between Goldman, Sachs & Co. and the Company(!
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2006).

Collared Accelerated Share Repurchase Transaction Agreement and Supplemental
confirmation dated June 29, 2006 between Goldman, Sachs & Co. and the Company.!
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2006).

Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Sectton 302 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

Section 302 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Section 906 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Section 906 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement

(1) Confidential treatment has been requested pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, as amended, for portions of this exhibit that contain confidential commercial and financial
information.
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SIGNATURES AND CERTIFICATIONS

Pursvant to the requircments ol Scction 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

CoMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Daited: June 13. 2007
By: s MICHAEL W. LAPHEN

Michael W, Laphen,
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/51 MICHAEL W. LAPHEN Chief Executive Officer June 13, 2007
Michael W. Luphen (Principal Executive Officer)

/st MicHAEL E. KEANE Vice President, Chief Financial Officer June 13, 2007
Michael E. Keane (Principal Financial Officer)

i DonaLD G. DEBUCK Vice President and Controller June 13, 2007
Donuld G. DeBuck (Principal Accounting Officer)

5/ VanN B. Honeycurt Chairman June 13, 2007

¥Yan B. Honeycutt

/s IRVING W. BAILEY, 1] Director June 13, 2007
Irving W. Bailey, 11

/st DaviD J. BARRAM Director June 13, 2007
David J. Barram

/51 STEPHEN L. BAUM Director June 13, 2007
Stephen L. Baum

5/ RODNEY F. CHASE Director June 13, 2007
Rodney F. Chase

5t F. WARREN MCFARLAN Director June 13, 2007
F. Warren McFarlan

/st THOMAS H. PATRICK Director June 13, 2007
Thomas H. Patrick
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COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates

As of March 30, 2007

Name

AdvanceMed Corporation

Alliance-One Services. Inc.

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

ASL Automated Services {Thailand) Ltd.
Automated Systems {(HK) Limited

Beijing CSA Computer Sciences Technology Company Limited

Century Capital Services Corporation

Century Corporation

Century Credit Corparation

Century Leasing Corporation

Computer Sciences Canada Inc.

Computer Sciences Corporation India Private Limited
Computer Sciences Corporation CSCEcuador 5.A.
Computer Sciences Espaiia, 5.A.

Computer Sciences Parsons L.L.C.

Computer Sciences Raytheon (Partnership)
Computer Systems Advisers (M) Bhd

Continental Grand, Limited Partnership

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

CSA Automated Private Limited

CSA MSC Sdn Bhd

CSA Private Limited

CSA (PRC) Company Limited

CSC Airline Solutions A/S

CSC Airline Solutions Denmark A/S

CSC Airline Solutions Norway AS

CSC Airline Solutions Sweden AB

CSC Arabia Ltd.

CSC Applied Technologies LLC

CSC Australia Finance Pty Limited

CSC Australia Pty. Limited

CSC Business Systems Limited

CSC Computer Sciences Argentina S.R.L.

CSC Computer Sciences B.V.

CSC Computer Sciences Colombia Lida.

CSC Computer Sciences Consulting Austria GmbH
CSC Computer Sciences Corporation Chile Limitada

CSC Computer Sciences Corporation {Costa Rica), 5.A.

CSC Computer Sciences do Brasil Ltda.

CSC Computer Sciences Finland OY

CSC Computer Sciences HK Limited

CSC Computer Sciences Ireland Limited

CSC Computer Sciences ltalia S.p.A.

CSC Computer Sciences Japan Co., Ltd

CSC Computer Sciences Korea YH

CSC Computer Sciences Limited

CSC Computer Sciences Nicaragua, Sociedad Anomia
CSC Computer Sciences Peru S.R.L.

Jurisdiction of Organization

Virginia
Delaware
Thailand
Thailand
Hong Kong

Exhibit 21

The People’s Republic of China

Nevada
Nevada
Nevada
Nevada
Canada
India
Ecuador
Spain
Oklahoma
Florida
Malaysia
Nevada
Macau
Singapore
Malaysia
Singapore
Hong Kong
Denmark
Denmark
Norway
Sweden
Saudi Arabia
Delaware
Australia
Australia
United Kingdom
Argentina
Netherlands
Colombia
Austria
Chile
Costa Rica
Brazil
Finland
Hong Kong
Ireland
Italy

Japan
Korea
United Kingdom
Nicaragua
Peru




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates

As of March 30, 2007

Name

CSC Computer Sciences Polska Sp. z0.0
CSC Computer Sciences (Portugal) Lda
CSC Computer Sciences Pie Limited

CSC Computer Sciences, S. de R.L. de C.V.
CSC Computer Sciences S.A.

CSC Computer Sciences S.AS.

CSC Computer Sciences Sdn Bhd

CSC Computer Sciences (South Africa}(Pty) Limited
CSC Contputer Sciences spol. s.r.o.

CSC Computer Sciences s.r.0.

CSC Computer Sciences Taiwan Limited
CSC Computer Sciences (Thailand) Limited
CSC Computer Sciences VOF/SNC (Partnership)
CSC Consular Services Inc.

CSC Consulting Group A/S

CSC Consulting, Inc.

CSC Corporation Limited

CSC Credit Services, Inc.

CSC Cybertek Corporation

CSC Danmark A/S

CSC Datalab A/S

CSC Deutschland Akademie GmbH

CSC Deutschland Services GmbH

CSC Deutschland Solutions GmbH

CSC Enterprises (Partnership)

CSC Financial GmbH

CSC Financial Services (Pty) Limited

CSC Financial Services S.A.S.

CSC Financial Services Software Solutions Austria GmbH
CSC Financial Solutions Limited

CSC FSG Limited

CSC Hungary Information Technology Services Kft
CSC Information Systems Limited

CSC Information Systems LLC

CSC International Systems Management Inc.
CSC halia Srl

CSC Japan, Ltd.

CSC Logic, Inc.

CSC Logic/MSA L.L.P.

(CSC Managed Services Inc.

CSC New Zealand Limited

CSC ProduktSystems GmbH

CSC Property UK Limited

CSC Retail Services, LLL.C

CSCS.AS.

Jurisdiction of Organization

Potand

Portugal
Singapore
Mexico
Luxembourg
France

Malaysia

South Africa
Slovakia

Czech Republic
Taiwan

Thailand
Belgium

Nevada
Denmark
Massachusetts
United Kingdom
Texas

Texas

Denmark
Denmark
Germany
Germany
Germany
Delaware
Germany

South Africa
France

Austria

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Hungary

United Kingdom
Delaware
Nevada

Italy

Delaware

Texas

Texas

Nevada

New Zealand
Germany
United Kingdom
Nevada

France




COMPUTER SCIENCES CORPORATION
Significant Active Subsidiaries and Affiliates

As of March 30, 2007

Name

CSC Scandihealth A/S

CSC Services Management Ireland Limited
CSC Services No. | Limited

CSC Services No. 2 Limited

CSC Solutions Norge AS

CSC Sverige AB

CSC Switzerland GmbH

CSC Systems & Solutions LLC

CSC Technologies Deutschtand GmbH
CSC Technology {Beijing} Co.. Lid.
Datatrac Information Services, Inc.

Dekru B.V.

DynCorp

DynCorp of Colorado, Inc.

DynKePRC L.L.C.

DynMcDermott Petroleum Operations Company
DynMeridian Corporation

DynPort Vaccine Company LLC

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
Experteam S.A/N.V.

Express Profits Development Limited
Express Returns Limited

Express Success Limited

Everlasting Properties Limited

Federal Support Solutions, LLC

Grand Global Insurance Ltd.

Grupo CSC Computer Sciences de Mexico 58.A. de C.V.
Guangzhou Automated System Limited
Hanford Mission Support Company LLC
Innovative Banking Solutions AG

ITS Medical Systems LLC

Merrill Lynch CICG, Limited Partnership
Merrill Lynch Partnership Holdings, LLC
Mississippi Space Services (Partnership)
Mynd Asia Pacific Pty Limited

Mynd Corporation

Mynd International, Ltd.

Mynd Partners f/k/a Legalgard Partners, L.P.
Mynd Partners, L.P. f/k/a Cybertek Solutions, L.P.
Paxus Australia Pty. Limited

Paxus Financial R&D Pty. Limited

PT Cita Simas Artha

PT. CSC Computer Sciences

Supreme Esteem Limited

Space Coast Launch Services LLC

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited

Test & Experimentation Services Co.

The Eagle Alliance (Partnership)

Tianjin CSA Computer Sciences Technology Company Ltd.

Welkin Associates, Ltd

Jurisdiction of Organization

Denmark

Ireland

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Norway

Sweden

Switzerland
Delaware

Germany

The People’s Republic of China
Texas

Netherlands
Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Louisiana

Virginia

Virginia

Hong Kong

Belgium

British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
Nevada

Bermuda

Mexico

The People’s Republic of China
Nevada

Germany

Virginia

Delaware

Delaware

Mississippi

Australia

South Carolina
Delaware
Pennsylvania

Texas

Australia

Australia

Indonesia

Indonesia

Hong Kong

Nevada

Taiwan

Texas

Maryland

The People’s Republic of China
Virginia
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-26977, 33-36379, 33-
50746, 333-00733, 333-00749, 333-00757, 333-09387, 333-33327, 333-75383, 333-92155, 333-58526, 333-67472,
333-103653 on Forms S-8 and 333-72034 on Form S-3 of our report dated June 13, 2007 relating to the
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of Computer Sciences Corporation (the
Company), which report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes explanatory paragraphs relating to a)
the Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment on April 1, 2006 and SFAS No. 158, Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R on March 30, 2007 and b)
the Company’s restatement of the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended March 31, 2006, and of our report on internal control over financial reporting dated June 13,
2007 (which report expresses an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting because of a material weakness) appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the
Company for the year ended March 30, 2007.

/s DELOITTE & ToucHE LLP

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

June 13, 2007




Exhibit 31.1

[, Michael W. Laphen, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Computer Sciences Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report:

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures. as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likety to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting,

Date: June 13, 2007 By: /81 MicHAEL W. LAPHEN

Michael W. Laphen
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

1, Michael E. Keane, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Computer Sciences Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in al} material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f}) for the registrant
and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internai control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: June 13, 2007 By: /st__MICHAEL E. KEANE

Michael E. Keane
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, I. Michael W. Laphen, Chief Executive Officer of Compuler
Sciences Corporation (the Company), hereby certify that:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 30, 2007 (the Report)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: June 13, 2007 By: s/ MICHAEL W. LAPHEN

Michael W. Laphen
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2
Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, Michael E. Keane, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Computer Sciences Corporation (the Company), hereby certify that:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 30, 2007 (the Report)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: June 13, 2007 By: /st MICHAEL E. KEANE
Michael E. Keane
Vice President and Chief FinancialOfficer
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